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Financial Highlights

Results
¥ Over 9% underlying sales growth, 14% reported

-3 Adjusted™ operating margin at 17% - exceeding previous
target

¥ Restored progressive dvidend programme
- Good traction in new applications and geographies
-3 Net borrowings of £28m, down from £45m last year

3 Order book of £137m (2010 £132m) for delivery in coming
12 months

Strategy

y Revalidated strategy

- Increased medium term growth targets

- Underlying revenue growth to above 10% per annum

-3 Adjusted* operating profit margin to ¢ 17% per annum

2011 2010

£m £m

Revenue 228.6 201 2

Adjusted* operating profit 38.2 150

Adjusted* profit before tax 33.6 94

Profit/(loss) before tax 25.8 97)

Net borrowings {excluding debt 1ssue costs) 28 1 44 8
Adjusted™ earmings per share 1126p 667p
Eamings/{loss) per share 914p (1 66)p
Dividend 360p -p

* Adusted operating profit s before amorisabon of acquired intangible assets and cperating exceptional dtems  Adjusted profit before tax 1s belore amortisabon of acquired
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Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

KPis to monitor financial performance
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Defirutions

Sales growth

Operating profit margin
Return on capital employed

Order book growth
Business mix

Geographic reach
New business proportion

Percentage sales growth in year
Percentage of adjusted™ operating profit divided by sales in year

Adjusted* operating profit dvded by net operating assets along with intangibles at 31 March 2009 and acquired
thereafter

Percentage growth in arder book for delivery in the coming 12 months over the year

Percentage of sales from sub-systems, solutions and contracts with greater than 20% of their value from
engineering services in the year

Percentage of sales from regions outside Western Europe
Percentage of sales from new products or new customers in last three years

* Adusied operatng profit 1s betore amortsabion of acqured mtangible assets and oparating excepbional items  Adusted profit betors tax is before amornisation of
acquared ntangble assets and all exceptond terms
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Chairman’s and
Chief Executive’s Statement

e2v has performed strongly in overall improving markets and has exceeded

the targets for growth and profitability that we set for the Group backin July
2010. As a result we were pleased to be able to announce in April a return to full
dividend significantly earlier than plan and we have increased our targets for
underlying revenue growth and profitability.

We are pleased to report on our last financial year in which e2v has delivered
a strong trading performance in improving markets overall and we believe
that the business 1s well pasitioned to deliver further growth

We have built on e2v's hentage as a specaity technology group 50 that
we now provide specalist technology for high performance systems and
equipment Our pontfolio has been selected for the platform it provides to
achieve revenue growth and adjusted* operating profit margin perfformance
We are positioned as an attractive provider of enabling components, sub-
systems and semices within these waorldwide specialist sectors

In the last finanoal year we retumed to growth, with undertying revenue
mncreasing by over 9%, Qur adjusted* operating profit also grew strongly to a
margin of 17%, so exceeding our target

We fully recognise the support given by shareholders during the recession
and we are very aware of the importance that shareholders attach to
dmvidends We retumed to paying dividends earhier than planned, with total
dmidends proposed For the year of 3 6p per share

Dunng the year, we have made progress on implementing the growth
strategy that we announced last July This strategy 15 intended to accelerate
our growth m revenue above that of our overall markets We will achieve
this through reposiioning cur product offenngs at a higher tevel in the value
chain, our focus on the two new apphications we introduced last year, and
through geographic expansion, in particular in the US aerospace and defence
and Asia

We consider that our strategy has substantially expanded our addressed
markets We currently assess the scale of our global markets to be ¢ £3 7bn
Our markets are growing at ¢ 6% cumently, up from ¢.3% per annum last
year Given our growth initiatives, we envisage that the Group s capable of

ez2v com




Chairman’s and Chuef Executive’s Statement

achieving an underiying revenue growth profile of more than 10% per
annum over the next three years along with further upside potential and
we believe that this strategy will permit us to continue with cur dwidend
policy on a progressive basis

Financial performance

The Group's revenue for tast year increased 14% to £229m, reflecting over
9% undertying growth in revenue from our continung products and a
strong tevel of last time buy demand related to the closure of our front
end fab fachity in France

Adjusted* operating profit improved considerably from £15m to £38m

for the year, reflecting both the improvement of the cost base In the
ongoing business and the benefit of incremental cantnbution from ane-off
business, including last time buy orders, estimated at £1om This was also
reflected in operating profit that /mproved ta £30m (2010 loss £6m)

Adjusted™ eamings per share were 11.26p (2010 6 67p) and eamings per
share were 9 14p (2010 loss 1.66p), from which the Board has proposed
dradends for the year of 3 &p per share

Qur level of net borowings has reduced by £17m in the year to £28m

at 31 March 2013, reflecting the improved operating performance and a
slow restart to capital expenditure, offsetting additional working capital to
support the increasing level of activity and nventory to support last time
buy orders

The Group's total order book at 31 March 2011 was £167m (2010 £161m),
an increase of 4%. Our order book for delivery over the coming 12 months
also increased to £137m (2010 f132m) of which £8m is for the remaiming
last time buy orders (2010 one off orders £12 gm) and so represants an
underlying growth of 8%.

The Board

We welcomed to the Board as Non-Executive Directors Dr Knshnamurthy
Rajagopa!l and Kewin Dangerfield Our thanks are extended to lan Godden,
who resigned this year, for six years of service as a Nan-Executive Director

Our people

For our people, last year has been one of transition as we have mostly
completed our major restructunng programme in the UK and France

The Board wishes to thank the staff for their positive support dunng its
implementation and energy to deliver the growth in the business over this
perod

Qutlook

e2v has performed strongly in overall improving markets and has
exceeded the targets for growth and profitability that we set for the Group
back in July 2010 As a result we were pleased to be able to announce

in Apnl a retum to full dwvidend sigrficantly earlier than plan We have
revalidated our strategy and rerain confident that this wall deliver longer
term grawth for the Group

Given our order cover for the coming 12 months and the current strength
of our markets, we anticipate that the Group witi show modest headline
growth through contiuing activities replacing the high level of one-off
revenues last year

Given the overall improving markets and the progress we have made in
implementing our strategy, we announce today that we have ingreased
our target for underlying revenue growth to above 10% per annum and
adjusted* operating profit margin to ¢ 17%

Chrnis Geoghegan Keith Attwood
Chatman Chief Executrve

* Adusted operating profit s before amertsabon of acqursd intangible assets and operating excephional tems. Adusted profit balors tax 15 before amortisation of acqured

mtangible assets and al exceptional tems

“ Adusted eamings 1s profit before amortisation of acquired intangible assets and all exceptional tems less tax where appecalble
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Business Review

Strategy overview

ezv delvers speaalist technology for high performance systems

and equipment at a component, sub-system and service level Qur
business 1s buslt an two core technologies of firstly Radio Frequency
(RF) and microwave products, sub systems and solutions and secondly
semiconductor based products and sofutions

The Group is organised into three divisions supported by group functions
The divisions deliver solutions targeied at specialist global application
segments The application segments we have chosen as our focus enable
us to leverage our strong technology and market position to provide

sub systems and solutions, thereby expanding our addressable market
We are often a leader in these speafic applications In addition, the
Group 1s focused on increasing our market share in both Asia and the US
aerospace and defense sector, from a well established European base

Business structure

The Group s organised into three dmisions that are supported by group
functions

RF power solutions (RFF)

High performance electron devices and sub-systems i three main
applicabon segments radiotherapy, elecironic countermeasures and
Industnal processing systems {(|PS) (formery bulk matenals processing)

High performance imaging solutions (HPY)

Advanced Charged Coupled Device {CCD) and Complementary Metal
Oide Semiconductor (CMOS) imaging sensors and cameras in three
main application segments machine vision, space imaging and saenbfic
maging

Hi-rel semiconductor solutions (HRS)

High retiability semiconductors and services in two main appitcation
segments aerospace and defence semiconducters and semiconductor
Iifecycle management under the Group's SLIM™ brand

The three main product divisions have responsibility for product design
and development, sales and customer service and work closely wath the
recently strengthened regional teams in the US and Asia

Group functions cover

- Global operations with responsibility for all manufactunng and supply
chasn actvity across the three main manufactunng sites based in
Chelmsford (UK), Grenoble (France) and Santa Clara (Califormia, US)

-3 Support services including group marketing and technology, finance,
coremergal, IT and human resources

-3 The remaining two non-core businesses which provide a range of
professional sensing products for x-ray spectroscopy and gas sensing
for automotive and environmental safety applications

Market and growth profile

Last year OC&C assisted the Group to develop our implementation ptans
for our growth strategy and this included a review of our addressed
markets From 2008 to 2009 we consider that the addressed market

fell to c.£2bn The strategic plan we announced last July expanded this

to over £3 sbn with a targeted growth rate of ¢.3% per annum With
mproving end user markets, the markets are demonstrating increased
undertying growth of €.6%. The speafic growth initiatives and geographic
expansion are better defined and with our growing confidence, we
consider that we will grow faster than the overall market We plan to
achieve this through our move up the value chain including introduction
of our two new applications in the last year and through expanston 1n qur
newer geagraphies by 2% to 4% per annum and 2% to 5% per annum
respectively We are therefore now targeting undertying revenue growth of
at least 10% with further upside potential Underlying revenue excludes
one off revenue in the year, ansing manly fram last time buys on the
Grencble front end fab and non-core business and products (prinapally
servicing the automative sector)

progressvel act s o venclafor - The a2y serospaca & ofarse e
udy 2v 1o supply and defiver nto the buSMess 1 Now growang with ouF

US asrcspacs and defence market  expansion of sakes, appicabons

Expanding our US plators

operations The new organesation is g o,
nsirumental n the defivery of our ou esources, buiding

To enabla delvery of O expanson SLM™ programme and magor US and sush glohbemam

plans n North Amenca, this ysar defence proects for example our N erabling S“G'thhe

we established e2v aerospace cngong work with BAE Systems us gy S0 uandho Bdetp'ememm

& defense Inc based in Sarta ﬁrﬂm?ﬁ-ﬁ? Prospacs markat
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Business Review

RF power solutions

Financials

Revenue grew by 4% to £82 1m {2010 £78 8m) and underying revenue
growth {exduding the non core automotive alarms business) was 5%
Continued strong demand for new systems and spares in radiotherapy
and idustnal products more than offset the antiipated weakness in
demand in Europe for electronic countermeasures In respect of electronic
countermeasures we now have good customer engagement building,
which 15 dnven by our ultra wideband Traveling Wave Tube (TWT) and
Microwave Power Module (MPM)

The dmstor’s adjusted* operating profit was £12 8m (2010 £11 2m),

an ncrease of 14%. This reflected the planned savings from headcount
reduction and the benefit from speafic programmes to improve efficency
and reduced warranty costs as well as the contnbution from higher
volumes and improved pnang on seme low margin products

The order book at 31 March 201t was £23m (2010 £82m) The reduction
reflected the run-out of multi-year radiotherapy arders and the anticpated
decline in defence related orders, patially offset by increased ndustnal
business, which has grown but typically has shorter order cycles than the
radiotherapy and defence applications The orders due for delvery in 12
manths as at the 31 March 2011 were £54m (2010 £60m), down 10% in
line with the total order book reflecting the changing mix in the order bogk.

Application segments

Radiotherapy

We debver high performance, high retiability products and provide the
continuity for long term spares requirements that our mdiotherapy
customers require ezv I1s established as the market leader for the
supply of magnetrons, thyratrons, modulators and serices Qur pancipal
customers are the radiotherapy system Onginal Equipment Manufacturers
(OEMSs) including Tomotherapy, Elekta, Vanan and Siemens Key dnvers
for the market include new equipment demand which 15 dependant

on healthcare spending, whereas the undertying demand for spares

s pnmanly dnven by the installed base and the spares replacement
cyele which can be between five to ten years after a new system 1s
commissioned

Last year the dwision's radrotherapy revenue grew strongly, in past
reflecting some restocking by the GEMs but also increased demand for

both new build equipment and spares For the coming years we anticipate
that spares revenue will grow in line with the past expanston of the
installed base over the last five to ten years Growth is antiapated to be
dnven by continued new build demand which accounts for approximately
one third of the growth alang wath the growing installed base that
undemins the other two thirds of the anticipated growth We consider
further upside potential 1s available from mowing up the value cham if

we were to develop two new RF generating sub-systems These could
include the next generation tunable S-band magnetron and modulator that
offers a smaller, mare flexible footpant than conventional approaches and
provides an altemative to the pnnapal alternative technology, klystrons, in
high average and peak power apphcations

Electronic countermeasures

We provide components and sub systems for electronic countermeasure
protection of high value ai, land and naval platforms. ezv manufactures
key camponents, such as magnetrons and coupled cavity TWTs, and, at
a sub-system level, MPMs as well as delivering design and development
services Our products are typically European onginating, so are not
restncted under the US's Intemational Traffic tn Arms Regulation (ITAR)
which 15 2 key advantage in our intemational markets In the US, our
operattons are now authonsed for defence programmes Key customers
are the syster level OEMs, induding BAE Systems, Selex Galiteo,
Raythecon, Saab, EADS and Thales For some applications e2v also
contracts directly with the end users or govemmental laboratones through
ther technology groups

_Sales into electrontc countermeasure applicaians eflected the anticipated

lower demand in Europe The engagement tn the US is building with a
further contract award within the ALE 55 programme as well as a new
development contract for our ultra wadeband TWT Growth 1s anticipated
to come In Europe from contracts to supply MPMs to two OEMs, one of
which has been secured since the year end and from the two existing
US programmes Potential for faster growth may be achieved through
contracts for sub-systems i the U3, faster sub-system growth in Europe
and developing markets such as India e2v's unique technology, including
the new ultra wideband TWT and the recently taunched MPM, 1s gaining
traction in Europe and the US because of the products size, werght and
performance

facEves Backed by a grant of bk rratenals and supplantng
Case Study up 1o 96 2m frxm the Regional traditonal fossi fuel based
Growth Fund administered by tachnologies such as gas fumaces
Anew approach the UK Departrment for Busness The new techndogy 1S sigricantly
Innovation and Sidlls, e2v wil see more efficent n, for exampla,
to bulk matenal the creation of more than 100 vermsculite processing, with overall
processing new jobs by 2014 together with energy corsumpbon reduced by
el supporiing academsc posts at our c90%
e2v’s new industnal processing research partner the Universty of
svstems (PS) has We successiufly demonsirated
for 9 t work Nottingham. our production-scale prototype
mmmmstii nEme The proposed scope of this Prowave® machine for vermecuiite
and ofid odess ""'g_ expansion 1$ to accelerate processng to members of The
mkmazmals: 9 and s avalabiity of 82vs ProWave® Vermmculite Association in Apdl
processng products and servces off 2011
comimitted to significant rvestment onng
N additonal research, deveiopment a cloane, greanés, mor efcent
! technology 1o the processing of
and expendad producton

° Adjsted operating proft 15 betore amertisation of acqured mtangible assets and operating exceptional tems Adjusted profit before 1ax Is before amortsation of acoured

nianghie assets and el exceptiona! tems
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Industrial processing systems

Our novel application of microwave and high power RF to the

processing of bulk matenals delvers transformational econormics in

energy consumption and matenal yield in established sectors Industnal
processing systems can provide RF generators or complete systems, which
include a RF generator, matenal handling system and process controt The
current focus «s applications for mting and dnll cuttings decontamination,
where we are providing an RF generator, and vermiculite processing, where
ez2v provides a complete system Qur customers for the mining and dnll
cuttings decontamination applications are leading players for each market
and are protected through hicensing amangements ezv has exclusvely
licensed key witellectual property for vermiculite processing and is free to
address this sector

Dunng the year e2v has secured orders of c.£1m for devetopment

work with our customers m the mining and offshore dnll cuttings
decontamination settars Since the year end we have secured further
orders, including one for an in-mine tnal deployment We have also
demonstrated our vermiculite processing sysiem to The Vermiculite
Association, the global body which draws together miners, exfoliators
and end users of this mineral We are now explonng with a number of
these companies condittons under which we could conduct tnals on ther
production sites

We are also developing a second generation product which wilk be smaller,
less costly and more closely aligned with high power users in minmng and
dnll cuttings decontamination apphcations

Growth 1 venmiculite processing 15 antiapated to come from new
installation and replacement markets which we consider to support the
sale of c.30 systems per year It 1s also antiapated that the development
programmes for mining will progress to equpment orders for full scale
production installation of a full system Accelerated growth may be
achieved through faster take up i the veruiculite market, deployment
m dnll cuttings decontarmination and the possibility of applying the
technology to one of two new markets

In Apnl 2011 e2v was pleased to announce that, subject to due diligence,
we have been successful tn our apphication for a £6 2m grant from the
Regronal Growth Fund The grant witt altow us to accelerate our Research
and Development (R&D) programme in conjunction with the University
of Nottingham and investment in the infrastructure that supports this
opporiunity for growth 1t wall also open up faster deployment for the
technelogy into one or two further markets from amongst applications in
food processing, bitumen and soil remediation

QOther applications

The remaining business in the dwisien 1s prncpally focused on a range
of applications in commerciat and industnal markets including, radar
for commeraat shipping and ndustnal applications ncluding, induction
and dielectnc welding, lasers and cargo screeming along with satellite
communicatton ampbfiers

Revenue for the rematning business has shown strong growth reflecting
recovery in Industnal end user markets and increased pnang on selected
low margin products

High performance imaging solutions

Financials

Reported revenue increased by 21% to £64 9m {2010 £53 8m) This
included one-off revenue of £17 sm (one-off revenue includes Last Time
Buys {LTB) and recovery of the overdue orders related to the restructurnng
in Grenoble) Underlying revenue growth (excluding mainty the products
subject to LTB) was 8%. Demand for machine wviston cameras for process
control applications in Asia was strong, more than offsetting a decline in
space imaging, which expenenced programme detays due to technical
1ssues Good progress has been made dunng the year on the recovery
plan, although certain programmes rematn challenging Demand recovered

n the secand half for scentific imaging products The rematning business
benefited from LTB activity and underiying growth in the continuing
portfolio, particularty e2v’s second generation GMOS based dental sensors

The dmiston's adjusted* operating profit before taxation was £12 7m (2010
fo sm}, a significant increase of £12 2m This was due to significantly
hugher volumes in part due to LTB actmty, combined with cost savings
from the restructunng plan which will be comptleted with the closure of the
Grenoble front end fab in June 2011, R&D spend was mamntamed in ine
with the pnor year level.

Institut Supéneur da I'Adronautaue

and tedecommunications The
CaseStudy CMOS maging sensors we

et de I'Espace and a2v

South Koreals first e e e he magng amays wil prowe
weather satellte spectrum camera that gathershigh A SPectral data 1o cetect
Qualty ccean meteordlogical data. MO quanty and pradict
South Korea's fisst weather sateils  inciuding on typhoons 8nd dust short tem changes in the coastal
was launched n June 2010 and movement ©cean envtnment around Korea,
on board ame the fist CMOS for manne soence research and
¥magng sensors packaged and The proect 15 the result of a applicatons pumoses
<paco quaifod ot 63v L colbomn BB IOKaEN e
geostatonary orbit 36 000 km AerospeceFesearchinsite end o T R
from Earth camyrg throo payfoadss | ASTUMN France The CMOS i
dedicated o metaotlogy ImMage sensors were the result SS0N N geostatonary
of close work between Astnum

applicahons ocsan chservabion
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Business Review

The arder book at 31 March 2011 was £54m (2010 £47m), which includes
LTB orders of £7 8m {2010 one off £10 sm} following the detision to close
the front end fab in Grenoble The order book relating to space actvities
was £34m (2010 £23m), up 48% reflecting order intake and programme
detays The orders due for delivery 1n 12 months as at 31 March 2011 were
£46m (2010 £43m), up 7%

Application segments

Machine vision

Qur camera platforms provide sensitive, high speed performance for high
end inspection processes where quality and reliability are key customer
requirements for applications such as semiconductor and etectronics
manufactunng inspection, food and beverage processing, ophthatmelogy
and document imaging Our products include line scan cameras for high
end machine vision and opticat coherence tomography ophthatmological
apphications based on CCD sensor technotogy Each end user markets
has specialised inspection equipment supphiers that are e2v's customers,
inctuding Carl Zesss, Meditec, Canon Optopol and Orbotech, and there are
a large number of integraters which we access wia distnbuters and our
agents

Sales in machine wision have grown sigmificantly with strong demand

for cameras for process control applications in Asia The Iincreased sales
resources In Asia provide a platform to support these important and
growing markets Growth I1s anticipated to be achieved by the expansion of
our Asian markets and the widening machine vision product portfolio for
which we intend to launch our own Ime of high end CMOS cameras in the
coming year The upside potential for acceterated customer demand would
anse from earlier adoption of e2v's product range including the new CMOS
high end cameras

Space imaging

We have a long established hentage of providing reliable, high
perfarmance, high quality space quakfied imaging sensors and arays for
space suence and astronomy applications and high speed, high resotution
sensors for Earth observation satelutes Countnes wish to maintain
independent observation capabilities and the increasing investment

in monitonng climate change are dmving a growing demand for new
observation satellite programmes We have a strong position 1n Europe for
these CCD sensors and our proctuct remams attractive for this application
due to the long proven performance in flight We are also develaping our
awn CMOS based technology platform The main end users are wordwide

space agencies induding NASA, ESA and CNES as well as the pnme
satellte manufacturers incuding Astnum, TAS, Boeing and Lockheed

Delays to project milestones have resulted 1n lower revenue than the

pror year due to the technical nature of the programmes which typrcally
invalve significant development work and testing Good progress has been
made on a number of programmes where the development phase s now
reanng completion, although certain pregrammes remain challenging
Growth 1s underpinned by delivery aganst secured major European
projects The upside potential would be achieved through eartier projects
in the US and secunng projects in tndra and China

Scientficimaging

Our high perfonmance sensors are particularty well swied for use in

high end cameras used in scentific instruments The market for high

end saentific cameras 1s currently highly concentrated wath three
manufacturers Ander, Hamamatsu and Roper, all of whom we support

e2v has a significant market share, propnetary technology and has strong
relationships with these major customers

In the first half saentific maging expenenced lower demand due to ane
major customer that maoved to a second scurce durng the pnor financial
year In the second half demand recovered strongly It 1s anticspated that
growth will be by the introduction of new higher perfermance sensors
for the top enrd applications The adoption of our CMOS sensars for mid-
range systems has the potential for further accelerating growth

Other applications

e2v supports a range of other spectatist applications for its technology
including CMOS dental intra-cral sensors and CMOS area array sensors for
use In automatic data collection systems including 2D barcode reading
From 1 Apnl 2011 the thermal imaging preduct line has been transferred to
the High performance imaging solutiens divisron

Undertying growth has come from the continuing portfolis including the
CMQS dental sensors and thermal imaging cameras Growth 1s anticipated
from new customers for the e2v CMOS dental sensors, the launch of

a hand held thermal imaging camera for the secunty market and from
demand for 2D bar code reading that 1s replacing laser technology and
faciitating new applicatians  The possibility for higher rates of customer
demand due to the strength of the product offenng and a dental system
designed for the Asian market offer a base for upside patential

our business s supported by cur
expanding operabons in the region

capabiibes including the ntegration
of colour and near infrarsd
detection to ncrease the accuracy

A growing demand stgm Inspecm; CamerES  of food sorting processes, heve
ap across a vanaty of
for automated merkets, gt seroen ﬁ?&%ﬁé’?ﬁ%’“
inspection quaity nspecton wherathey are o
- 1ab} regon, where challenging
aaalfor hugh dimatc conditons, ncluding hgh
The demand for automated for toved 3
g for pos ambien and hurracs
wnagng based nspection systems g its, emperatLres ity
fior product and food qualty demand a robust, high quality
mspaction 5 growng, spectically n 11 supenor quality of e2vs camera system
the Asia Pacific region wath foracast  industnalinspection camaras,
ongong growth of 10% pa. where combined with iIncreasing
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Hi-rel semiconductor solutions

Financials

Reported revenue increased by 23% to £62 7m (2010 £50 9m) Undertying
revenue growth (excluding one-off revenue and non-ore products) was
19%. The semiconductor Lfecydle management contract for the 68K senes
micropmcessor on the Eurofighter Typhoon programme secured revenue
estimated at £3o0m aver the next ter years of which £14m has been
delivered dunng the current year The Eurapean test and assembly business
also grew offsetung lower assembly and test actmity in the US operations
wiuch was due to lower demand pnnapally from European end users.

The dmsion’s adjusted* operating profit was £15 6m (2010 £6 7m),

an ncrease of 133%. This was due to the higher volumes and margins
prnapally due to the 68K contract for Eurofighter Typoon and one-

off revenue in the fiist half, as well as anticipated cost savings from
the restructunng 1n Grenoble and lower R&D spend reflecting the
re-pnontisation of R&D This 1s part of our strategy for the managed
withdrawal from the smart sensor market for sensor signal condtioning
Application Speafic Integrated Circuits (ASICs) and Application Speafic
Standard Producis (ASSPs) provided manly to the automotive industry

The order book at 31 March 2011 was £35m (2010 £29m) The nerease
includes £2m aof arders related to the 68K processars for the Eurofighter
programme The orders for delivery within 12 months as at 31 March zon
were £33m (2010 £26m which induded c £2m of one-off orders)

Application segments

Aerospace and defence semiconductors

We provide high reliability semiconductors, anatogue toa digital convertors
and packaging and test serces that meet the demanding speafications of
our aerospace and defence customers and have an established reputation
for providing tong tenn support We partner with Freescale Semiconductor
and Everspin, to provide a range of high relabitity versions of thesr
standard products We provide market teading package and screening
options and redesigned End of Life (EQL) miltary speafication integrated
circuits The routes to market for the semiconductor components are
generally through distributors and we have strong relationships with two
of the major wordwide compaonent distrnibutors, Arrow and Avnet There
are also some direct sales to major defence pnmes

Revenue from aerospace and defence semiconductors relating to the
European test and assembly business grew offsetting lower assembly and
test activity in the US operations seflecting lawer demand pnnapally from
its European end users We currently have market leading pasitions which
should underpin future growth, in addition we are also seeking to secure a

further partnership with a semiconductor OEM, the ongoing development
and redesign programmes and with the possibility for acquisition of
strategic EQL products The potential for further growth 15 anttapated ta be
achieved through the support provided into the SUM™ programmes

Semiconductor lifecycle management

SLUM™ 15 a new approach to obsolescence management for our aerospace
and defence customers, which provides a longer temn proactive approach
for managing cntical components in aerospace and defence systems, and
offers the potential for tower cost and reduced nsk over the hfetime of
the assets The defence pnmes have long term support and maintenance
commitments to ensure that the high value military assets they supply
continue to perform throughout their ife Semiconductor ebsolescence
management 1s a particularly significant and costly 1ssue that needs to
be managed wathin these hifetsme support programmes Our capabilities
in design of semiconductors, as well as providing packaging and test
services, can extend the availabity of othermise obsolete semiconductors
providing our customers with the secunty of supply of the components
they require The customers for SLIM™ are the large defence pnmes,
including to date Raytheon Space and Airbome systems and European
OEMs on the Eurcfighter Typhoon programme

The ongoing successful obsolescence mitigation programme for the 68K
series microprocessors demonstrates the valtue of the SLIM™ approach

to managing obsolescence In the US we have partnered with Raytheon
Space and Aidine Systems to provide sermiconductor lifecycte management
services to support the Fig radar system with a five year contract with

an estimated value of £3m We are atsc developing a broad range of
other programmes with Raytheon and other leading US based OEMs with
patential contract value of c.£35m over five years Growth 15 antiapated
fram contracts with OEMs and we are targeting five contract wans per year
with a gradual start to supply of product and also, as referred to above,
we are seeking to secure a further partnership with a semiconductor OEM
We anticipate that there 1s the upside potential for further growth from
faster take up of supply by the OEMs and securing a further additional
partnership with a serttconductor OEM

Other applications

The other applicaticns are 1n the smart sensor market for sensor signal
condinoning ASICs and ASSPs for applications m mdustnal automation,
industral detectors, automotive safety and secunty, engine management
and chmate control applications These are not considered to be strategic
products and are we now managing our exit from these non core product
lines

C Study problem offenng through-kfe Thes partnersh wil sea e2v
support to the supply of herel supporteg at least 200 systems
SLIMTM SAMICONCUCEOr COmponents. per year over the next five years. It
The tatest exampls s for the F15 15 anbopated that other F15 sub-
fighter, first delivered n 1974, and systam supplers may ako take
bealdeferf:emneed with over 1 000 arcraft since soid advantage of thes approach and
dmadgmhm 1o customers arcund the World that thes type of service agreement
tha Pead to mixgate a2v has parinerad with Raytheon will become the norm for deferce
the O‘Mg Space and Arbome Systams to platiomms
15 e2v's SLMM support the F15' radar system for
the rnexd five years.
programme s addressng thes

* Adusted operating profit 1s before amor tisabon of acqured ntangible assets and operating excepbonal itams Adustad profit before tax 1s before amortisation of acaqued

ntangible assets and a exceptional termns.,
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Business Review

Corporate centre

The corporate centre compnsed a portfolio of businesses based in the UK
and Switzerland covenng thermal imaging, x-rAy detectors, gas sensors
and aw quabity sensors The review of the portfolio of these businesses has
been completed dunng the year From 1 Apnl 2011, the thermal cameras
product line will be reported as part of our High performance imaging
drasion The remaining businesses are confirmed as non-core activittes
These non-core businesses, representing 6% of the Graup's tumover, have
achieved reported growth of ¢.4% and breakeven in the year after the
altocation of corporate costs

Financial overview
Revenue and adjusted* aperating profit by division were as follows

Adjusted*

Revenue operating profit

2011 2010 2011 2010

£m £m £m £m

RF power solutions 821 788 128 112

High performance

maging solutions 649 %38 127 05
Hi-rel semiconductor

salutons 627 5089 156 67

Other businesses 189 177 - 01

2286 2012 411 183

Corporate centre 29) 33

382 150

Review of trading performance

The Group's reported revenue wmcreased by 14% compared with the last
finanaat year, with undertying revenue growth of aver g% There was
growth across all of the divisions By geographical spread, revenue grew
in North Amenca, Asia Pacfic, Continental Europe and the Rest of World
with lower sales in UK Geographic reach reflects the proportion of sales
outside Westem Europe (inctuding UK) and increased 1o 48% in ine with
our strategy to grow in these markets

New husiness in the year from new producis or customers over three
years, made up approumately 21% of revenue, an increase of seven
percentage points in the year Business mix, which reflects the percentage
of sales from sub-systems and solutions was 34%.

Adjusted* gross profit increased by 42% to £86 7m (2010 £51.2m) and
represented 38% of revenue (2010 30%) The improved gross margin
reflects the increased volumes and the planned reduction n the fixed cost
base as a result of the nearly complete restructurtng programme These
cost savings were on plan and completion of the plan 1n the coming year
should offset the margin contnbution, estimated at £1om, ansing from cne-
off revenue in the year

Expenditure on R&D has marginally increased to £12 4m (2010 £12 1m)
The rate of spend has mcreased in the second half of the year as the
investment in the key programmes s accelerating with the focus on the
programmes supporting the growth opportunities These programmes
include the MPM development, the next generation of the high power
RF generator for use in IPS, and product lines that are antiapated to be

launched in the coming year including the high end CMOS camera for
machine wision

Selling and distnbution costs mcreased by 7% to £16 3m (2010 f15 2m)
reflecting the costs assoaated with the expansion of the sales and
distnbution functien i the US and Asia and incentive payments which
flow from the strong performance of sales and order intake

Admunistratrve expenses decreased to £26 7m (2010 £40 om)
Administrative expenses include a number of the items added back to
adjusted* operating profit of £7 om (2010 £21 1m) detaled below The
remaining administrative expenses of £19 7m (2010 £1g om) increased by
4% (£o 7m) with cost savings fom the restructunng having been offset by
planned expenditure to support our growth strategy including deployment
of IT systems

Adjusted* operating profit

The adjusted™ operating profit is considered to reflect more accurately the
undertying perfarmance of the business and 15 calculated as follows

2011 2010
£000 £000
Operating profit/floss) 30,489 (6 037)
Amortisation of acquired intangible
25501S 5,826 8600
Business improvement programme
axpenses 2,496 18,682
Last time buld inventory provision 774 -
Fair value gains on foreign exchange {1,341) (2,489)
contracts ' '
Profit on the sale of Linceln site - {3,739
Adjusted” operating profit 38,244 15017

Adjusted* operating profit increased to £38 2m (2010 £15 om) and
represented 17% of revenue (2010 79%) The July 2010 target for adjusted*
operating profit margin was 15% to be delivered in 18 months The Group
has exceeded this target some 12 months ahead of schedule Returmn on
capital employed (adjusted* aperating profit dmded by net aperating
assets along with intangibles at 31 March 2009 and acquired thereafter)
increased to 24% (2010 9%) reflecting the improved level of profitability
of the Group

Amortisatien of acquired intangible assets of £6 8m {2010 £8 6m) has
reduced from the pnor year and reflects a number of intangible assets
recogmised on the acquisition of Grenoble and QP Semiconductor Inc,
which are now fully amortised The Group has camed out its annual
impaiment reviews and considers that there 1s no further impairment of
acquired intangible assets as at 31 March zon1

The business improvement programme expenses reported within this year
were £2 5sm (2010 £18 7m) and were as antiapated in the restructunng
programmes A last time buwld progremme, panapally in support of
machine vision and space imaging product lines, commenced dunng the
year to manufacture products that will no longer be manufactured once
the front end fab in Grenoble s closed in june 2011, A provision of £o 8m
has been made for these products in line with the Group’s accounting
policy

* Adusted operatng profit 1s before amortisaton of acqured mtangble assets and operabng exceptional tems  Adusted profit before tax 15 befors amortisation of acquired

ntangible assets and all excepbional tems
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Overall the Group's policy 15 to put in place forward contracts to sell
surplus curmencies based on its trading forecasts, with the tevel of coverage
decreasing over the next 12 months. The mark to market adjustment on
this cover amourited to a gan of £1.3m (2010 £2 5m) and 15 descnbed

as faw value gains on foreign exchange contracts The gain reflects the far
value of the forward US$ contracts held by the Group as at the 31 March
2011, which extend over a penod of 12 months to March 2012

Finance charges

Net finance costs before exceptional items were £4 6m (2010 £5 7m), 3
reduction of 19% compared with the pnor year refltecting the lower levet of
bomowing dunng the year

The Group's policy 1s to manage #s interest cost using a mix of fixed and
vanable rate debt The movement in the fair value gain of the interest rate
swaps held by the Group was negligible (zo10 gain of £o 1m) The interest
rate swaps held by the Group at 31 March 2011 provide cover for over 65%
of the Group’s borrowings

Taxation

The tax charge for the year s £6 3m (2010 credit £7 sm} The effectve
tax rate on reported profit for the year ended 31 March 2011 amounts to
24.5% including adjustments relating to pnor years The tax charge in the
current year has benefited from tax credits for R&0 n the UK and France
of £23m (2o £2 3m)

The Group generated profits in the UK and US which are subject to tax

at 28% and c.40% (including state taxes) respectively In France, where
the standard rate of tax 1s ¢.34% the Group made profits, compared to
losses In the pnor year French tax losses totaling £1om that were camed
back to prior penods last year have been relieved against current year
tax payments [n addition the loss of £4m ansing in the pnor year in
France has been rebeved aganst this year's taxable profits There remans
£10m of the french restructunng provision which 1s only deductible as the
expense 15 incumed

The effective tax rate on adjusted* profit befare tax 1s 2g% mcluding
adjustments relating to pnor years The Group 15 reviewing Its tax strategy
this year, to ensure that as it expands into new markets the Group's
approach to management of taxation remains efficent

Profit for the year

The profit for the year is £19 5m (2010 loss £2 2m} The retum to
profitability undertines the significant progress made by the Group dunng
the last year As a result of the significant improvement in profits, we have
restored our progressive dvidend programme with an intenm dmdend

of 1 2p per share, paid on 27 May 2011, and a propased final dvidend of
2.54p per share

Currency

The manufactunng operations tn the UK, France, US and Switzerland

sell through the Group's global sales and distnbution netwoerk, and are
therefare subject to transactional and translational nsks particulary in
relation to the US doltar which accounts for 39% (2010 35%) of the
Group’s sales Where US dollars are forecast 1o exceed US dollar costs,
the surplus LS dollars are sold under foreign exchange contracts to

cover costs incurred in the UK and France in accordance with the Groups
hedging policy In the year ended 31 March 2011, US dollars were sold
under exchange contracts at an average rate of $162 = £1 {2010 $176 =
£1)

For the year ended 31 March exchange rates applied were

Average Year end
2011 2010 2011 2010
US dollar 155 159 161 151
Euro 117 113 113 112

The Group repaid its US dotlar borrowings dunng the year and currently all
of the Group's borrowings are in Sterling

Cash flow and net borrowings

At 31 March 2611, net borrowings amounted to £28 1m (2010 £448m), a
reduction of £16 7m since 31 March 2010 The net cash inflow generated
from operations was £36 6m, a decrease of £3 4m over the year ended
31 March 2010 The hugher levels of profit in the year have been offset by
funding the planned payments of £12 7m associated with restructunng
along wath the increase in inventory supporting the restnuctunng
programmes and revenue growth The final instalment of £2m for the
sale of the Lincoln site was receved dunng the year Investment in
tangible fixed assets and software increased although at a lower level
than plarned, to £9 4m (2010 £3 1m), mantaining the manufactunng and
support infrastructure but also starting the investment n the faciibies to
support growth pnmanty in the UK for IPS and the expansion in US and
Asiz

There was the payment of the balance of costs of £1.2m associated with
the equity raise completed in the pnor year and on the 15 November 2010
the Company purchased 2,400,000 of its own shares at a pnce of gop to
hedge part of the patential obligations under long term ncentive plans

Borrowing facilities

The Group’s banking facilities expire in December 2012 In lanuary, the
Group agreed changes to the finanaal covenants in these banking
facilitres The pnmary result of these changes was to retum the control of
timing of dedaration ef any dvidends ta the Board

£1om of the term loans Is repayable on 31 December 2011 with the
balance being repayable on 31 December 2012 The faalites are avalable
to the Group 'n full until 31 December 2012 We plan to refinance these
faalties in the first half of the finangal year ending 31 March 2012

Interest 1s payable at 275bps over the terbank rates when the ratio of
consolidated net bomowings 10 consolidated EBITDA is below 2 1. Interest
rate swaps are In place in accordance with the Group's hedging policy

The facility 15 subject to the following key covenanis as at 31 March 2011

Covenant Actual

Cog;or;!cD!a:ed net debt Consolidated <250 1 0B i
Consclidated EBITA  Consohdated

net interest payable >350 1 146 1

Net operating cash flow Debt wa wa

service

If the leverage ratio (defined as the ratio of consolidated net debt to
consolidated EBITDA) 1s above t 25 1 then the Group is also required to
comply wath a cash cover covenant {defined as the ratio of net operating
cash flaw to debt senvice)
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Business Review

Restructuning

The overall restnuctunng programme that was announced in October 2009
has progressed in line with our plan The UK restructunng programme has
been completed and the last part of the French restructunng plan will be
cornpleted with the closure of the front end fab i June 2011 The total cost
of the restructunng programme 1s now anticpated to be £24m with the
remaining payments of up to £11.3m being made through to December
2012

Central functions

The dwvisions are supported by group operations and central group
functions including group marketing and technology, finance, commeraal,
IT and human resaurces

Sales

Qur sales activities are undertaken from sales offices in seven locations,
supporting e2v's dvisions through managing customer relatiorships and
our global network of distrtbutors and representatives In the year we
opened new offices in China, Japan and South Korea Since 1 Apnl 2011 the
three divisions are responsible for their specific sales teams

Operations

The group aperations function 18 responsible for the main manufactunng
sites in Chelmsford (UK), Grenoble (France), Santa Clara (Califormia, US),
as well as the smaller sites in the UX and Switzerland Group operations
are also responsible for supply chain and procurement and have a
dedicated purchasing office in Taiper Group operatsons are respansible
for maintatning the manufactenng faolities whilst controlling spend on
tangble fixed assets The faality that we have secured in China includes
provision for assembly activities and its fit out has cemmenced

Central functions

The costs of the central functions are allocated (o the dnastons The cenirat
costs, excluding exchange differences, of £1.5m (2010 £2 6m) are the
costs relating speafically to the management of e2v technologies plc and
are not allocated The reduction in unallocated cost in part reflects lower
professional fees than the pnor year which included the refinanang and
the extemal advice on our strategy review

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

Our KPls to monitor financal performance have been covered in detail in
this Business Review The table below provides a summary of our KPis
Non finanaal KPls are discussed in detail in the Corporate Responsibility
Review and include, customer satisfaction, number of reportable acadents
in the year, percentage reduction in our carbon footpnnt and Business in
the Community (BITC) Environmental Index.

2011 2010
% %
Sales growth 14% (14%)
Adusted® operating profit margn 17% 7%
Return on capital emiployed 24% 9%
12 menth order book growth 4% 21%
Business mix 34% 34%
Geographic reach 48% 46%
New business proportion 21% 14%

* Adusted operating profit 1s before amortisation of accrered intang ble assets and operating exceptional tems Adjusted profit before tax 1s befors amortisation of acaured

ntangihie assets and all exceptional tems
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Five Year Financial Summary

. 2011 2010 2008 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue!"
RF power solutions 82,113 78781 83.73% 75,776 69 639
High performance imaging solutions 64,913 53 814 85224 60,578 53 Q%8
Hi-ret semiconductor solutions 62,667 50936 53,328 39,826 28 Q44
All other 18,886 17,716 30,907 28 427 23146
Total revenue 228,579 201,247 233,193 204 607 173 925
Adjusted® operating profit 38,244 15017 27,440 258,092 24,653
Amortsation of acquired intangible assets {5,826) (8 500) 8 628) 7 310} 6047,
Impairrnent of acquired intangitle assets - - (26,127} - -
Impatrment of plant and equipment - - (2,500 - -
Business improvement programme costs {2,496} (18 682} 6 826) (1 996} -
Last ime buld nventory provision {7748) - - - -
Profit on sale of Lincoln site - 3,739 - - -
Farr value gains/{losses) on foreign exchange contracts 1,341 2,489 (2 894) {357) -
Acquisition and integration costs - - - - {1 055}
Profit/lloss) before tax and net finance costs 30,489 8,037 {19,535) 19,429 17 551
Net finance charges {4,657) (3.683) 8870 (5.682) {3.835)
Profit/ficss) before tax 25,832 (© 720 (28,405) 13,747 13,716
Income tax (charge)/credit (6,340) 7 454 7,106 {1,948} {4 048)
Profit/{loss) for the year attnbutable to equity halders of the parent company 19,492 {2 266) {21 299) 11799 9 668
Basic eamings/{loss) per share® 914p (1 E68)p 21 75 1223p 1040p
Adjusted basic EPS® 11 26p 867 p 1908p 1903p 16 31p
Interim dividend proposed/paid 120p il 270p 245p 220p
Final dividend proposed 240p it il 525p 475p
Cash generated from operations 36,555 40 001 43 048 29 869 19 539
Net debt {net of debt issue costs) 26,696 41 660 136 199 93,188 78 657
Average employee numbers 1,481 1 666 1714 1828 1821

(9 2010 segment revenues have been updated to take account of the dvisianal restructure effective 1 Apnl zo10 Pror penads have not been updated
(2} Adjsted operating profit 15 before amortisztion of acqured intangble assets and operating exceptional items.

{3} EPS have been updated to take account of the nghts ssue dunng the year ended 31 March 2010

(8) Adjusied earmungs 1s profitf{loss) for the year before amortisation of acquired intangeble assers and all exceptional items less tax effect.
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Board of Directors

Board of Directors

1 Chnis Geoghegan
Chairman

Chns joined the e2v Board as Chairman

in October 2009 He has over 30 years of
expenence n the aerospace Industry having
spent most of his career wn the commeraal
arcraft sector and was appointed one

of three chief operating officers of BAE
Systems pic Chns was a key player in the
growth and establishment of Airbus as
Managing Director of the Airbus Company
and a member of the executive board of
Aurbus Indusine He also has substantial
expenence in the military aerospace
sector, having been responsible for BAE
Systems’ European defence joint ventures
and its defence electronics companies

He 1s currently the Chairman of Hampson
Industnes ple and semor independent
director of Kier Group ple, Volex Group plc
and SIG plc and a past president of the
Society of British Aerospace Companies

14

2 Keith Attwood
Chief Executive

Keith joined the Group as Managing Director
n 1998, having previcusly worked at a
semor level within the telecommunications,
defence and aerospace sectors Keith led a
management buy out of e2v from Marcon
pl¢ 1in 2002 and subsequently floated the
Company on the Landon Stock Exchange in
2004 He s former Chaiman of the CB! East
of England Regional Council and 15 currently
Chairman of the CB1 Education and Skills
Commuttee

3. Charles Hindson
Group Finance Director

Chartes jomed the e2v Board in May 2009
Charles’ last role was Chief Executive, and
pror to that Group Finance Director, of
Filtranic plg, a UK listed specialist electronics
manufactunng group Previously, he was
Finance Director at Eutelstat S.A and held
vanous positions with the BT Group, Bnlish
Gas plc, Pnece Waterhouse and 31 plc.

4. Anthony Reading MBE

Seror Independent Non Executive Director

Tony was appomted 1o the Board in 2004

He was an executive director of Tomkins ple
and Chaimnan and Chief Executive of Tomkins
Corporation, USA, for eleven years uniil the
end of 2003 He I1s currently a non executive
director of Lawrd plc and Taylor Wimpey plc,
and previously a non executive director of
George Wimpey plc and Spectris ple.
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5 Kevin Dangerfield
Independent Non Executive Director

Kevin was appointed to the Board in January
2011 He s currently Chief Financial Officer
of The Morgan Crucible Company plc. He

has held a number of senior appointments
including European Finance Manager for
Virgin Retail Europe Group from 1996 to
1998 before becoming firstly Northern
Eviope Division Finance Manager in 1998
and then Group Finance Operations Manager
for London Internatianal Group plc from
1998 to 2000 Kewin was then Group
Financial Controller with The Morgan Cruable
Company plc from 2000 to 2006 before
bemng appotated to his current role

6. Jonathan Brooks
Independent Non-Executive Director

Jonathan Is a non executive director of
AVEVA Group plc, an LSE listed engineenng
IT software provider to the plant, power
and marine industnes and Xyratex Limited,
a NASDAQ listed provider of enterprise
class data storage sub-systems and
network technology He 15 also Chairman
of Picochip Inc., a venture capital-

backed company developing wireless
processors and a non executive director
of Sknll Holdings Ltd, a provider of online
payment systems Between 1995 and
2002, he was Chief Finangal Qfficer and

a dwecter of ARM Holdings plc fonathan
was appointed to the Board in 2004

7 Dr. Knshramurthy Rajagopal
Independent Non Executive Divector

Knshnamurthy joined the Board in November
2010 and has considerable expenence of
senior engagement in global engineenng
operations and in the supply of matenals,
equipment and services to the global
sermconductor and other high technology
industrnies He 1s currently Chairman of

both UMIP Ltd and HHV Pumps Ltd and

a non executive director of Spirax-Sarca
Engineenng plc, Bodycote plc and WS
Atkins plc He was an executive director of
the BOC Group plc and 1s a Fellow of the
Royal Academy of Engineenng Dr Rajagopal
15 a past Commissioner with the Audit
Commusston, an appontment he held for
three years
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Corporate Respensibility Review

Corporate Responsibility Review

At e2v we strongly believe that

we should consider the interests

of the global community when
conducting our business, ensuring
that we function in an ethical and
responsible way at all times. This
involves ensuring compliance

with our statutory requirements

and considering the impact of

our activities on society and the
environment at large, as well as acting
responsibly towards our customers,
suppliers, employees, shareholders

and communities.

Investors

e2v prarnates two waty communicabon
with current and potertal investers

Oui policy 15 to

~3 Ensure timely delvery of
information in lne with
regulatory requirements

-} Provide informaticn in paper
format whilst promoting
the electroric provision of
infermation via our investor
relations website

~% Make additioral presentations
to Investors and analysts as
required

-4 Retatn a finanaal PR
consultant to ensure all
communication 15 timely,
appropnate and in accordance
with best practice

e2v gets socil

As part of 82vs ohpctve to
meke use of socal media to
communicata more effectivety
with owr stakehciders including
global media and potential and
edsting employees we are now 1o
be found twesting al of our latest
news (twitter com/e2v) alongsida

pages on Facebook and Linkedin
Not forgetting wdeos on YouTube
showang some of our techinologies
n acton Try searchmng for fire
fighter proof thermal smagng’ to
sae our Argus camera under severs
cperabional abuse including from a
water cannon

Soaial media was also used 10
great effect i spreading the news
that we were holding an apporentice
open day at our Whoaosh! Leamng

Centre, contnbutng to a high
applicaticn level from over 100
people

Lirks to these and other sites and
an RSS foed can be found on
our homepage e2vcom, with a
separate ivestor RSS feed from
our investor pages
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Employees

82v recogneses the importance of
pecple to ts ongong success Its
competitveness in the market 1s
dependent on employing the nght
peopls with the nght skdls in the
busness.

Community

s2v operates n the heart of local
communibes The business 1s also an
ntegral part of those communities across
al e2v locations. As a consequence a2v
recogrnses the responsibility that comes
wath thes possbion

Environment

82v contnues to focus on MiNMmISNg
any adverse Impact on the ermaronment
stemmung from both the actmties of the
comparry and s employeas.

Supply chain

82v works to buid long temn
redabonships with s supphers and
customars encouraging ethucal and
emaonmental considerations i all ts
dealings

Our policyi1sto

— Comply with all legislation
relating to employee relations
In the countnes in which we
operate

-3 Mammtain an equal oppertunities
policy in line with, and going
beyond, regulations

—¥ Camply with, and where
possible exceed, health and
safety regulations

—3 Maintain a leaming and
development progremme
for employees, constantly
improving business performance
through talent management
and organisation succession
planning, including graduate and
apprentice schemes

—3 Facthitate and encourage two
way communmications at e2v,
including a secure whistie-
blowng process and regular
employee survey

—3 Maintam and benchmark a
policy ensunng e2v offers
competitive wark packages

-3 Create a great working
environment where people want
to wark

— Encourage all employees to ive
the Group’s key values

-3 Maumise employee engagement
through listening to all of our
employees and proactively
improving how we work
together

Our policy I1s to

~3 Make a positive contnbution
and show consideration to our
neighbours and the commumity
in which we operate

«43 Support local organisations
through chantable gving

-3 Promote an open, two way
diatogue with local communities
and stakeholders

-3 Support local schools and
leaming institutions

~-y Support leaming and
development in the local
community

Our policy 15 to

~3 Maintain operational and
management systems to facilitate
compliance with environmental
legislation

¥ Encourage all perscns working
on behalf of the Group, through
training and communications, to
take persenal responsibility to
mmumse ther adverse impact
on the environment and to
cantnbute towards meeting
Group objectives and targets

~3 Encourage environmentaity
sound design practices at all
stages of product lifecydes

—» Seek all practical ways to reduce
emissions to land, sea, air
and water through responsible
management of our business
processes

-3 Manage energy usage and
greenhouse gas emissions for
efficency and mimimal waste,
through appropnate investment
n process controls and
continuous improvement plans

-3 Use best avalable techniques to
mimmise waste, by preventing,
reducing, re-using or recovenng
(including recyching) waste
matenal

Our policy1sto

~3 Assess all potenuial suppliers
against an ethical and
environmental queshionnaire
pnor to being added to our
supplier lists

«3 Communicate and treat our
suppliers and customers with
farmess and courtesy as dictated
by our intemal values

—% Work with all of our customers
and supphers regarding
environmental intiatives,
encouraging them to help us to
Jontly reduce the environmental
impact of our work,

—3 Work in partnership with outr
supplers to enhance the quality
and perfurmance of the items
they supply

—3 Work n partnership with our
customers to develop and
improve both e2v's products
and the systems n which our
products are incorperated
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peopie and the planet and to uncerway for measwement agasist
mprove busness performance BITCS il CR Index.
Environmental o e PooPOTSIY  Latest rsatvos ot s2veciue
awareness and tha launct of our UK Cycle to
Thus year the average Work Scherme in conunchon with
measurement Envronmental Index soore for Cydascheme UK. Partiaipation
paricpants was 83% e2vhas in the scheme alows employeas
Business in the Cormmunity been measunng perfoamance 10 benefit from tax and natonal
(BITC) 15 a business led charty aganst BTC's Ervaronmental INsuranca savings aganst the hee
with a growang mesmbpership of Index snce 2008 and we made of bke and safety equpment
850 companies mchuding marty our second full subrmisson n
FTSE100, which advises suppors 2011 achieving a score of 95%
and chalenges companes {0 and takang the business nto the
creats a sustarable future ior

platnum band Plans ams now

Investors

—+  ez2v's membership of the FTSE4Good Index, the responsible
investment index calculated by global index provider FTSE
Group, was renewed 1n 2011

—  The Group continues to consider imely and accurate
communications with analysts and investors as a prionty

-+ ezv held an investor and analyst day in July 2010, where the
Group’s Strategic Plan for Growth was presented

Communication channels to investors continue to include the Annual
General Meeting (where sharehcltders have an opportunity to gquestion the
Board), half year and full year results presentations, and intenm trading
updates and Regulatory News Statements, as appropnate Onhine channels
include an investor area to e2v's website, which was updated in 2011. In
additian, the Group responds 1o individual requests for nformation

Employees

e2v’s core values remain a comerstone to the way in which we waork and
relate to each other, attracting and retaining the nght people to mamtamn
the engoing health and success of the business We endeavour to deliver
an emaronment where all our employees feel proud to work for us and
understand the impertance of embracing the values, of

-+ Integrity

- Connectivity

- Innovatton

-»  Raising the bar

The Group completed an employee action survey dunng the penod and
15 focused on undertaking vanous actions to address the key pnonties
identified

Our Smart Thinking Award & Recognition Scheme {STARS) remains

an important means by which we recogruse employees who make
valuable suggestions or who perfarm above and beyond therr nommal
responsibilities, with instant and quarterly awards available to celebrate
the achievements of both indnviduals and teams To support the Group's
customer centne focus, an addional award recognising excellence in a
customer first approach (both intemal and extemal) has been intraduced

We are also commutted to developing all of our people and have a
comprehensive, innovative and high quality leaming and devetopment
programme 1 place A management modular development programme
is being rolled out across the orgamsation to support our leaders i ther
positions
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All of these inttiatives are underpinned by our commuitment to creating a
discnmination free environment for our people, with a positive whistle-
blowing culture and where our polictes meet, and often exceed, legal
requirements, teading to best practice standards

e2v also continues to suppart STEM TEAM Essex (Saence, Technology,
Engineenng and Mathematics Network}, a UK wide orgamisation,
sponsared by the Depantment of Business Enterpnse and Regulatory
Reform ezv has around 20 ambassadors who facilitate at Group events
and go out into schools and cotleges to work with young people, raising
interest and awareness of careers in these subjects and developing a
pipeline of motivated and capable people into science, technology and
maths related careers

A further tranche (the seventh) of the Company’s Share Save scheme was
ssued m the penod

Awards and recognition

e2v has a long history of being a responsible business and 15 commutted
to building on its achievements

The BITC CR Index assesses the extent to which corparate responsibility
strategy I1s integrated wathin the organisations business practice Itis a
benchmark for companies’ management practices and their performance
In Apnl 2011 e2v achieved Platinum status for the emaronmental
component, Improving on its Gold status in 2009

The Royal Society for the Prevention of Acaidents audits our health and
safety performance annually against 10 sets of key cntena For the second
year In succession e2v have been awarded Gold for s performance and
improvemenis.

In May 2011, following a submission process whereby UK employees
completed a questionnaire asking about therr view of the Group's green
credentials, e2v was included in the fourth annual edition of The Sunday
Times 60 Best Green Compantes Only those organisations demonstrating
the highest environmental standards, with workfarces wholly engaged and
1n tune with therr green iitiatives, have made 1t onto the bist

e2v’s approach to corporate responsibility

At the core of our approach 1s the implementation of a nsk based
management system supported by a strong Health, Safety and
Environment (HSE) culture
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The pnmary objective of ezv 1s to avoid harm to people and the
environment We recognise the link between responsible HSE management
and performance and good bustness performance Qur key ohjectives are
to

—  Protect health
- Prevent injury
- Reduce environmental impact

Accidents are included in the statistics if they occumred dunng werking
time, including while travelling on company business or as a result of wark
{acadents on pnvate joumeys between home and work are excluded)

In the UK, reportable accadents are based on the requirements of the
Reporting of Injunes, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations
1995 {RIDDOR), in other countnes local regulations are used

Health, safety and environment (HSE) culture

— e2vis committed to a programme of continual improvement for
its productton and support service activities across the Group,
addressing all aspects of HSE Management

— e2vaims to respond to wider enviranmental concerns and
wherever possible help the wider community develop solutions
which protect the environment and have a positive econormic
impact

-+ e2vaims to continue the development of a strong HSE culture
with visible leadership and commitment from all levels of
management with effective engagement of all employees

Threughout 2010 we benchmarked our existing HSE practices through
intemal and 3rd party external audits This assisted in the review and
devalopment of the new Group HSE Managament System and to highbght
what can be mproved upon

All of the e2v sites, including sales offices, hold third party certification to
the Environmmental Management Standard 15014001 and Health and Safety
Management Standard OHSAS18001, with the exception of Santa Clara
which 15 due for cettification i 2011 e2v ensures access to competent
occupational advice across all sites

eav achieved Platinum status for the BITC environmental index, improving
on its Gold status first awarded in 2009

There were 10 (2005 18) Group Lost Time Incidents in the calendar year to
December 2010

Performance improvements

Qver the past 18 months e2v has set and reported on challenging targets
for improving HSE performance The HSE team manage programmes of
continual improvement to mamtan and improve our standards

The Group HSE objectives and targets include the protection of health,
targeting zero inaidents of occupational disease and other work related
!l-health, the prevention of injunes, targeting a reduction in lost time
njury rate (over one day) by 15% (by the end of 2012 relative to 2009),
and reduction in the environmental impact, targeting a reduction tn the
amount of energy consumed by 10% (by the end of 2012 relative to z009).
a reductton n the annual production of solid waste by 10% (by the end

of 2012 relative to 200¢) and an ncrease in the proportion of solid waste
sent for recycling to 70% by the end of zo12

A deusion has been made not te use carbon offsetting within e2v
therefore any changes In e2v's carbon footpnnt are as a direct resuit of
e2v’s activities

Community

- e2vsupports 10 (2010 9) core charitable erganisations
associated with its major faolities through direct donations
and money raised by employees and made 54 additional
separate donations in matched support of employee fundraising
activities

->  e2v supports the Whoosh' Learning Centre, based at our
headquarters in Chelmsford and which has nearly 4,000
members attending courses

-* e2vsupports the e2v foundation, a chantable investment fund,
run by Essex Community Foundation

> e2vis engaged with, and strives to play an active part in, the
communities in which our people live and work

> Our chanty committee has maintatned its global reach
by supporting chanties local to our global facilities, both
encouraging and supporting voluntary activity and fundraising
by employees

ezv employees have been engaged in a number of fundraising events
including the seling of unwanted [T equipment in Grenoble and New York
and supporting a MacMillan Coffee Moming across the UK sites where
employees baked cakes to raise money i support of MacMillan cancer
care nurses In addition ezv donated £6,600 (2010 £5,800) I 54 separate
matched funding awards, where employees had led money raising
activittes for their chosen chanties

This year ezv added £25,000 to the e2v foundation This was eligible for
a 50% uplift under the Govemment’s Grassroots Endowment Challenge
thereby bnnging the total added to £37.500 and the fund total to

¢ £140,000 In accordance with Essex Community Foundation nultes, £5.000
of the investment retum generated was released and donated by the
Chanties' Committee to good causes in the region

We also help our local communities by encouraging young people’s
interest in business, science and technology, working with nattonal
programmes such as Young Enterpnse and STEM TEAM

e2v continues to support the Whoosh! Learming Centre, run in partnership
with Essex County Council and the Leaming and Skills Counal Whoosh! 1s
open to both e2v employees and alt members of the tocal community and
has nearly 4000 (2010 700) members

Supply chain

Qur commodity management strategy 1s a continuously evolving global
sourang strategy that maumises commercial competitiveness whilst
mimimusing supply chain vutnerabiliies The Global procurement team
conlinues 10 dnve the consolidation of spend through chosen strategic
supptiers, developing selection processes including global spend
ageregation, savings roadmap and commodity speafic strategies

We aum to build long term pannership based relationships at every point
i our supply chamn, from matenal supply through to delivery and ongoing
service and support for our customers, maintaimng a focus on the quality,
safety, and avallability of our products and services whilst supporting
ethicat and environmentally aware business practices
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Annual Report and the audited finangal
staterments for the year ended 31 March 2011 The Group's consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intermational
Finangal Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
The Company finanoal statement has been prepared in accordance with
UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP)

Principal actvity

The Group's panapal actvity 1s the design and supply of speaalist
components and sub systems into niche sactors wathin the medical

and science, aerospace and defence and the commeraal and industnal
markets As discussed mn the Business Review, the Group I1s organised inta
business divisions which are supported by a number of group functions

The Group has manufactunng operations in the Unsted Kingdom (UK),
France, United States of Amenca (US) and Switzertand Dunng the year
the Group has expended its sales and distnbution operations into lapan
and China, complimenting its existing operations 1n the UK, US, Germany,
France and Hong Kong The Group also has an established global network
of agents and distnbutors covenng the Amencas, Europe, Middle East,
Afnca, Far East and Austraba

Review of business and future developments

A review of the year's operatrons, incluchng the Group's key performance
indrcators, along with the outlock for the coming year, s contained
the Chamaris and Chief Executive’s Statement, Business Review and
Corporate Responsibility Review

Results and dividends

The consolidated profit before taxabion amounted to £25,832,000
(2010 loss £9,720,000} The profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders
amounted (0 £19,492,000 (2010 loss £2,266,000)

As detailed 1n note 12, no dwvidends have been paid dunng the year {2010
£nil) An interm dwndend of £2,540,000 was paid on 27 May 2011 The
Directors recammend the payment of a final dvidend of £5,080,000 (2010
Enil)

Directors

The current members of the Board and the profiles of alt Directors at

the date of this report are set out above They all served throughout

the year and thereafter except for Dr Knshnamurthy Rajagopal and

Kevin Dangerfield who were appointed as Non-Executive Directors on 1
November 2010 and 28 January 2011, respectively lan Godden also served
as a Non Executrve Director pror to bus resignation on 28 fanuary 2011

The beneficat and non-benefiaal interests, including family interests, of
the Directors in the share capital of the Company and details of Directors’
share options are detailed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’ indemnity insurance

The Company has indemmified the Directors of the Company and all its
subsichanes agamst ability in respect of proceedings brought by third
parties, subject to the conditions set out in the Companies Act 2006 Such
qualifinng third party indemnity provision was 1n force durng the year and
15 still in place as at the date of this report
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Principal risks and uncertainties

As noted m the Corporate Govemance Report, the Board has adopted
processes to identify, evaluate and manage the sigmificant nsks faced by
the Group This is coupled with the significant nsks and uncertainties faced
by the Group that are set out below

Global political and economic conditions

Demand for the Group’s products and services are a factor of wider
economic condiions Dunng an economic slowdown i 15 possible

that demand for certain products and services provided by the Group
may reduce Furthermore the Group’s products are supplied for use

into industnes which are dependent on and subject to, govemment
pobaes, national and intemational pohitical considerations and budgetary
constraints which are outside the control of the Group These nsks are
mitigated to a degree by the diverse nature of the Group’s products and
its expanding geographucal spread Furthermore the current economic
climate may increase the nsk that pariies with whom the Group trades,
both customers and supplers, become unable to meet thew commitments
to the Group The Group seeks to manage this nsk by performing credit
checks and taking third party comfort, including letters of credit, where
appropnate

Achievement of growth strategy

The Group has undertaken a strategic review dunng the year The strategy
1s focused on market expansion into sub-systems and solutions, with
particular focus on s base apphications and two growth applications
(Semiconductor hfecycle management and Industnal processing systems)
combmed with geographic expansion m the Asian and North Amencan
markets The Group’s future growth and success depends upon the
successful implementation of this strategy and its ability to gain traction n
these markets To be competitive in these areas the Group is Investing in
its research and development, manufactunng, marketing, customer service
support and distnbution networks

Markets and customers

The Group can be subject to wanations in profitability attnbutable to
indmidual product lines and markets as a result of the timing and level of
orders, the introduction of new product bnes and the apphcable legislative
and regulatory framework The Group operates in a number of diverse

yet specialist markets supplying a smatl number of dommnant customers

In these markets As a result, the Group has speaific sector dependencies
which are influenced by changes in the sourang policy of these customers
which may result ffom changes in customer policy and re-positioning
within the value chamn

Competition including advancement in technology

The Group’s business 15 the design and manufacture of highly techmical
and specalised products requinng ntput from skilled personnel There can
be no absolute assurance that any of the Group’s products will achieve
the required speafication or deliver to the customers expectations

and products are continually at nsk of being superseded as a result

of impravemnents in altemative technologies that prowde the same ar
comparable functionabty Thus the Group may incur significant babilities
for wammanty claims, defects of its products or product recalls The future
success of the Group alse depends upen the Group’s abibity to retain
and develop skilled personnel, The Group seeks to minimise these nsks
through managed and focused research and devetopment programmes,
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specfication certainty, clear contractual arrangements and appropnate staff
remuneration and incentive amangements

Production and supply

Across the Graup there are a number of strategic partnerships, which in
the event of cessation of these relationships or an interruption to the
supply of these products could result i a disruption to the business

The Group also relies on extemnal suppliers for specialist matenals and
sub-assemblies, supply of foundry, packaging and test services and small
quantities of highly specialised products In penods of imgh demand for
these services, the Group may expenence delays in the supply as suppliers
pnontise customers with volume orders Certain compenents are sourced
from overseas Events outside of the Group's contrel, ncluding natural
disasters, could result in delayed delivenes of these products This was
apparent following the Japanese earthquake, where a Group wide team
was established to evaluate, monitor and contain any supply chain
disruption Events could also disrupt the Group's manufactunng capabilivies
at their vanous locations lmespective of the adeguacy of insurance
coverage, this could cause delays in production and loss of sales and
customers A tange of hazardous matenals 1s used at the manufactunng
sites Failure to provide a safe wotk environment for its employees could
have a number of negative outcomes, including fines and penalttes,

loss of key customers and reputational damage The Group 1s commetted
to mantaiming a safe ptace of wark and has i place quality and safety
processes Failure to protect the Group's intellectual property, pnnaipatly
confidential know how, could result in a toss of sales The Group mitigates
this nsk by the use of operational and management systems, including

a requirement that suppliers, customers and employees adhere to
confidentiaiity obligations with respect to the treatment and disclosure of
such know-how Furthermore, patent protection 15 used to protect certain
products and manufactunng processes from competition

Environmental and regulatory

The Group Is subject to numerous laws and regulations both in the

UK and intematignally, which regulate health and safety, employment,
enviranmental, taxation, exports and other operating items Failure to
comply with such legislation and regutations may harm the business or
the Group’s reputation The Group draws upon the expenence of relevant
ermnployees and outside adwisors n order to ensure compliance with

the various requirements A particular focus for the Group's US growth
aspwations 15 the defence market These are dependent upon the Group’s
US facdity mantaining its Special Secunty Agreement which allows It to
handle classified and controlled unclassified matenals The Group employs
indviduals with relevant expentence in this area to ensure comphance
with the vanous requirements of this agreement Additional environmental
legrslatron may Increase operating costs that the Group mitigates, where
passible, through improved efficences Unforeseen changes in legislation
can have an adverse impact on operations

Financial nsks

The Group Is exposed to foreign currency and interest rate nsks Functional
currency transactional nsk anses when operating subsidianes enter

into transactions denominated in currencies other than their functeonal
currencies This nsk 15 managed by hedging significant exposures, usuatly
by means of forward exchange contracts Translabional exposure anses on
the translation of overseas eamings, Investments and relevant borrowings
nto Sterting for consolidated reporting purposes Net asset translationat
nsk 1s mitigated, in part, by foreign currency borrowings The Group does
not hedge transiational exposure ansing from profit and loss items Due
to the Group's debt obligations, an exposure exists to movements in
nterest rates, which 1s managed by the use of hedging arrangements
Furthermore the loan facities entered inte by the Group include a number

of finanaal and non-financal covenants Breach of these covenants would
constitute events of default under such facilities which maght result n
these bomowings becoming immediately repayable Forecasts indicate
that the current organic growth plan can be managed within existing
covenant levels Credit nsk to finanaal institutions 1s mited by restncting
the range of counterparties to those with high credit ratings  Liquidity nsk
1s managed by monitenng forecast and actual cash fAows and ensunng
that sufficent committed faciities are m place to meet possible downside
SCenancs

Restructunng programmes

Dunng the previous finanaial year the Group had instigated vanaous cost
reduction and restructunng initiatives which affect the Greup’s operations
pnmanly i France and the UK The programme in the United Kingdom

15 now complete and that in france 15 expected to be completed in

the first half of the year ending 3t March 2012 The advanced nature

of these programmes s such that the level of nsk associated with the
execution and finanaal impbcatians of these programmes 15 considerably
reduced compared with the pnor year, with the current forecast costs

of undertaking the programmes being £24 million, compared with the
estimated cost of £26 million this bme last year These programmes
ternporanly reduced staff morale and productian was disrupted in the first
half of the year ended 31 March zo11 and resulted i increased overdue
delivenes to customers The Group continues to seek to minimise these
nsks through planned transition amangements and increased levels of
employee and customer engagement

Property, plant and equipment

Land and bustdings at the Group’s facility n Grencble were acquired at fair
value i July 2006 and have not subsequently been revalued In May 2010,
following the sale of the Group’s site n Lincoln at the end of the previous
finanaal year, it has acquired a new site in the area which pancipally
houses the e2v Microwave Technology Centre

Although there have been no formal valuations camed out for the
remainder of the Group's land and bulldings, the Directors believe the
market value to be in excess of baok values

Research and development

The Group continues to commit significant resources to existing product
enhancement as well as the mtroduction of new products for established
and emerging markets Resousrce 1s also invested in a number of
collaborative relationships with key universities to achieve leverage,
knowledge exchange and access to and training of talented young
scentists and engirseers This is achieved through vanous mechanisms
including a number of Knowledge Transfer partnerstups Customers fund
directly a proportion of expenditure on praduct enhancement and new
product development whilst the amount funded by the Group amounted
10 £12,390,000 {2010 £12,072,000)

Takeover Directive

Pursuant to sgg2 of the Companies Act 2006, which implements the
EU Takeovers Directive, the Company 15 required to disclose certain
information Such disclosures, which are not covered elsewhere In this
Annual Report, include the following

—  The Company’s Articles of Association (Articles) give power to
the Board to appoint directors, but require directors to submut
themselves far election at the first Annual General Meeting
following their appointment and for re etection where they
have been a director at each of the preceding two Annual
General Meetings and were not appointed or re-appointed by
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the Company at, or since either such meeting The Articles may
be amended by special resolution of the shareholders and are
available to view on the Company’s website

-+ The Board of Directors is responsible for the management of the
business of the Company and may exeraise all the powers of the
Company subject to the provisions of the relevant statutes, the
Company’s Memorandum of Association and the Artictes The
Articles contain specific provisions and restrictions regarding
the Company’s power to borrow money Powers relating to
the1ssuing and buying back of shares are also included in the
Articles and such authonties are renewed by shareholders each
year at the Annual General Meeting

> Certain agreements of the Group take effect, alter or terminate
upon a change of control of the Group following a takeover,
inctuding 1ts bank loan agreements, company share plans, and
certain commercial trading contracts

- There are no restrictions on the transfer of securities,
restrictions on voting nghts and agreements between
shareholders

Share capital

Details of the 1ssued share capital, together with movements in the
Company’s issued share capital are given in note 25

As at the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this reponr, the
Company's 1ssued share capital 1s 214,865,300, with @ nominal value of
£10,743,265

The Company has one class of ordinary share which cames no nght to
fixed Income Each share cammes the nght to one vote at general meetings
of the Company

There are no specfic restnctions on the size of a holding nor on the
transfer of shares, which are both govemed by the general provisions of
the Articles and prevaiking legislation The Dewrectors are not aware of any
agreement between the holders of the Company’s shares that may result
In restnctions on the transfer of secunties or on voting nghis

Creditor payment policy

The Group does not have a standard or code of conduct which deals
specifically wath the payment of supplers, however whenever the Group
15 satisfied that the suppler has provided the goods or semices in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions 1t seeks to abide by the
payment terms agreed with the individual suppler The Group's average
creditor payment perod at 31 March 2011 was 59 days (2010 76 days)

Chantable and political donations

Details of chantable donations are given in the Corparate Respensibility
Rewview Mo donattons were made to any political parties
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Interests 1n voting shares

At 18 May 2011 the Company had been notified of the following Interests
of 3% or more i the Company’s ordinary shares

No of

Percentage of ordinary

ardinary share  shares of 5p

capital each

Aberforth Partners 2038 43,785,800

AXA Investment Managers 1035 22.248,187
SVG Advisers 917 19,705,169 \
Hermes Pensicns Management 874 18,777,926 .

Schroder Investment Management 604 12,967,222

Legal and General investment

Management 597 12 837 090

Aviva Investors 539 11,578 531

Henderson Global Investors 513 11,013 347

Disabled employees and employee involvement

The Group endeavours to provide equality of opportunity In recruiting,
training, promoting and career development to all, irespective of race,
ethnicity, religion, sexual onentation, gender or age The Group gives
full consideration to applications for empleyment from a persen with
a disability where a person with a disability can adequately fulfil the
requirements of the role and workplace adjustments can be made te
facilitate this appeointment

Where existing employees become disabled 1t 1s the Group's policy,
wherever practicable, to provide workplace adjustments to ensure
continuing employment under normal temns and conditions, and to
provide traming and career development and promotion opportunities,
wherever appropnate

A review of employee involvement 15 given i the Corporate Responsibility
Review

Going concern

As discussed in the Chairmar's and Chief Executive’s Staternent, the
Group's markets appear to have largely stabilised and the Group’s cost
base has been, and is continuing, to be reduced The Group’s plans also
provide suppaort for its growth ininatives with higher levels of expenditure
for tesearch and development and capital expenditure for regular
equipment replacement and new product introduction than i the current
year

As a result, in part due t0 improving markets, the Group has retumed to
undertying growth, this performance has enabled the Group to negotiate
an amendment to 1ts banking facilites to enable the Group to take control
of dvidend payments and enable an eartier than antiapated retum to
dividend payments

The Directors of the Group have prepared detailed profit and cash flow
forecasts through to 30 September 2012 and have reviewed the level of
the order book and order intake 1n prepanng these plans, the Directors
have cansidered the nsks to the activities in the business including
those ansing from the focus on meetmg customers’ needs and the
implementation of the Group’s strategy inihatives




e2v technologies plc | Annual Report and Financial Statements 2011

The Directors consider that the Group will remain wathin its covenant
requirements for the farecast penod and that there 15 increased headroom
agamnst all covenants, and therefore, the Directors beheve that it s
apprepnate to prepare the finanaal statements an a going concem basis

Directors’ statement of responsibiities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and Finanaal
Statements in accordance with law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare finanaal statements for
each year Under the provisions of this law, the Directors have prepared the
consolidated finanaal statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the European Umon and the Company finanoal statements i accordance
with United Kingdom (UK) Accounting Standards and applicable taw

In prepanng thase financial statements, the Diregtors are required to

»  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

> make judgements and estimates that are reasonabte and
prudent,

-+ state that the consolidated financial statements have comphed
with IFRS as adopted by the European Uniton, subjectto any
matenal departures being disclosed and explained, and

-+ state for the Company financial statements whether the
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures being disclosed and explaned

The Directers confirm that they have complied wath the above
requirements i prepanng the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the finangal position of
the Group and enable them to ensure that the consolidated finanoal
statements comply with Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other imegulanties

The Annual Repart for the year ended 31 March 2011 1s published 1n
hard copy pnnted form and made avalable on the Group's website The
Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the Annual
Report on the website 1n accordance with UK legislation goverming the
preparation and dssemination of finanaat statements Access to the
website 15 avallable from cutside the UK, where comparable legistation
may he different

Responsibility statements under the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules

Each of the Directors, as at the date of this repart, confirms to the best of
his knowledge that

> the finanoal statements give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company
and the Group, and i

> the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the Group together with a description of the
prinaipal nsks and uncertainties that it faces

Provision of information to the auditor

Having made enguines of fellow Directors and of the Company’s auditor,
each of the Directors at the date of approval of this report confirms that

- to the best of his knowledge and belief, there 15 no information
(that s information needed by the Group's auditor in connection
with preparing their report) of which the Company’s auditoris
unaware, and

—  the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have
taken as a Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is
aware of that information

Auditor

A resolution to reappoint Emst & Young LLP as auditor will be put to the |
members at the Annual General Meeting

By order of the Board

TNy N

Charlotte Parmenter
Company Secratary

3 June 2011

ez2v technologes plc
Company No 4439718
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e2v technologies plc recogmises the wnportance of, and s commuited

to, high standards of corporate govemance and as such the Board
acknowledges 1ts contrbution to achieving management accountability,
improving nsk management and creating shareholder value This
statement explans how the Group has applied the main and supporting
pnnciples of corporate govemance and descnibes the Group's compliance
with the provisions set out an Section 1 of the Combined Code on
Corporate Govemance pubbshed by the Financial Reporting Council in june
2008

Statement by the Directors on compliance with the Combined
Code

The Group has complied with the provisions set out i Section 1 of the
Combined Code throughout the year

The Board of Directors

The Group 1s headed up by a Board which compnses the Charman,

Chief Executive, Group finance Director and the Nom Executive Directors
Anthony Reading 15 the Serwor Independent Director and Charman of the
Remuneration Committee All of the Non-Executive Directors are considered
by the Board to be independent Their biographies above demonstrate
suffictent expenence to brng independent judgement to the Board and
the success of the Group The Board evaluates its own performance and
considers itself effectrve and has rot identified any areas of concem

The Articles of Association require that Directors retire in the third

calendar year followtng the year in which they were elected or re elected
Any Director appointed by the Board 1s required to submit themselves

for re-election at the next Annual General Meeting after appaintment

Dr Knshnamurthy Rajagopal and Kevin Dangerfield, Non-Executive
Directors, will therefore be submitting themselves for election at the
Annual General Meeting In additron Kerth Attwood will retire by rotation at
this Annual General Meeting and submits mself for re election jonathan
Brooks also retires by rotation, however he will not be offenng himself for
re election and will retire from the Board at the Annual General Meeting

Role of the Board members

The Non Execuive Directors’ pnmary responsibilities are to

-+ ensure the pnnaples of Corporate Governance are applred,
-»  approve the strategy for the business,

-+ ensure the strategy 1s being implemented, and

- provide independent advice on the implementatron of the
strategy and other day to day matters where their expertence 15
relevant

Fhe Executve Directors’ pnmary responsibilities, together with members of
the senior management team, are to

- formulate the strategy of the business and obtain Board
approval, and

»implement the approved strategy subject to agreed levels of
authority

There exssts a clear division of responsibilittes between the Chaiman
and the Chief Executive The Chawman's pnmary role includes ensunng
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that the Board functions property, that it meets its obligations and
responsibilities and that its organisation and mechanisms are i place
and are working effectively The Chief Executive’s pnmary role 15 to provide
overall leadership and vision in developing, with the Board, the strategic
direction of the Group Additionally, the Chief Executive 15 responsible for
the management of the overall business to ensure strategic and business
plans are effectively implemented, the results are monitored and reported
to the Board and financal and operational objectives are attained

The Board's responsibilities are discharged by way of monthly Board
reviews (except in August and December) and other Board meetings,

as required to approve matters beyond the authonty limits of the Chief
Executrve in additton there 1s attendance at meetings of the Committees
of the Board as well as attendance at regular business drvision and
functien reviews when sentor members of executive management, who
are not Board members, attend Matters beyond the authonty imits of the
Chief Executive inctude, for example, the approvatl of customer quotes over
the approved finanaal lrmit set by the Board, the acquisition and disposal
of property, certain activities relating 1o mergers and acquisitions as well as
approval of the annual budget

Conflicts of mterest

In ine with the Compariies Act 2006, the Company has established a
robust pracedure requinng Directors to seek appropnate authonsation
pror to entenng into any outside business interests Actual or patential
conflicts of interest are reviewed by the Board

Board meetings and attendance

In addition to the Committee meetings noted above, there were 16 general
Board meetings dunng the year All Commuttee and Board meetings held in
the year were quorata The Board also convened ad hoc meetigs dunng
the year to deal with specfic business requirements The fuli details of all
Board and Commuttee meetings and attendances 1s shown in the following
table

Audit Remuneration Nomuination
Board Committee Committee Commitiee

Number of meetings 16 3 9 3
C Geoghegan 15 - 8 3
K Attwood 6 - - 3
C Hindson 16 - - -
A Reading 15 3 9 3
J Brooks 16 3 °]

K Rajagopakt S - - -
K Dangerfield® 2 - - -
I Godder® 12 3 - -

(1) Appownted on 1 November 2010
{2) Appointed an 28 January 2011
(3) Resigned an 28 January 2011,
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Prinaipal Board committees

The Board has established the following commuttees whose indvidual
terms of reference have been reviewed dunng the year

Audit Committee

The Commuttee i1s chaired by Jonathan Brooks and has met three times
dunng the year lan Godden was a member of the Commuttee pnor

to his resignatron as a Non-Executive Director The other members of
the Commuttee are Anthony Reading and Kewvin Dangerfield, wha was
appointed to the Committes upon his appotntment on 28 January 2011
Jonathan Brooks and Kewvin Dangesfield are deemed to have recent

and relevant finanaat expenence The Chairnan, Chief Executive and
Group Finance Barector attend Audit Committee meetings by invitation
and the audit partner attended two meetings dunng the penod At
meetings reviewing the half-yearly and full year results the Non Executive
Directors exerase their nght for discussions with the audit partner where
no Executive Directors are present The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee include

»  keeping under review the effecthiveness of the financial
reporting and internal control policies and procedures for the
identification, assessment and reporting of risks,

»  reviewing the arrangements for what 1s commonly known as
“whistle blowing”,

-+ considering the requirements for establishing an internal audit
function,

-+ making recommendations to the Beard in relation to the
appointment and re-appointment of the external auditors as
well as overseeing the selection process of any new audit
appomntment,

- keeping under review the relattonship with the external auditors
including assessments of independence and objectivity as well
as fee levels and terms of engagement,

> reviewing the findings of the audit wath the external auditors,
and

->  reviewing the consistency of accounting polictes en a year to
year basis and across the Group

The Audit Committee monitors fees pad to the auditors for non audit
work. Dunng the year £18,000 of non audit work fees were paid The
Company engages other independent firms of accountants to perdorm tax
consulting and other consulting work, The Committee has moniored the
tevel of non audit serces provided by the extemal auditar with a view to
ensunng objectvity, independence and cost effectiveness

The Board continues to review the key nsks to the business through the
Group’s nisk management process, managed by the Group Finance Director

Remuneration Commuttee

The Committee 1s chaired by Anthony Reading and has met nine times
dunng the year Other members of the Commuttee are jonathan Brooks
and ¢hns Geoghegan The Chief Executive and Human Resources Director
within the Group attend all meetings (but the Chief Execulive 1S not
nvolved in deading his own remuneration) The Group Finance Director
attends when requested The terms of reference of the Commuttee include

-r  agreeing with the Board the framework or broad policy
for the remuneration of the Executive Directors and other
members of executive management, as well as reviewing the
appropnateness and relevance of the policy,

~  determining targets for any performance related pay schemes
and approving total annual payments under the schemes,

-+ reviewing all share incentive plans, the related performance
targets and all awards made under the schemes,

> determining the indmidual remuneration packages of senior
management within the agreed policy as well as contractual
arrangements, including penston provisions,

» determiming the procedure for vetting, authonsing and
re-imbursement of claims for expenses for all Directors, and

> establishing selection criteria, terms of reference and selection
and employment of remuneration consultants

Full details of Directors’ remuneration and policies applied by the Board
are set out in the Dwrectors’ Remuneration Report.

Nomination Committee

The Commuttee ts chaired by Chns Geoghegan The other members of the
Committee are Keith Attwoad and Anthony Reading Jonathan Brooks had
in the previous year jomed the Committee for the purposes of appointing
a new Chainman of the Board, following this he attended one further
Commuttee meeting dunng the year at which paint he stepped down from
the Committee The Committee has met three times dunng the year The
terms of reference of the Committee include

- regular review of the structure, size and compesition of the
Board,

-+ formal, rigoreus and transparent procedures for new
appointments to the Board,

> the formal selection and nominations for Board approval of any
new Board appointments, and

-»  provision of recommendations to the Board regarding
succession, re-appointment and membership of the Audit and
Remuneration Committees

Dunng the year specialist recnitment consultants adwised on candidates
for the two Non-Executive Director roles based on a profile and detatted
job descniption provided by the Group All short listed candidates were
mteriewed individually by the Directors before a final selecton was made
and a recommendation made to the Board

Induction and training

Any new directors will recesve induction upon their appointment to the
Board cavenng the actvitres of the Group and its key business and
financial nsks, the terms of reference of the Board and its Committees and
the latest financal information of the Group Ongoing training 1s provided
as necessary Directors may consult with the Company Secretary at any
time on matters related to thew rele on the Board All Directors have
access to independent professional advice at the Group's expense where
they judge it necessary to discharge therr duties, with requests for such
advice being authonsed by the Chasrman or the Company Secretary

Performance evaluation of the Board

The Chairman and Company Secretary undertook a performance
evaluation of the Board which required an assessment, by each indwvidual
director, of the performance of the Board and s Committees by way

of an anonymous questionnaire and ratings process The results of

this assessment were reviewed by the Board and there were no areas

of concern The Senior Independent Non Executive Director also led a
performance review of the Chairman, which required an assessment, by
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each Director, of the peformance of the Chairman This assessment was
reviewed by the Board and there were no areas of concem

Communication with shareholders

The Annual Report and Financral Statements and the Half Yeardy Financial
Report provide 1nvestors with a balanced view of the Group’s actmities and
performance The half yearly results were distnbuted to all shareholders in
November 2010 Investors are also welcome to attend the Annual General
Meeting Apart from the Annual General Meeting, the pancgal form of
communication with private mvestors 15 the Company’s website which s
updated regulary with Company imformation

The Chamman 1s available to institutiona! investors and the pnnapal
contact points are the Chief Executive and Group Finance Director The
Senior Independent Non Executive Director, Anthony Reading, 1s also
available to whom investors may address any concems they may have
Presentations are given to mdividuat institutions, or on a Group basis If
prefemred, following the announcement of half-yearty and full year resulis
Site tours and ad-hoc meetings are also aranged where requested

Control environment and internal controls

The Drrectors acknowledge that they are responsibte for the Group's
system of intemai control and for reviewing its effectiveness and have
accordingly reviewed the effectiveness of this dunng the year The system
15 designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of falure to achieve
the Group's strategic objectives, and can only provide reascnable and not
absolute assurance against matenal rmisstatement of loss

An ongeing process, in accordance with the gudance of the Tumbull
Committee on internal control, has been established for identifying,
evaluating and managing the signtficant nsks faced by the Group This
process has been in place throughout the year under review and up to the
date of approval of the financal statements The Board regulary reviews
the process

In addition the Board cansiders the significance of environmental, sogal

and govemance matters relevant to the busmness of the Group as part of
1ts regular nsk assessment procedures and Board constitution as detailed
n the Corporate Responsibility Review and n this section

The Group’s key nsk management processes and system of intemal control
procedures nclude the following

Management structure- The Group has adopted procedures for the
delegation of authonty and authonsation levels, segregation of duties and
other control procedures Appaintments to the most serer management
positions within the Group require Board approval.

Share capital structure Information about the share capital structure of the
Company 15 discussed in the Directors’ Report and in note 25

Identification and evaluation of business nsks The major finanaal,
commercial, legal, regulatory and operating nsks wathin the Group are
denufied through & range of review meetings at the relevant management
level. Senior management are also involved in the preparation of an
annual nsk assessment report which 1s reviewed by the Board
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Information and financial reporting systems The Group’s comprehensive
planning and financial reporting procedures include detailed operational
budgets for the year ahead and a three year rolling business plan,

both of which are approved by the Board Performance 1s monitored

on a regular basts through monthly reporting and regular forecast
updates Management and specalists within the Finance Department are
responsible for ensunng the appropnate mantenance of financial records
and processes that ensure all financial information 1s relevant, reliable, in
atcordance with the applicable laws and regulations and distnbuted both
intemally and externally in a tmely manner A review of the consolidatren
and finanaal statements 15 cornpleted by management te ensure that the
financal position and resielts of the Group are appropnately reflected All
financial information published by the Group 1s subject to the approval of
the Audit Committee

Investment appraisal. All capital expenditure and research and
development projects require detailed wntten proposals and go through
stnct authonsation processes All acquisitions are subject to Board
approval and commerual, legal and finanaal due diligence 1s camed out if
a business 15 to be acquired

Throughout the Group there are clear lines of delegated authonty covenng
the full range of financal commitments A schedule of delegated authonty
for the Board to the Chief Executive 1s agreed annually and items requinng
Board approval are either agreed at monthly Board meetings or at
ntervening meetings specfically amranged for the purpose

At the monthly Board meetings, the Non-Executive Directors review the
reports presented to them by the Chief Executive and Group Finance
Director, which include a rewiew of the financial resuits This review
compares current year with previous year and the annual operting ptan
as well as a cumrent year forecast and order book levels

At the current tume the Board are of the opinion that a formal intemat
audit function 1s not considered necessary due to the structure and size of
the Group, widespread exacutive invelvernent in the day to day business
and the levels of review undertaken by the executve management and
reported to the Board

A formal “whistle blowing™ policy 1s operated and 1s included in the
Group's employee handbook.

On behalf of the Board

~/ L

Jonathan Brooks
Chaiman of the Audit Committee

3 June 2011
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commuttee 15 responsible for recommending to the
Board the framework and broad policy for the remuneration of the

Chief Executive, Group Finance Director and such other members of the
executive management as It 1s requested to consider The remuneration
of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors 1s @ matter reserved for

the Executive Directors Members of the Commuttee are appainted by

the Board and thetr terms of reference are avallable on the Company's
website Anthony Reading cumently chaws the Committee, which meets

at least twice a year, and «ts other members are Chns Geoghegan and
Jonathan Brooks The Board considers that all members of the Committee
are independent directors Chns Geoghegan 1s a member of the
Commuttee because the Board considers it essential that the Chairman be
involved in setting remuneration policy (@ithough he 1s not party to any
discussion directly relating to his own remuneration) The Chief Executive
15 gven notice of all meetings and has the nght to attend them, and 1s
consulted on the remuneration of other executives However, the Cheef
Executive does not take part in discussions that relate directly to his own
remuneration

When determining the pay of Executive Directars, the Committee takes
Into account the pay and employment conditions of employees throughout
the Group In this regard, the Commuttee ensures {wia regular interaction
with the Group’s human resources teams) that it is kept fully informed

of all relevant group-wide remuneration related 1ssues and ensures that
the same broad remuneration pnnciples are used when designing the
wider emplayee remuneration policies The Chaiman of the Remuneraticn
Commuttee regularly consuits with the Group HR Director, who also attends
Committee meetngs

Following a tender process, the Commuttee appointed Deloitte LLP in
March 2011 as its independent adwiser Prior to this, the Committee had
no formally appointed adviser on remuneration policy However it has
sought advice from Hewitt New Bndge Street wha provided services to the
Company in connection with the operation of the Company's remuneration
armangements Hewtt New Bndge Street provide no other services to the
Company,

Remuneration policy

The overall policy appled for the year ended 31 March 2011 and which
will apply for the year ending 31 March 2012 1S to ensure that Executive
Directors are fairty and competitively remunerated and incentvised in

a manner consistent with the Group's strategic objectves The cument
remuneration packages combine basic salary, benefits and pension
contnbutions together with a performance related annual bonus and
share incentive awards The Committee believes that the overall packages
offered to Executive Directors should prowide the nght batance of fixed
and performance-related pay and be apprapnate for the sze, scale and
geographic scope of the organisation as well as be competitive relative to
other companies within its sector The Committee considers general pay
conditions of employees in the Group when determining remuneration
levels for the Executrve Directars

In line with the Assocation of Batish Insurers’ Guidelines on Responsible
{nvestment Disctosure the Commuttee will ensuse that the incentive
structure for Executive Directors and semior management will not raise
environmental, social or governance (ESG) nsks More generally, with
regand to the overall remuneration structure there 15 no restnction on the
Commuttee which prevents it from taking into account ESG matters, nor
more general operational nsks

Dunng March and Apnt 2011, the Committee conducted an independent
review of the executive remuneration arrangements The fndings of this
review were

— basic salaries for the Executive Directors were positioned below
the median - for the Chief Executive, the salary was positioned
below the lower quartile, and

-+ on a total remuneration basis, positioning was also below
median (and below lower-guartile for the Chief Executive)

Following this review, the Committee considered how best to ensure that
the remuneration packages are sufficently competitive whilst mamtarning
a strong Iink to Group performance Afer consultation with key nvestors,
the Committee concluded that moderate salary adjustments would be
made as well as certain changes to the annual bonus plan This was
considered to be a more appropnate approach than making significant
salary adjustments which would constitute a fixed and ongomng cost to
the Group The result of the changes 1s to pasition the Chief Executive’s
remuneration package coser to {(but still below) the median and the Group
Finance Director's package at the medizn More detaiks of the changes are
provided in the sections below

Basic salary and/orfees

Basic salary for each Executve Director 1s determined taking account of
the indnadual’s performance and responsibiliies and comparable market
rates More particularty, the Committee reviews benchmark data provided
by independent remuneration consuitants sourced from two groups of
comparues as follows

- agroup compnsing broadly similar sized companies from the
Electronic & Electrical Equipment, Aerospace & Defence and
Technology Hardware & Equtpment sectors, and

- agroup comprising companies from all sectors (excluding
financial compames) of a broadly simslar size in terms of market
capitalisatian, turnover and international scope Basic salary is
reviewed annually and 15 the only element of remuneration that
15 pensionable

Following the review outhined above, the Committee approved an increase
of 6% for the Executive Directors, with the increase taking effect from 1
October 2011 These were the first such adjustments for three years it is
antiapated that similar adjustments will be made next year, subject to
continued performance Therefore, the salanes of the Executive Directors
for the forthcoming year, effectve 1 October 2011, will be Keith Attwood -
£268,000, Charles Hindson - £212,000

Fees for the Chawman and Non-Execuirve Directors are detemuned taking
account of the indaidual’s responsibilities induding chainng Cormmittees
of the Board, time required to devote to the role and comparable market
rates

Benefits

Benefits compnse the provision of a company car or car allowance and
health insurance Non-Executive Directors do not recerve any benefits

Pensions

The Group operates a defined contnbution, HM Revenue and Customs
approved, pension scheme and atso makes contnbutions into indwidual
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personal pension amangements where these are required The Company
makes centnbutions of 15% of basic salary to the relevant pension
schemes in respect of Executive Directors Executive Directors are entitled
to enhance this thraugh salary saenfice amangements and additional
voluntary contnbutions subject to HM Revenue and Customs hmits
Nen-Executive Directors’ fees are non pensionable

Performance-related annual bonus

An annuat bonus 1s payable to Executive Directors subject to the
attainment of speafic tangets which are based on Group performance

The nommal maxamum bonus opportumity 15 100% of basic salary Non-
Executive Directors are not entitled to a bonus As previously reperted, the
Remuneration Commuttee reserves the nght, in exceptional arcumstances,
to amend the targets dunng the year if it feels that changes, if such factors
as the marketplace or the Group's strategy, have resulied in the existing
targets no longer providing an appropnate incentive to the ndnidual No
target amendments were made in the curent finanaal year

Far the year ended 31 March 2012, the Commuittee ntends to maintain the

cash bonus opportunity that 1s immediately payable following the year end
at 100% of basic salary for maximum performance However, as a result

of maintaining basic salanes at relatively low levels, a fusther bonus in the

form of the Company’s shares for a value of up to 40% of basic salary may
be eamed for maxumum performance, but defemmed for a three year pened

This additional cpportunity is intended to improve the overalt
competitveness of the package and, through the introduction of a
“clawback™ mechanism {see below}, encourage greater focus on long term
performance

In addition, having considered the recommendation in the new Corporate
Governance Code, in order to protect the Group and shareholders in
exceptional crcumstances of misstatement or misconduct a “clawback™
provision will be troduced to allow the Group to reclaim the deferred
element under certain arcumstances

The percentage of maxamum potential bonus that 1s payable for on
target performance will be reduced so that the target bonus opportunity
(as a percentage of basic salary) also remains broadly unchanged This
will ensuze that the Executive Directors only receive additronal reward if
supenor performance 5 achieved

Share incentives

The Group's policy is to align the mnterests of employees with those
of shareholders To achieve this, the Remuneration Committee has
established the following schemes

-+ Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP),

> Executive Share Option Plan (ExSOP),
- Share Incentive Plan (SIP), and
—  Share Save Scheme (SAYE)

in Summer 2010, the Committee conducted a review of the operation
of the Group’s share incentive amangements dunng the year, which
incorporated a consultation with the Company’s major shareholders, to
ensure that they remain effeciive, fully reflect the Group’s arcumstances
and take due account of market and best practice The results of this
review are discussed betow

Service contracts

In kine with best practice, 1t 1s the policy of the Commuttee o offer
Executrve Directors service contracts with notice penods not exceeding 12
months Current appointments are subject to roling service contracts that
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can be terminated by 12 months notice as detailed below Termunation
payments, based on basic salary and benefits onlby, are limited to
contractual notice perods The Chaiman and Neon Executive Directars
do not have service contracts but have letters of appointment with the
Company No natice 1s required to tesminate thewr appointment The
services of lan Godden were provided under a consultancy agreement
with Godden Assoaates Ltd under the same terms as the letters of
appomtment for the Chairman and the other Non Executve Directors A
summary of the Directors’ sefvice contracts and letters of appointment 15
pravided below

Notice Unexpired

Contract date penod term!*

K Attwood 21 July 2004 12 months 1 month
C Hindson 5 May 20089 12 months 13 months
C Geoghegan 1 October 2009 1 month 25 months
A Reading 25 June 2004 None 13 months
J Brooks 2 August 2004 None 1 month
K Rayjagopal 1 November 2010 Nene 1 month
K Bangerfield 28 January 2011 None 1 month
Consultancy Notice Unexpired

agreement date perod term

Resigned

1 Godden 23 January 2005 None 28 January 2011

(1) Term remaiming until Directar’s retirement by rotation

Executive Directors are permitted, with the agreement of the Board, to
accept outside appaintments provided that such appointments do not
confliict wath their duties as directors of the Company Whether any fees
payable i respect of such outside appointments are retained by the
Executive Director or remitted to the Company 15 determmed on a case by
case basis No Executive Director held any such appointment in the year
ended 31 March 2011

Shareholding guidelines

Under the Company’s shareholding guidelines, which are operated to
further align the interests of the Executive Directors and shareholders,
Executive Directors will be expected to buld up and retain shares equal
It value to at least twice therr respective basic salanes Where Executive
Directors hold shares above these levels then, with the pnor approval of
the Charman, they may undertake sales of these excess shares and this
will not be viewed adversely

Employee Benefit Trust (EBT)

The Company established the EBT in 2004 as a discrehionary employee
benefit trust, in which all employess of the Group are potentially
beneficianes The Trustee is Lloyds TSB Offshore Trustee Limited, a
professional offshore trustee The main purpose of the EBT s to operate
the LTIP and other share option schemes following recommendations
from the Remuneration Committee or Board Shameholder approval has
been given to allow the Trustee to hold no more than 5 per cent of the
ssued ordinary share capital of the Company, and as at 31 March 2011 the
percentage was 0 37% (2010 037%) In addition to the shares held by
the EBT, the Company purchased 2,400,000 of its own shares dunng the
year, which are being held in treasury, also to facilitate the operation of
the LTIP This holding represenis 112% of the 1ssued share capital of the
Company No treasury shares were held as at 31 March 2010
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Directors’ interests

The benefigal interests of the Directars in the ordinary share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2011 are set out in the table below, together with
the benefical interests at the end of the previcus financal year, or date of
appointment 1f later

Performance graph

The graph below shows the change in the Total Shareholder Retum
(TSR) (wath dridends re-invested) for the five year penod to 31 March
2011 of a holding of a £100 mvestment mn the Group's shares aganst the
comesponding change in a hypothetical holding of shares in the FTSE

Electromcs & Electncal Equipment sector This sector was chosen as it

At 31 March 2010 represents the equity market index in which the Company is a constituent

or subseqgueni date of

At 31 March 2011 appomtment member
No Ordinary No Ordnary 200
5p shares Sp shares
= 180
160
K Attwood 2,976,664 2,976,664
140
C Hindson 1,460,000 1,460,000
120
C Geoghegan 203,512 203,512 . /\
1
A Reading 55,661 55,661
80
J Brooks 33,142 33,142 "
K Rajagopal 20,000 - w
K Dangerfield - -
20
There were no changes to the above benefical interests between the year ,?M..,. a1 Maro7 31 1w 08 1 e 09 a1 s 10 Tt
end and the date of this report The increase in Directors’ holdings arase — e 88 A - ——

through Directors purchasing shares in the market

INFORMATION SUBJECTTO AUDIT

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

As indicated in the zo10 Directors’ Remuneration Report, the Committee has dunng the year undertaken a review of the Group's share incentive arrangements,
and in paricular the LTIP After consultation with major sharehelders, a one off award was made under the LTIP on 3 August 2010 Histoncally awards under the
LTIP were made to Executive Directors and the Executive Comrmittee, but this one-off award has also mcluded key semor management such that 47 indwduals
received a one off award, with 5 milion performance shares being granted The awards recerved by the Executive Directors and the Executive Committee are

at double the normal annual award rate For Executive Directors the nermal award rate 15 100% of basic salary No awards are expected to be made in the
forthcoming year to 31 March 2012 to individuals who received an award in August 2010 The 2010 awards vest according to a performance conditton based on
the Company’s absolute TSR calculated as an average over the three month penod ending on the last day of the performance penod Participants have been
granted a nil pnce share option, 56% of which have a three year performance penod and 50% of which have a four year performance penod The performance
condition will be tested at the end of each performance penod The number of shares vesting shail be determined 1n accerdance wath the following

Company’s TSR 3 year
performance penocd

Company’s TSR 4 year

Proportion of award vesting performance penod

100% 145 pence or above
On a straight-line basis between 0 and 100% Between 100 and 145 pence

155 pence or above
Between 100 and 155 pence

0% 100 pence or below 100 pence or below

Awards made pnor to 2010 will vest on the third anniversary of the date of award to the extent that the performance targets have been met with performance
conditions companng Company’s TSR relative 10 the TSR of a speafied list of peer group compames, which are detailed below 2% of an award wll vest

for median performance and an award will only vest in full if the Company's TSR performance would place it m the top 20% compared with the peer group,
with pro-rata vesting between 25% and full vesting No award will vest (mespectrve of the Company’s relative TSR performance) unless an adusted eamings
per share (EPS) growth underpin which 1s based on Retail Pnee Index (RPD) plus 2% aver the three year performance penod, has been satisfied (unless the
Commuttee considers, in exceptional arcumstances, that it would be inappropnate to apply this underpin) There s also noe provision for re testing
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The market pnce of the ordinary shares at 31 March 2011 was 115 5 pence {2010 39 5 pence) and the range dunng the year was 39 5 to 125 o pence

The peer group for 2009 and 2008 awards compnses the following companies

> Bodycote International -+ Invensys + Severfield Rowen
-+ Castings - Laird —  Spectrs
- Charter -+ Meggitt - Sprrax-Sarco Engineernng
-+ Chemning Group - Melrose - Tomkins
-+ Chlonde Group - Margan Crucible Company > TTElectronigs
-+ Cookson Group -+ Oxford Instruments - Ultra Electrorucs Holdings
- BDomine Pninting Sciences - PV Crystalox Solar - UMECO
-+ Fenner - QnetiQ Group - Vitec Group
—+  Halma -+  Raymanne - VT Group
- Hampson Industnes *  Remshaw -+ Weir Group
- Hill & Smith Holdings - Rotork - Xaar
b L -»  Senior

Qutstanding awards under the LTIP relating to Directors are summansed below

Awards held at Granted in Lapsed in Awards held at  Date from which
Grant date 1 Apnl 2010 the year the year 31 March 2011 exercisable
K Attwood
16 07 2007 100,088 - {100,088) - 14 07 2010
15 07 2008 158,004 - - 158 004 1507 2011
24 06 2009 199,384 - - 199 384 24 06 2012
0308 2010 - 406 752 - 406 752 03 08 2013
03 08 2010 - 406 752 - 406 752 03082014
C Hindson
05 05 2009 105 626 - - 105,626 05052012
24 06 2009 158 242 - - 158,242 24 06 2012
0308 2010 - 321,543 - 321543 03082013
0308 2010 - 321,543 - 321 543 0308 2014

The LTIP awards granted n 2007 lapsed dunng the year as the mimmum level of EPS growth underpin had not been achieved

Executive Share Option Plan (ExSOP)

The Group has an ExSOP for the granting of non transferable market value options to certain employees over shares worth up 1o 100% of basic salary each
year The vestmng penod for the ExSOP s fimite allowing eligible employees 1o exeruse the option in a fixed penod, ance conditians are met The options may
not be exerased untess, over the vesting penod, the Companys EPS has increased by a fixed percentage above RP| as detailed in note 28 to the consclidated
financial statements No awards have been made to Executive Directars under this plan in the year ended 31 March 201 (2010 ni} and all optrons previously
issued under the EXSOP lapsed dunng the year The Committee has no present intention of making grants under this plan to Executive Directors in the
forthcoming year

Share Incentive Plan (SIF)
The Group has established a SIP which has been designed to qualfy for approval by the HM Revenue and Customs The plan contains three elements
- free shares, which are ardinary shares which may be allocated to an employee by the Comparny,

»  partnership shares, which are ordinary shares which an employee may purchase out of their pre-tax earmings, and

> matching shares, which are ordmary shares which may be allocated to an employee following the purchase of partnership shares

No awards have been made to any employees under this plan as at 31 March 2011
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Share Save Scheme {SAYE)

The Group operates an HM Revenue and Customs approved Share Save Scheme for which all employees and Executive Directors can apply to join if they are
UK employees The Chief Executive and Group Finance Director participate as detailed below

Awards held at

1 Apnil 2010 and Date from which Exercise price
Grant date 31 March 2011 exercisable (pence)
K Attwood
14 08 2009 25193 01112012 36 02
C Hindson
14 08 2009 25,183 01112012 3602
Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of Directors who served dunng the year was as follows
Salary and/ Performance— Car allowance/ 2011 2010
or fees ralated bonuses benefits in kind Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
K Attwood T 253 253 29 535 390
C Hindson™ 200 200 15 415 281
C Gecghegan® 120 - - 120 60
A Reading 36 - - 36 34
J Brooks 36 - - 36 34
K Rajagopal® 14 - - 14 -
K Dangerfield® 5 - - 5 -
Former Directors
| Godden®™ 28 - - 28 )
M Hannant® @ - - - - 183
G Kennedy® - - - - 42
Total 692 453 44 1,189 1065

{1) From date of appointment on 5 May 2009

{2) From date of appomtment on 1 October 2009

(3) From date of appointment on 1 November 2010

(4) From date of appointment on 28 January 2011

(5) For penad to 28 January 2011, date of resignation

(6) For penod to 28 May 2009, date of resignation as Company Director

(7) Mike Hannant was employed and paid a manth's salary and beriefits i June 2009, at a total cost of £14,381 as an employee r addibon, subsequent to the temmengtion of Mike
Hannant’s employment he provided serices ta the Group on an intenm consultancy basis 1o assist with the preparation of the required documentation for the equity and debt
transactions Fees for this work tolalled £99,735 1n the year ended 31 March 2010

(8) For penad to 1 October 2009 date of resignatian

Dunng the previous finanaal year, a penod of short ime working was agreed at a nwnber of the Group’s sites, whereby 16 days of unpaid leave were taken
over a four month penod The Directors particpated in this programme with the effect beng to reduce annual basic salary by 6 2% n that year
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Directors’ pension benefits

The following pension contnbuhions were made by the Company, either to the Company’s defined contnbution scheme or Lo persenal pension amangements on
behalf of the Executive Directors

2011 2010

£000 £000
K Attwood 38 36
C Hindson 30 25
Former Director
M Hannant - a4
Total 68 65
Approval

This report was approved by the Remuneration Commuttee and has been approved subsequently by the Board of Directors

On behalf of the Board

/
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Consolidated income statement and Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Consolidated income statement

Year ended 31 March 2011

2010
Before Exceptional Before Exceptional
exceptional items & exceptional items &
1tems & acquired items & acqured
acquired mtang:ble acquired intang:ble
intangible asset intang:ble asset
assst amortisation asset amortisation
amorbtsaton  (notes 5 and 9) Total armortisation {notes 5 and 9) Total
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 3 228,579 - 228,579 201 247 - 201,247
Cost of sales (141,916) 774) {142,690} {139 999) - (139 999)
Gross profit 86,663 {774) 85,889 61,248 - 61,248
Research and development costs 6 (12,390} - (12,390) {12,072) - {12,072
Selling and distnbution costs (16,290) - (16,290) (15,187) - {15,187)
Adminustrative expenses (19,739) (6,981) (26,720) (18,972) (21 054) {40,026)
Operating profit/{loss) 38,244 (7,755) 30,489 15017 (21,054) (6,037}
Finance costs 2] (4,652) (38) (4,690) 5 818) (719) (8 537)
Finance revenue o] 33 - 33 160 2694 2 854
Profit/{loss) before taxation 33,625 {7,793) 25,832 9359 (19 079) (e 720)
Income tax (expense)/credit 10 (9,625) 3,285 {6,340) (246) 7700 7 454
Profit/{loas) for the year 24,000 {4,508) 19,492 9113 {11 379) (2 266)
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Company 24,000 (4,508) 19,492 9113 (11,379) (2,2686)
Earmings/{loss) per share
Basic 11 11 26p 914p 667p (1 B6)p
Diluted 11 1t 14p 905p 6 65p {1 66)p
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 March 2011
2011 2010
Notes £000 TO00
Exchange differences cn retranstation of foraign operatons 240 {719)
Exchange differences on net invesiment hedges (1,669) 529
Current tax on exchange differences 10 1,137 -
Actuanal gans/losses) on post-employment banefits 29 6 (345)
Deferred {ax on actuanat gansfosses on post-employment benefits 10 (k)] 118
Other comprehensive income and expense for the year (287} 417
Profit{loss) for the year 19,492 (2 266)
Total comprehensive Income and expense for the year 19,205 {2,683)
Aftnbutable o
Egutty holders of the Company 19,205 (2,683)
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Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 March zo11

20M 2010
Notes £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 13 31,977 31366
Intangible assets 14 93,802 104 061
Income tax recenable - 3,129
Deferred income tax asset 24 10,408 10197
136,187 148,753
Current assets
Inventones 17 47,446 35,481
Trade and other recevables 18 50,006 51,194
Other financial assets 22 534 -
Income tax recerable 340 2026
Cash at bank and i hand 19 12,886 27,811
Total current assets 111,212 116,512
Total assats 247,399 265 265
LIABILITIES
Current habilihes
Trade and other payables 20 (56,624) {47,005)
Qther financial habikties 22 (192) (1,515
Income iax payable {2,301) 5.619)
Provisions 23 {15,743) (20,534)
Tatal current habdities {74,860) (74 673)
Net current assets 36,352 41,839
MNon-current habilities
Borrowings 21 {39,582) (69 471)
Cither financial habilties 22 - (131
Provisions 23 {2,137} 8 028
Employment and post-employmant benefits 29 (2,941} (2,839
Deferred income tax habilites 24 (6,632} (8,498)
Total non-current habilties (51,292} (86 967)
NET ASSETS 121,247 103 625
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 25 10,742 10742
Share premium 26 41,783 41 780
Merger reserve 26 44,557 44 579
QOwn shares reserve 26 (2,182} {5)
Capital redemption reserve 26 274 274
Foreign currency translation reserve 26 4,926 5,218
Retained earmings 21,147 1,037
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT CCMPANY 121,247 103 625

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authansed for issue on 3 June 2011 They were signed on its behalf by

B! HL

K Attwood
Chief Executive

C Hindson
Group Finance Director
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010
Notes £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/loss) before tax 25,832 (6. 720)
Net finance costs 4,657 3,683
QOperatng profit/{oss) 30,489 {6037
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash inflows from operating activities
Depreciation of property, plant and eguiprment 8,937 10,249
Amortisation of ntangble assets 8,514 12,007
Profit on sale of property plant and equipment 71 (3 609)
Farr value gains on foreign exchange contracts (1,.347) (2,489)
Share based payment charges 8 422
{Increass)/decrease in inventores {11,709) 5,854
(Increase)/decrease n trade and other recenables {2,176) 9,959
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 12,373 {1827)
{Decrease)inGrease In provisions (8,429) 15 472
Cash generated from operations 36,595 40 001
Income taxes (paid)/recenved 5,152) 632
Net cash flows from operating activities 31,443 40,633
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,219 2,188
Interest receved 33 160
Purchases of property plant and equipment (8,763) 2,707}
Purchases of software (599) [B372)
Expenditure on product development (756) (693)
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 18 - (490)
Net cash flows used in Investing activities {7,866) {1914)
Cash flows from financing activibes
Interest pad (3,597) (3,590}
Proceeds from issue of shares (net of 1ssue costs) (1,201} 53,375
Purchase of own shares {(2,177) -
Realised exchange gans on re-denomination of Euro borrowings - 2.604
Payment of cancetiation fees on interest rate swaps {686} (890)
Repayment of borrowings (31,254) (65 175)
Transaction costs of new bank loans raised {53} (3,608)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (38,968) {17,284)
Net {decrease)/fincrease in cash and cash equivalents {15,391) 21,435
Net foreign exchange difference 466 3
Cash and cash eqgunalents at 1 Apnl 27,811 6373
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 19 12,886 27,811
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 March 2011

Foreign
Called Capital currency
up share Share Merger Own redemption  translation Retamed Total
capital premtum reserve shares reserve reserve earnings equrty
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 Apnl 2009 3,128 41,780 - (5) 274 5408 3004 53,679
Other comprehensive tncome - - - - - {190) (227) (437)
Loss for the year - - - - - - (2 266) {2,266)
Total comprehensive iIncome - - - - - {190) (2 493) {2,683}
Issue of shares 7614 - 48 225 - - - - 556.839
Share 1ssu8 costs - - (3 646) - - - - (3 646)
Share based payment - - - - - - 422 422
Deferred tax on share based
payments - - - - - - 14 14
At 31 March 2010 10,742 41780 44 579 (5] 274 5218 1037 103,625
{Other comprehensive income - - - - - (292) 5 (287)
Profit for the year - - - - - - 19,492 19,492
Total cormnprehensive Income - - - - - {292} 19,497 19,205
Issue of shares - 3 - - - - - 3
Share 1ssue costs - - 22) - - - - 22)
Purchase of treasury shares - - - (2,177) - - - (2,177}
Share based payment - - - - - - 8 8
Deferred tax on share based
paymenis - - - - - - 605 605

At 31 March 2011 10,742 41,783 44,557 {2,182} 274 4,926 21,147 121,247
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Authorisation of financial statements and statement of comphance with IFRSs

eavtechnalegtes plc (the Company) 15 a public imited company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 The
Company's shares are publicly traded on the London Stock Exchange The address of the registered office 1s given in the Directors’ Report The nature of the
Group's operation and its principal activities are set out in the Business Review

The consolidated financiat statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 compnse the resuits of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings
(together referred to as the Group)

These financial statements are presented in Sterling as that 1s the currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the Group operates Foretgn
operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in note 2 All values are rounded to the nearest thousand {£0c0) unless atherwise indicated

The financial statements were approved for 1ssue by the Board on 3 June 2011

The principal accounting polictes adopted by the Group are set out below

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) applied in accordance with the
Companses Act 2006 The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by the European Union and therefore the
consolidated financial statements comply with Article 4 of EU IAS Regulation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except far the revaluaton of financial instruments The principal accounting policies
are set out below and have been applied consistently to all periads presented in these financial statements

Going concern

The Directors, having considered all of the relevant information, have a reasanable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in

operational existenice for the foreseeable future and as such believe that it 1s appropnate to prepare the financial staternents on a going concern basis, as |
detarled in the Directors* Report These financial statements have therefore been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Group will be

able ta meet its labilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of eav technologies ple and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidianes)
made up to 31 March each year Controlis achieved where the Company has the power ta govern the financial and operating policies of an nvestee entity
so as to abtain benefit from its activities and 15 achieved through direct orindirect ownership of voting sights, currently exercisable or convertible potential
voting rights, or by way of contraciual agreement

The financial statements of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consehdated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting penod as the
parent company Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used in hne with those
used by the Group The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate All intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised profits ansing
from ntra group transactions, have been eliminated in full Any unrealised losses arnsing from intra-group transactions are eliminated to the extent that they
are recoverable

For acquisitions undertaken after 1 Apnl 2010, the acgquisition of subsidianies 1s accounted for using the purchase method of accounting The cost of the
acquisition Is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acguisition date farvalue, and the amount of any non-contralling
interest in the acquiree The choice of measurement of non-controlling interest, either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets s determined on a transacuion by transaction basis Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and inctuded in administrative expenses

When the Group acquires a business it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, econamic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date This includes the separation of embedded denwvatives in
hast contracts by the acquiree

Goodwill anising an acquisition 1s recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of aggregate of the acquisitton date fair value of
the consideration transferred and the amount recognised far the non-controtling interest over the net identifiable amounts of the assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed 1n exchange for business combsnation Assets acquired and habilities assumed in transactions separate to the business combinations,
such as the settlement of pre-existing relationships or post acquisition remuneration arrangements, are accounted for separately from the business
combination in accordance with their nature and applicable IFRSs Identifiable intangible assets meeting either the contractual, legal or separability criterion
are recogmised separately from goodwill Contingent liabilites representing a present obligation are recognised IFthe acquisition date fatr value can be
measured reliably

If the aggregate of the acquisition date farr value of the consideration transferred and the amounts recogmised for the non-controlling interest 1s lower than
the farr value of the assets, liabilities and contingent habilities and the fair value of any pre existing interest held in the business acquired, the difference 1s
recognised in the income statement

as
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2. Summary of significant accounttng policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation {continued)

Acquisttions undertaken prior to 1 April zo10 were also accounted for under the purchase method of accounting However transaction costs directly
attnbutable to the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs Furthermore, contingent consideration was recogrised if, and only If, the Group had a
present gbligation, the econamic outflow was more Likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable Subsequent adjustments to the contingent
consideration were recognised as part of goodwill

Foreign currency translation

The individual financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the pnmary economic environment 1n which it operates (its
functional currency) For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial pasition of each group company are retranslated into
Sterling, which 15 the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements

In prepanng the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at that date Mon monetary items carned at fair value that are denominated
in foresgn currenties are translated at the rates prevaling at the date when the fair value was determined Non-monetary items that are measured at histonical
costun a foreign currency are not retranslated

All exchange differences are recognised in the income statement in the perrod in which they anse except for exchange differences on transactrons entered
into that hedge certain foreign currency risks, and exchange differences on monetary items recervable from or payable to a fareign operation for which
sattlement 1s netther planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future {therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised iniially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment

On consolidation, the assets and habilities of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rate for the penod, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the penod, in
which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used The exchange differences ansing, 1f any, are recogmised in other comprehensive income
and accumutated in equity, wethin the foreign currency translation reserve On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the accumulated exchange differences i
respect of that operation attributable to the Group are reclassified o the income statement

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and habilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold buildings, plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value

Assets under construction for production or administrative purposes are carned at cost less any recognised smpairment loss Cost includes professional fees
and, for gualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised 1n accordance with the Group’s accounting policy Depreciation on these assets commences when the
assets are avaslable for uge

Freehold land 1$ not depreciated and is held at histoncal cost

Depreciation 15 recogmsed so as to write-off the cost of assets (other than land and assets under construction) less their residual values on a straight ine
basis over the estimated useful life, as follows

Freehold buildings 25 to 50 years

Leasehold improvements over the rematning lease term
Plant and equipment 3 to 10 years

Office equipment, fixtures and fittings 3 to 10 years

The carrying values are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in arcumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable [fany such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash generating units are wntten down to their
recoverable amount The recaverable amount of plant and equipment is the greater of net selling price and value in use In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value
of money and the risks specific to the asset For an asset that does not generate largely ndependent cash inflows, the recoverable amount 15 determined
for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement in administrative expenses Where an
impairment lass subsequently reverses the carrying value of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, not to exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no imparrment loss been recogmised for this asset in prior years A reversal of
impawment [oss 15 recognised immediately 1n the income statement

An item of property, plant and equipment 1s derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to anse from the continued use of
the asset Any gain or loss ansing on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the tem) 15 included 1n the iIncome statement n the year the stem 15 derecogmised

Goodwiil

Goodwill anising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition aver the Group’s interestin the fair value of the identifiable assets

and liabtiities of the subsidiary Goodwill s initially recognrsed as an asset at cost and 1s subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated imparrment
losses Goodwill which is recognised as an asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired Any impatrment 15 recognised rmmediately in the tncome statement and 1s not subsequently reversed
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2 Summary of sigmficant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill {continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the
comhnation Impairment 1s determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit, to which goodwill refates If the recoverable
amount of the cash generating umit 15 less than the carrying amount, an impatrment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwli
allocated 1o the unit and then to other assets of the unuit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit

On disposal of a cash generating unit or part of the cash generating unit the attributable amount of goodwill s included in the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal

Goodwitl ansing on acquistions before the date of transition to IFRSs has been retained at the previous amounts recorded under UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) subject to being tested for impairment at that date Goodwill written off to reserves under K GAAP priar to 1998 has not been
reinstated and will not be included 1n determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

Intangible assets - research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities s recognised as an expense i the period in whach it 1s incurred

An internally generated intangible asset arising from the Group's development activities is capitalised only if all of the followng conditions are met an asset
1s created that can be identified (such as software and new processes), it 15 probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and the
development cost of the asset can be measured reliably

Internally generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight-tine basis over their useful lives, the period of expected future sales, estimated at between
three and five years The amortisation 1s recorded as part of research and development costs in the tncome statement Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be capitalised, development expenditure 15 recognised as an expense i the peniod in which it incurred

When the asset1s not in use, the carrying value of development costs is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently when an indicator of impairment
anses durtng the reporting peniod indicating that the carrying value may nat be recoverable

Gains or losses ansing from derecognitton of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the income statement when the asset 15 derecognised

Other tangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost and intangsble assets acqutred from a business acquisition are capitalised at fair value as at the
date of acquisition Following initial recognition, the cost model1s applied to the class of intangible assets

Computer software purchased or internally generated for use that 1s integral to the hardware (because without that software the equipment cannot operate)
1 treated as part of the hardware and capitalised as property, plant and equipment Other software pregrammes are treated as tntangibie assets Intangible
assets, excluding development costs and software, created within the business are not capitalised and expenditure 1s charged to the income statement in the
pernod in which the expenditure 15 in¢urred

Intangible assets are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level Useful Lives are also examtned on an annual basis
and adjustments, where applicable, are made on a prospective basis

The useful lives of these intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite Where amortisation 15 charged on assets with finite lives, it1s
provided so as to wnite off the cost of intangible assets on a straight line basis over the estimated useful ife, as follows

Patents, trademarks and technology 5 to 10 years
Customer relationships and agreements 4 10 10 years
Software 2to 7 years

This expense 1s taken to the income statement through the following line items

Patents, trademarks and technology admimistrative expenses

Customer relationships and agreements administrative expenses

Software cost of sales and administrative expenses
Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct matenals and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred 1n bringing the inventonies to their present location and condition Cost 15 calculated using a first in, first-out method Net
realisable value represents the estimated sefling prices less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, setling and distribution

Provision 1s made for absolete, slow-moving or defective items where appropniate A net increase in provision for the year as a whole 15 recogmised as an
expense in the year whilst a net reversal of provision for the year as a whole 1s recogmised as a reduction in expense

Trade and ather recevables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30 to 60 day terms, are recogmised and carred at onginal invaice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible
amounts An estimate for doubtful debis 1s made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable Bad debts are wntten off when dentified

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in the balance sheet comprises cash at bank and 10 hand and short term deposits with an onginal maturity of three months or less For the purpose of
the Conschdated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash as defined above
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Borrowmngs

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration recewved net of 1ssue costs associated with the borrowing
After initial recognition, miterest beanng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method The
effective interest methoad 15 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial lability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant penod
The effective interest rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial hability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on iitial recogmition

A financeal ability s generally derecognised when the contract that gives rise to it 1s settled, sold, cancelled or expires Where an existing financaal bability 15
replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantually different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially medified, such an exchange or
modification 1s treated as a derecogmition of an existing Lhiabilhity and the recognttion of a new liability

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at the balance sheet date, the Group has an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the hability for at
least 12 months after the balance sheet date

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets (which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
peniod of ime to get ready for their intended use or sale) are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for ther
intended use or sale

All other borrowing costs are recogmised inv the income statement using the effective interest methad

Provisions

Provisions are recagnised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuit of a past event, 1t 15 probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision 1s based on the best reliable estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation and its carrying amount 1s the present value of those cash flows

When some or all of the econemic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset IF it 15 wirtually certain that reimbursement will be received and that the amount of the recewvable can be measured reliably

A restructuring proviston Is recognised when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in

those affected that it wilk carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features The measurement of a restructuring
provision Includes only the direct expenditures ansing from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessanly entailed by the restructurning
and not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legisiation or contract terms are recognised at the date of sale of the
relevant products, at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group's obligation

Present obligations ansing under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions An onerous contract 1s considered to exist where the Group
has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the ecanomic benefits expected to be received under
it

Pensions, other post-employment and other employment benefits .

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes which require contributions to be made to a separately administered fund Payments to defined
contnibution pension schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due Payments made to a state managed pension are dealt with as payments to defined
contnibution schemes where the Group’s ebligations under the schemes are equivalent to those ansing in a defined contnibution retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates unfunded defined benefit plans in France providing termination payments (post employment benefit) to employees upon retirement and
long service awards paid when the employee reaches certain tengths of service (other employment benefit) The cost of providing benefits 1s determmed with
actuarial valuations being carried out on each balance sheet date Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they aceur Those
refated to the termination berefits are recogmsed cutside the income statement and are presented tn other comprehensive iIncome, whilst those related

to the long service award are recognised in the income statement When a settlement or curtailment occurs, the obhgation and related plan assets are re-
measured using current actuanal assumptions and the resultant gain or loss is recognised in the income statement dunng the penoed in which the settlement
or curtailment occurs

Past service cost 1s recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, otherwise it 1s amortised on a straight bine basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested

The ebligation recogmsed in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adyusted for unrecognised past service cost

Share based payment transactions

Employees (including Directors) of the Company recewe remuneration in the form of share based transactions, whereby employees render services in
exchange for shares or nights over shares (equity settled transactions) The cost of equity settled transactions with employees 15 measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted The fair vatue 1s determined using a binomral model, further details of which are given in note 28 In valuing
equity settled transactions, no account 1s taken of any vesting conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company (market
conditions)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Share based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity settled transactions 15 recogmised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the perfermance condittons
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (vesting date) The cumulative expense recognised for
equity settled transactions at each reporting date reflects the extent to which the vesting penod has expired and management's best estimate of the number
of awards that will ultimately vest

No expense 1s recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting 1s conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as
vesting rrespective of whether or not the market condition 1s satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied

Where the terms of an equity settted award are modified, as a mmimum an expense 1s recognised as if the terms had not been modified In addition, an
expense 1s recognised for any increase in the value of the transaction as a result of the modification, as measured at the date of modification

Where an equity settled award is cancelled, it 15 treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not vet recognised for the award 1s
recognised immediately IF a new award IS substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it I1s granted, the
cancelled and new shares are treated as If they were a modification of the onginal award

The dilution effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution 1n the computation of earnings per share {note 11)

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee All other
leases are classified as operating leases

Rental payments under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a stratght line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where
another more systematic basis 1s more representative of the ime pattern in which the economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed Cortingent
rentals ansing under aperating teases are recogmised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a hability The aggregate benefit of incentives
15 recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight line bas:s, except where another systematic basts is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed

Revenue

Revente 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration recewved or recervable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts, value added and other sales related taxes

Revenue from the sale of standard products is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied

-+ the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods,

-+ the Group retains neither conttnuing managenal involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold,
-+ the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

-+ 1t1s probable that the ecenomic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, and

-+ the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured refiably

Revenue in respect of tong term contracts For non-standard products and services 1s recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the project The
stage of completion is determined either by referance to the completion of a physical proportion of the work, dependent upon the nature of the underlying
project, or by reference to the propottion that costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total project costs Revenues denved from
variations on projects are recognised only when they have been accepted by the customer Full provision 1s made for losses on projects in the period 1n which
they are first foreseen

Finance revenue 15 recogmised when it 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably
Finance revenue tncome 1s accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which 1s the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition

Government grants

Government grants are not recogrised until there s reasonable assurance that the Group wall comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received Government grants for research programmes are recognised as income over the pertods necessary to match them with the related
costs deducted in reporting the related expense Government grants related to property, plant and equipment are treated as deferred income and released to
the income statement over the expected useful hives of the assets concerned

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax Income tax s charged or credited to other comprehensive tncome if it
relates to items that are charged or credited to other comprehensive income Similarly, income tax 1s charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items
that are charged or charged directly to equity Otherwise income tax is recognised 1n the income statement
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation {continued)

Current tax

The tax currently payable s based on the taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it
excludes items of iIncome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items of income or expense that are never taxable or
deductible The Group's hability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted er substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax s the tax expected to be payable of recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Liabilities tn the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxabte profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability method Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxabie temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised Such assets and iabilities are not recogmised if the temporary
differences ansing from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the imtial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and habilities
in a transacuion that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax Liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences anising on investments in subsidianes except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it 15 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent it1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to altow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis and s calculated at the tax rates that are expected ta apply in the penod when the liability 15 settled or
the asset 1s realised Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax
habilities and when they relate to incoma taxes levied by the same taxatien authonty and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and habilities on a
net basis

Derwative financial instruments and hedging

The Group enters into a vartety of denivative financial instruments to manage s exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign
exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note 32

Dervative financial instruments are initially recogmsed at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract i1s entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date The resulting gain or loss Is recognised in the income statement immediately unless the derivative
15 designated and effective as a hedging instrument, tn which event the timeng of the recognition in the income statement depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship The Group designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or Labilities or firm commitments {fair
value hedges), hedges of highly probably forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency nisk of firm commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net
nvestments in foreign operations

No dervative financial instruments have been designated as a fair value or cash flow hedge duning the current or prier financal year

A denvative with a positive fair value is presented as a financial asset whereas a denivative with a negative fair value 1s presented as a financial Liabibity
A denvative 1s presented as a non-current asset or a non-current lability if the remaining matunty of the instrument 1s more than 12 months and 1t 15 not
expected to be realised or settled within 12 months Other denvatives are presented as current assets or current habidities

The Group uses foreign currency borrowings to hedge 11s investment in cusrency investments and classifies the hedging relationship as a net investment
hedge Tothe extent that the hedge is effective, changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument are recognised In other comprehensive income

Classification of shares as debt or equity

When shares are 1ssued, any component that ereates a financial iabihity of the Group 1s presented as a hability in the balance sheet, measured inttially at fair
value net of transaction costs and thereafter at amortised cost untll extinguished on conversion or redemption

Own shares

e2v technologes plc shares held by the EBT and the Company are classified in shareholders’ equity as own shares and are recognised at cost Consideration
recewed for the sale of such shares 1s also recognised in equity, with any difference between the proceeds from sale and the anginal cost being taken

to retained earmings No gain or loss 1s recognised in the income statement ar the statement of comprehensive iIncome on the purchase, sale, 15sue or
cancellation of equity shares

Cnitical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, management must make judgments, estimates and assumptions concerming the carrying amounts of
assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based upon factors such as hestorical
expenence and ather factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised i the peniod 1n which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that pertod, or in the pernod of the revision and future periads if the revision affects both current and future
periods
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Cnitical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)

The following are the critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty that the Directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated finangial statements measurement and
imparrment of goodwill and other intangible assets ansing on acquisition (note 15), the measurement of provisions for business improvement programme
costs (estimation of termination payments and other future costs) (note 23) the measurement of work in progress (stage of completion and totat costs

to complete), the measurement of product warranty provisions (esttmation of level of returns) (note 23), the measurement of environmental provisions
{estimation of remediation costs) (note 23), and the measurement and recognition of tax iabilities and deferred tax assets (note 24)

Adjusted profit measures
Profit for the financial year 1s analysed between

(@) profit before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangible assets, and
(b) the effect of exceptional items and acquired intangible assets amortisation

| Exceptional items are matenal items of mmcome and expense which, in the opinion of the Directors, because of the nature and infrequency
of the events giving rnise to them, mernt separate presentation to allow a better understanding of the elements of the Group’s performance
for the financial year and are presented on the face of the income statement to facilitate compansons with prior periods and assessments
of trends in financiat performance Exceptional operating items include business improvement programme expenses, last time build
inventory provisions, gans and losses on sale of property, acquisition costs, and fair value gains and losses on foreign exchange contracts
Exceptional finance items include fair value gains and losses ansing on interest rate swaps, realised exchange differences on the re
denomination of barrowings, and write-off of debt I1ssue costs Exceptional tax items include the tax effect on exceptional operating items,
exceptional finance items, and amortisation of acquired intangibles

i Amortisation of acquired intangible assets, including impairmert, has been shown separately to provide increased visibility over the effect of
acquisition activity on intangible assets

Further analysis of exceptional operating and finance items are provided in notes 5 and g, respectively

New standards and interpretations applied dunng the year

In the current year, the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted and have not had a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements in the penod of initial application

IFRS 3 (revised), “Business Combinations”, requires the recognition of subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent constderation in the income

statement rather than against goodwill In addition, transaction costs are required to be recognised immediately in the income statement and contingent

consideration which is assessed as having the characteristics associated with employment benefits 1s expensed to the income statement rather than

included in the calculation of goodwill IFRS 3 (revised) 1s not required to be applied retrospectively and may significantly affect profit or loss reported in the

pertod of an acquisition, the amount of goodwill recognised i a business combination and profit or loss reported n future periods ,

1AS 27 (amended), “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”, requtres that a change tn the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of
control) 15 accounted for as a transaction with owners in their capacity as owners and these transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill or gains and
losses The standard also specifies the accounting when control is lost and any retained 1nterest s remeasured to fair value with gains or losses recogmsed in
profit or loss

1AS 32, “Finanaal Instruments Presentation - Classification of Rights 1ssues (amendment)”, amends the definition of a financial babiiity in order to classify
nghts 1ssues as equity instruments in cases where such rights are given pro-rata to all of the existing owners of the same elass of an entity’s non-denvative
eguity mstruments, or to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount in any currency

Amendment to IAS 39, “Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement — Eligible hedged items™, clanfies that an entity ts permitted to designate a
portion of the fair value changes or cash fAow vanability of a financial instrement as a hedged item This also covers the designation of inflation as a hedged
nisk or portion In particular situattons

IFRIC 17, “Distribution of Non cash Assets to Qwners™, provides guidance of the accounting arrangements whereby an entity distributes non-cash assets to
shareholders as either a distribution or reserves or as dividends There have been no such transactions

IFRIC 18, “Transfer of Assets from Customers”, applies to instances where entities receive items of property, plant and equipment or cash from customers for
the acquisition of such items which are subsequently used to connect the customers to a network or provide access to ORgeing services

Improvements to IFRSs (issued April 2o09) deals pnmarily with removing inconsistencies and clanfying wording
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2 Summary of sigmficant accounting policies (continued)

New standards and interpretations not applied
The International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) and International Financial Reporting Commuttee (IFRIC) have also 1ssued the following Standards and
Interpretations with an effective date after the date of these financial statements

Effective for penods
commencing after

IFRS 9 Financsa! Instruments Classification and Measurement 1 January 2013
ag 12 Deferred Tax Recovery of Undertying Assets {amendment 0 IAS 12 Income Taxes) 1 January 2012
a5 24 Related Party Disclosure (rewised) 1 January 2011

Improverments io IFRS (issued May 2010) Varous dates
IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Mirimum Funding Requirement 1 January 2011
[FRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabiliies with Equity Instruments 1 July 2010

The Group intends to adopt these standards in the first accounting peniod after the effective date The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these
Standards and Interpretations will have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements in the period of inttial applicatton

3. Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s revenue 1s as follows

2011 2010
£000 £000
Sale of goods 186,852 160 909
Coniract ravenue recognised in the year 41,727 40,338
Revenue 228,579 201,247
Finance revenue 33 2 854
Total revenue 228,612 204 101
The following balances relate to cantracts in progress at the balance sheet date
2011 2010
£000 £000
Amounts recoverable from customers ncluded n werk-in-progress and cother debtors 7,610 8,332
Amaounts due to customers included in trade and other payables (7,547} (4 772}

4. Segment information

In canjunction with the transfer of work from the Group's Lincoln facility, several changes to the internal reporting structure were made at the beginning of
the year such that the management of a number of product ines previously associated with the Lincoln facility and managed within the Sensors division have
been transferred to the RF power solutions diviston Furthermore the segments have alsc been renamed as noted below

followtng these changes, for management purposes, the Group is arranged into three operating dvisions, which are organised and managed separately
based on the key products that they provide Each s treated as an operating segment and a reportable segment in accordance with IFRS 8, “Operating
Segments”

The operating and reportable segments are

-+ RF power sotutions (formerly Electran devices and sub-systems) which provides high performance electron devices and sub-systems in three matn
application areas radiotherapy, electronic countermeasures, and industrial processing systems

+  High performance imaging solutions (formerly Imaging) which provides advanced Charged Coupled Devices (CCD) and Complimentary Metal Oxide
Semiconductor (CMOS) imaging sensors and cameras in three main application areas machine vision, space imaging, and saentficimaging

»  Hi-rel semiconductor solutions (formerly Specialist semiconductors) which provides high rehability semiconductors and services in two main
application areas aerospace and defence semrconductors, and sermconductor lifecycle management under the Group's SLIM™ brand

All other, reported below, includes the results of the Group's instrumentation activittes, being the remaining business of the Sensor dvision These are not
a separately reportable segment and for mnternal reporting purposes are combined with Centre-corporate, which includes those unallocated costs directly
assouiated with the management of the Group's public quotation and other related costs ansing for the corporate management of the Group along with
treasury related activities

Information regarding the Group's operating segments s reported below Amounts reported for the prior year have been restated to conform to the structure
effective for the current financial year
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4 Segment information (continued)

Segment revenue and results
The following 15 an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by repartable segment

High
perfermance Hi-rel semi-

RF power imaging conductor Centre- Total

solutions solutions sclutions All other corporate operations
Year ended 31 March 2011 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue
Reverwe from external customers 82,113 64,913 62,667 18,886 - 228,579
Segment result
Adjusted segment profit 12,793 12,693 15,596 69 - 41,151
Carporate costs - - - - (1,530 {1,530)
Exchange differences - - - - (1,377} {1,377)
Adjusted operating profit/(loss) 12,793 12,693 15,506 69 (2,907} 38,244
Exceptional operating items and acguired

intangble asset amortisation {1,205) {2,056) (5,135) {700) 1,344 {7,755)

Qperating profit/{loss) 11,588 10,637 10,461 {631) {1,566) 30,489
Net finance costs {4,657)
Profit before tax 25,832
Tax charge (6,340)
Profit for the pernod 19,492

Effective 1 Apnl 2011, the management of the Thermal imaging cameras business unit (which durning the year ended 31 March 2011 has been included within
All other) has been transferred to the High performance imaging solutions dwision The sales and adjusted operating profit for the year ended 31 March 2011
of this business umit were £5,785,000 and £410,000 respectively

High
performance Hi-rel sermi-

RF power maging conductor Centre- Total

solutions solutions solutions All other corporate operations
Year ended 31 March 2010 (restated) £000 <000 2000 £000 £000 £O00
Revenue
Revenue from external customers 78781 53814 50 936 17716 - 201 247
Segment result
Adjusted segment prohit/(loss) 11,188 516 6,715 {132 - 18 297
Corporate costs - - - - {2 625) {2,625)
Exchange differences - - - - (855) (655)
Adusted operating profit/floss) 11,188 516 6715 (132) {3 280) 15017
Exceptional operating items and acquired

intangible asset amorusaton 1 546 (13 302) {10 871) {834) 2 407 {21,054)

Operating profit/loss) 12 744 (12,788) 4,1586) (2868) (873) {5 037)
Net finance costs (3 683)
Loss before tax (9 720)
Tax credit 7 454
Loss far the penod {2,266)
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4. Segment information (continued)

Segment assets and other segment information

The following 1s an analysis of the Group’s assets and other information by reportable segment

High
performance Hi-rel semi-
RF power imagmng conductor Centre- Total
solutions solutions solutions All other corporate operations
Year ended 31 March 2011 £000 £000 £000 £000 £C00 F000
Assets
Intangible assets 847 271 72,778 9,207 10,699 93,802
Property plant and equipment 5,363 10,394 4,930 1,957 9,733 31,977
Inventones 15,992 17,419 11,906 2,129 - 47,446
Centra - corporate assets
Trade and other recevables - - - - 50,006 50,006
Other financial assets - - - - 534 534
Inceme tax recevable - - - - 340 340
Deferred income tax asset - - - - 10,408 10,408
Cash at bank and in hand - - - - 12,886 12,886
Total assets 22,202 28,084 89,8614 12,893 94,606 247,399
Other segment information
Capntal expenditure
Property, plant and equpment 2,143 422 753 1,474 3,971 8,763
Software - - - - 599 599
Development costs 461 86 - 209 - 756
Depreciation 1,675 1,390 1,988 2,026 1,858 8,937
Amortisalion 457 148 2,351 849 1,709 8,514
Warrarity prowsion - net of ansing and released in the year 751 827 {49) Fal - 1,600
High
performance Hi-rel sermi-
RF power Imaging conductor Centre- Total
solutions solutions solutions All other corporate operations
Year ended 31 March 2010 (restated) £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Intangible assets 814 334 B0 681 9.2 12,941 104,061
Property, plant and equipment 5,136 10082 65384 2.021 7,743 31,366
Cther segment assets 12,516 9 555 9038 6372 - 37 481
Centre — corporate assets
Trade and other recewvables - - - - 49,194 49 194
Incoma tax recenable - - - - 5,185 5,155
Deferred Income tax asset - - - - 10,197 10197
Cash at bank and in hand - - - - 27 811 27,81
Total assets 18 466 19971 96,103 17 684 113 041 265,265
Other segment information
Capital expenditure
Property, plant and equapment 385 502 539 587 694 2 707
Software - - - - 372 372
Development costs 346 283 - 94 - 893
Depreciation 2182 3,750 2003 390 1,924 10 249
Amorisauon 676 173 7,954 1,102 2002 12,007
Wananty prowision - net of ansing and released in the year 1886 1385 17 22 - 3410
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4. Segment information (contmued)

The Group 15 orgamsed such that Centre-corporate is responsible for the management of operations (including production, supply charn and IT) and sales
(including credit control) Assets assaciated with these activities are designated against Centre corporate in the above analysis (this includes all software
owned by the Group) Centre-corporate recharges the segments for the provision of these services Centre-corporate 15 also respensible for the Group’s
treasury function

Geographical information
The Group's revenue from external customers and nformation about 1ts non-current assets by geographical location are detailed below

2014 2010
£000 £O00
Revenue by destination
United Kingdom 40,002 41,654
North Amenca 76,316 67 002
Europe 79,188 66,700
Asia Pacific 30,066 24,202
Rest of the World 3,007 1,689
228,579 201,247
2011 2010
£000 £000
Non-current assets {excluding taxes)
United Kingdom 35,287 33,780
MNerth Amenca 34,864 38785
Europe 55,617 62 825
Asia Pacific 1" 27
125,779 135 427
5 Exceptional operating items and acquired tntangible assets amortisatien
2011 2010
£000 £000
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 5,826 8 600
Business Improvement grogramme expenses 2,496 18 682
Last time build nventory provision 774 -
Fawr value gans on foreign exchange contracts {1,341) (2,489)
Profit on the sale of Lincoln site - (3,739
7,755 21,054

Amortisation of acquired intangibles was £5,826,000 (2010 £8,600,000) and 15 analysed In note 15

After penods of consultation, business improvement programmes were provided for at the Group’s Grenoble and Lincoln sites in the year ended 31 March
2010 Costs of £18,682,000 were recorded in that penied and prineipally related to terminations and associated costs, plant decommission costs and
receivable provisions These casts were offset by the credit resulting from the curtailment of the termination allowance and long service award plans (note
29) See note 23 as to the payments dunng the current financial year against the recorded provision

Further costs assocrated with these restructuring programmes were anticipated to arise during the subsequent two financial years During the year
ended 31 March 2011 ¢osts of £2,496,000 have been expensed in relation to moving production from Lincoln to Chelmsford, bonus payments to staff and
termination costs

In association with the closure of the front end fabncation plant 1n Grenoble a last time stock build programme has been instigated and £774,000 of the
inventory built during the penod has been provided against to recognise the excess level of inventary held

The Group, 1n part, hedges its exposure to foreign currency risks through the use of forward exchange contracts The changes in the fair vatue of the
struments are recorded as exceptional items in the income statement Fluctuations in the exchange rates have resulted in net fair vatue gans of £1,341,000
{2010 £2,589,000)

The netimpairment charge for the year 1s £nil (2010 £mil) and comprises a reversal of a previous impairment charge on tangible fixed assets of £1,154,000
(2010 £ail) (note 13) and an impairment loss of £1,154,000 (ze10 £ni) relating to software (note 14)

On 31 March 2010, the Group agreed the sale of its Lincoln site Through to February 2011, the Group continued to occupy the site, under licence, as work was
transferred to Chelmsford, the new microwave technology centre in Lincoln or was outsourced
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6. Profit/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations i1s stated after charging/(crediting)

2011 2010
£000 £000
Research and development expenditure expensed 11,411 10,757
Amortisation of capitalised development expenditure 979 1315
Total research and development expense 12,390 12,072
Included in cost of sales
Depreciation of property, plant and equpment 8,283 9,641
Included in distnbution and administrative expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equpment 654 608
Amortisatien of software 1,709 2,092
Amortisaticn of acquired ntangibles 5,826 8 600
Total depreciation, amartisation and impairment expense 16,472 20,941
Foreign currency gains ansing from fair value adjustrnents (1,341) {2 489)
Other net foraign currency lossas 1,377 B8535
Total net foreign currency losses/(ga:ns) 36 (1,8349)
Government grants recevable (990) (1,773)
Increase in provision for imparment of trade recenvables recogmised in administrative expenses 279 830
Costs of inventones recognised as an expense 131,722 128 261
Ingluding  Wnite-down of inventones to net realisable value 795 1152
Reversals of mpawments m inventornes® (267} {1,156)
Minimum lease payrments recognised as an operating lease expense 1,678 1424
*The reversal of impairmenis arose as a result of changes In demand for products
7. Auditor's remuneration
2011 2010
£000 £000
Audit of the company financial statements 122 208
Statutory audit fees of subsidiary undertakings 178 179
Local nen-statutory audit services in relation to subsidiary undenakings 18 13
COther services - 386
Total other fees paid to auditor 196 578

In the prior year the other services fees related to the work required by the reporting accountant on the Group's firm placing and nghts issue These fees were

included in share tssue costs which were allocated against the merger reserve
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8 Staff costs and Directors’ remuneration

The average monthly number of employees (including Directors) duning the year was made up as follows

2011 2010
No No
Manufacturing 1,055 1,195
Admirustration 426 471
1,481 1,666
Therr aggregate remuneration comprised
2011 2010
£000 £000
Ongaing remuneration costs
Wages and salaries 58,398 59 688
Socal security costs 11,819 12303
Defined contribution pension costs (note 29) 1,507 1310
Share based payment charges {nots 28) 47 356
Termination allowance and long service awards costs (note 29) 207 346
71,978 74003
Exceptional remuneration costs
Bonus and retention payments 1,546 -
Termination payments 588 16287
Share based payment charges (note 28) (39) 86
Termination allowance and long service awards curtalment gains (note 29) {170) (1 165)
1,925 14 188
Total remuneration 73,903 88,191

Details of Directors’ remuneration for the year are provided in the Dwrectors’ Remuneration Report
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9. Finance costs and revenue

2011 2011 2011 2010 2010 2010
Before Before
exceptional Exceptional exceptional Exceptional

items tems Total items itemns. Total

£000 £000 £0C0 £000 £000 £000

Bank lean interest 2,710 - 2,710 4 B26 - 4 626

Other interest 4 - 4 210 - 210

Interest on defined benefit habilities {note 25) 118 - 118 189 - 189

Amortisation of debt issue costs 1,820 - 1,820 793 718 1512
Totat interast expense for financial habiiies not at

far value through the income staternent 4,652 - 4,652 5818 7189 8,537

Far value adiustments 1o interest rate swaps - asg 38 - ~ -

Total inance costs 4,652 28 4,690 5,818 718 6 537

Bank interest recevable 33 - 33 160 - 160

Far value adjustments to nterest rate swaps - - - - 90 90

Realsed exchange gains on
re-clencmingtion of Euro borrowings - - - - 2 604 2,604
Total finance revenue a3 - 33 160 2694 2854

The Group, in part, hedges its exposure to interest rate nsks through the use of interest rate swap agreements The changes in the fair value of the
instruments are recorded as exceptional items in the iIncome statement During the year ended 31 March 2011, fluctuations in the interest rates have resulted

in net Fair value losses of £38,000 (2010 gan £90,000)

In June and September 2009, the Group repaid its Euro denonnnated debt and utilised forward exchange contracts to fix the rate at which it would purchase
the required Euros Nat exceptional gains of £2,504,000 were recorded on these contracts

In completing the new bank facility in December 2009, unamoartised debt issue costs of £719,000 relating to the prior facility were wnitten off and were treated

as an exceptional item

10. Income tax

Major components of ncome tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010 are

2011 2010
£000 £000
Consolidated iIncome statement
Current ncome {ax
Current income tax expense ~ UK corporation tax 1,572 3,558
Current Income 1ax expense - foreign tax 5,981 (2514
Current income tax expense 7,553 Q44
Adjustments in respect of current Income tax of previous years (80) 1,005
Total current income tax 7,473 1949
Deferred income tax
Relating 10 ongination and reversal of temporary differences (856) (8 298)
Adustments in respect of deferred income tax of previous years {358) {1 105)
Effect of change i tax rate {note 24) a1 -
Total deferred iIncome tax {1,133) @ 403)
Income tax expense/icredit) reported in the Consolidated income statement 6,340 (7.454)
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10. Income tax (continued)

In addition to the amount charged/(credited) to the income statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been recognised directly in other
comprehensive mncome

2011 2010
£000 £000
Current tax
Relating to exchange differences on lpans (1,137} -
Deferred tax
Refating to actuanal losses on post-emiployment benefits 1 (118)
Incorne tax credit recognised directly in other comprehensive income (1,136) (118)

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement and other comprehensive income, the following amounts related to tax have been recognised
directly in equity

2011 2010
£000 £000

Deferrad tax
Change in estmated excess tax deductions related to share based payments recogrused directly v equity (605} {14)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the accounting profit/{loss) before incame tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at
the Group's effective income tax rate for the years ended 31 March 2011 and 201015 as follows

2011 2010

£000 £000

Accounting profit/floss) before income tax 25,832 9720
At UK statutory income tax rate of 28% (2010 28%) 7,233 (2,722)
Permanent differences 84 32
Permanent difference in relation to gain on sale of property - (804)
Tax relef on research and development (2,335) (2,332
Effect of higher taxes on overseas eamngs 1,496 (1,428
Share based payments {94) -
Wte-off of deferred tax assets 313 -
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years — ongoing 472 1,005
Adjustmenis in respect of current income 1ax of previous years — exceptional {nota 11) {552} -
Adiustments in respect of deferred income tax of previous years {358} (1 105)
Change in UK tax rate 81 -
Total tax expense/(credit) reported in the income statement 6,340 (7.454)
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11. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS per share amounts are calculated by dwiding net profit/(loss) for the year attnbutable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding durning the year The denominators for the purposes of calculating basic and diluted EPS in 2010 have been

adyusted to reflect the rights 1ssue in December 2009

Diluted EPS amounts are catculated by dividing the net profit/{loss) for the year attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the effects of dilutive options In the year ended 31 March 2010, a loss for the year was recorded and
the share options were anti-dilutive and hence have not been taken into account for the purposes of calculating diluted basic EPS

Adjusted EPS 15 considered to more appropnatety reflect the underlying performance of the business year on year

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

2011 2010
£000 £000
Profit/floss) for the year 19,492 {2.266)
Amortisaticn of acquired intangible assets 5,826 8 600
Business improvement programme expenses 2,496 18 682
Last time buid inventory provision 774 -
Profit on the sale of Lincoln sde - {3739
Write-off of debt issue costs - 719
Farr value gans on financial nstruments (1,303) (2 579
Realisegd exchange gans on re-denomination of Euro borrowings - (2,804)
Tax effect of the abave (2,733) (7.700)
Tax credit relaung to previcus acquisition {552) -
Adjusted profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders 24,000 9,113
2011 2010
No 000 No 000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Fer basic EPS 213,169 135,698

Effect of dilution

Share opticns 2,215 319
For diluted EPS 215,384 137,017

Stnce the reporting date and before the completion of these financial statements 3,389 shares (2010 mil) have been 1ssued as a result of exercises under
share option schemes The weighted average number of ordinary shares exctudes shares held by the EBT and by the Company as treasury shares

12 Dividends proposed

2011 2010

£000 £ore

2011 intenm dwdend pad 27 May 2011 of 1 2p per share {2010 nil pence) 2,540 -
2011 Final dwidend proposed for approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of 2 4p per share

(2010 nil pence) 5,080 -

7,620 -

The EBT and the Company have waived thew right to receive dividends See note 25 for details of these holdings
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13 Property, plant and equipment

Oifice
Land Plant equipment, Assets
and and fixtures and under
buidings equipment fithngs  construction Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 Apri 2008 14 183 65 444 5,743 869 86,239
Addivons 58 1,430 71 1168 2707
Disposals (559) 4 792) (316) - (5.667)
Reclassfications 88 1797 134 2,041) 22
Exchange adjustment 614 (2,618) {225) 33 (3 424)
At 1 Aprl 2010 13,156 61,241 5,407 29 79,833
Additions 167 999 203 7,394 8,763
Disposals {152) (7,014) (872} - {8,038)
Reclassifications 1,047 3,918 735 (5,731} {31)
Exchange adjustrment {159) 199 {68) - (28)
At 31 March 2011 14,059 59,343 5,405 1,692 80,499
Depreciation
At 1 Apni 2009 3825 38248 3,915 - 45,988
Provided dunng the year 1378 8,082 789 - 10,249
Disposals (508} (4,251) (310 - (5,069)
Reclassfications 58 (74) 5 - (11)
Exchange adjustment (236} (2 321) (133) - {2 690)
At 1 Apnl 2010 4,517 39,684 4,266 - 48,467
Provided dunng the year 1,353 6,906 678 - 8,937
Reversal of previous impairment loss - (1,154) - - (1,154)
Disposals (152} (6,882) (856) - (7,890)
Reclassifications 434 {434) - - -
Exchange adjustment {19) 230 {49) - 162
At 31 March 2011 6,133 38,350 4,039 - 48,522
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2009 10 358 27 196 1828 869 40 251
At 31 March 2010 8,639 21,557 1,141 29 31,366
At 31 March 2011 7,926 20,993 1,366 1,692 31,977
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14. Intangible assets

Patents, Customer
trademarks relationships
and Development and
technology costs Software agreements Goodwill Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At i Apnl 2009 20749 14 748 12,432 44,045 97 247 188 221
Additions - 693 372 - 490 1,555
Disposals - - {267) - - {267}
Reclassifications - - 22 - - 22
Exchange adjustrnent (736) (232) (130) (2 041) 3.776 (6,915)
At 1 Apnl 2010 20,013 15,209 12,429 42,004 93,961 183,616
Addtions - 756 599 - - 1,355
Disposals - - {4,008) - - (4,008}
Reclassifications - - 31 - - 3
Exchange adustment (46} 90 (25} {1,003) {1,638) (2,622}
At 31 March 2011 19,967 16,055 9,026 41,001 92,323 178,372
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2009 11 586 11 585 7 446 20,224 19171 70,022
Charge in year 1,773 1,446 2,082 6,598 - 12,007
Disposals - - (253) - - (253)
Reclassifications - - 11 - - 11
Exchange adjustment (399) (123 iy} {760) (853) (2232
At 1 Apnl 2010 12,970 12,908 9,199 26,160 18,318 79,555
Charge n year 1,675 1,084 1,709 4,046 - 8,514
Imparment [0s5s - - 1,154 - - 1,154
Disposals - - {4,008) - - {4,008)
Exchange adjustment 3 47 (18) {255) (450) (645}
At 31 March 2011 14,676 14,039 8,036 29,951 17,868 84,570
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2009 9153 3163 4,986 23821 78,076 119 199
At 31 March 2010 7 043 2301 3,230 15 844 75.643 104 061
At 31 March 2011 5,201 2,016 590 11,050 74,455 93,802

The amortisation of acquired intangible assets, presented tn note § as an exceptional item, relates to amortisation of intangibles acquired through business
combinations as follows

2011 2010

£000 £600

Patents trademarks and technology 1,675 1,773
Development costs 105 131
Customer refationships and agreements 4,046 6,696
5,826 8 600

Goodwill 15 not amortised but 15 annually tested for impairment {note 15) All other assets have fimite lives
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15 Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to indvidual cash generating units for impairment testing as detailed below

e2v serm-
conductors. e2v
Siemens e2v sen- SAS - aerospace &
high Dynex e2v  conductors Hi-rel serm- defense Inc
power e2v  microwave screntific SAS -  conductor - QP Sermi-
satcom technologtes aglarms instruments tmaging solutions MICS conductors Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 Aprit 2009 359 9709 1,344 2 002 10474 38,017 4,305 31037 97,247
Addibons In year - - - - - - - 480 430
Exchange adjustment - - - - {461} {1,674} 83 {1 704) (3.776)
At 1 Apni 2010 ase 9,709 1,344 2,002 10,013 36,343 4,368 29,823 93,961
Exchange adjustment - - - - {69) (250) 394 (1,713) (1,638)
At 31 March 2011 359 9,709 1,344 2,002 9,944 36,093 4,762 28,110 92,323
Impairment
At 1 Apnl 2009 359 - 1344 - 10 474 - - 6094 19171
Exchange adjustment - - - - (461) - - {392) 833
At 1 Aprl 2010 359 - 1,344 - 10,013 - - 6,602 18,318
Exchange adjustment - - - - {69) - - (381} (450}
At 31 March 2011 359 - 1,344 - 9,944 - - 6,221 17,868
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2009 - 9,709 - 2,002 - 38,017 4 305 24,043 78 076
At 31 March 2010 - 8,709 - 2,002 - 36,343 4 368 23,221 75,643
At 31 March 2011 - 9,709 - 2,002 - 36,093 4,762 21,889 74,455

The recaverable amount of the goodwill for all cash generating units has been determined based on a value in use calculation To calculate this, cash flow
projections are based on financial budgets and forecasts approved by the Board covering a three year period (2010 fouryear peniod) The discount rate
apphied to cash flow projections 1s 15% (2010 15%)

Key assumptions used in valuations
The fallowing describes each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwll

Operating margins — the basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted operating margins is the average margin achieved in the year
ymmediately before the budgeted year, adjusted far any expected changes due to current restructuring programmes, sales mix or efficiency improvements

Discount rates — discount rates reflect the Directors’ estimate of the return on capital employed required in every cash generating umit This is the benchmark
used by the Group to assess operating performance and to evaluate future capital investment proposals A 15% {2010 15%) pre tax discount rate s
considered appropnate for the purpose of iImpairment reviews as it 1s consistent with the rates used in all investment appraisals Itis considered that the
wetghted average cost of capital for the cash generating unit concerned would not be matenally different

Growth rates - have been considered separately for every cash generating umit and are based on financial budgets and forecasts for the next three years
After three years, a growth rate of 2 5% (2010 after four years between 2 5% and 3 0%) has been used

Considering the sensitivity tevels for the vartous cash generating units

e2v technologies, e2v saientific instruments and MICS have sufficient headroom not to be at sk of creating imparrment on the usual range of sensitivity
tests

ezv semiconductors SAS - Hi-rel semiconductor solutions

This cash generating unit 1s based tn Grenoble and its operating margins will benefit from the business improvement programme implemented at this site
Headroom for goodwill based on the current forecast 1s €1g 8 milhon (2010 €6 7 million) Sensitivity levels on these caleulatrons indicate impairment would
need to be considered if

» revenue reduced by 34% (2010 10%), or
- gprojected medium term operating margin reduced by 50% (2010 12%), or
»  discount rate of 20 5% (2010 16 5%) or higher had been selected, or

-~ ata long term growth rate of nil%, no impairment would be recorded (2010 iImpairment occurs at a long term growth rate of 0 5%)
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15. Impairment testing of geodwill (continued)

e2v aerospace & defense tnc - QP Semiconductors

In Light of current performance and i conjunction with the Group'’s strategic review the future prospects of this cash generating unit have been reassessed
such that the headroom aver goodwill has been identified to he of the order of US$18m (2010 US$31m) Sensitivity [evels on these calculations indicate
impairment would need to be consideredf

- revenue reduced by 25% (2010 30%), or
—  operating margin reduced by 25% {2010 30%), or
—  discount rate of 18 6% (2010 21 0%) or higher had been selected, or

-+ ata long term growth rate of ni1% no impairment would be recarded (2010 no impairment at a nii% growth rate}

16. Business combinations

No business combinations have been completed duning the current or prior year

In relation to the acquisition of e2v aerospace and defense Inc (formerly QP Semiconductor Inc ) additional consideration of £490,000 became due during
the prior year on the realisation of certain tax assets and consequently goodwill was increased by that amaunt

17. Inventories

2011 2010

£000 £000

Raw matenals and consumables 19,269 17,351

Work-In-progress 18,461 10 465

Firished goods 9,716 7,665

Total iInventories at Jower of cost and net realisable value 47,446 35,481
18, Trade and other recervables (current)

2011 2010

£000 £000

Trade receivables 40,783 41,248

Qther debtors 6,597 8,358

Prepayments and accrued income 2,626 1590

50,006 51 194

Trade recervables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 or 60 day terms and are shown net of provisien for impairment Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an external credit sconng system to assess the patential customer’s credit quality and defines credit fimits by customers As at 31
March 2011 trade receivables with a value of £760,000 {2010 £1,254,000) were impaired and provided for due to poor payment history, insolvency of the
debtor or their age profile The movements on the provision for impairment of recervables were as follows

201 2010

£000 £000

Prowviston at 1 April 1,254 1,230
Armounts wntten off {227) (201)
Unused amounts reversed (317} (572}
Amounts transferred 1o accruals (218} -
Prowvisions created in the year 279 830
Foreign exchange on retranslation {11) 33
Provision at 31 March 760 1254
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18 Trade and other receivables (current) (continued)

Trade recervables

past due but not Impaired trade
impaired receivables
2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000
0-30 days overdue 4,255 2072 224 11
31-80 days overdue 669 6380 118 3
B1-90 days overdue 434 230 21 11
91120 days overdue 185 - 37 52
120+ days overdue 623 924 360 1177
Total 6,166 3,916 760 1254

The credit quality of the receivables which are reither past due nor impaired 1s assessed on an ongoing basis and as at the balance sheet date, the nisk of
impairment was not considered signifricant

The Directors conseder the carrying amount of trade and other receivables 1s approximately equal to their fair value

19. Cash
2011 2010
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 12,886 22,01
Short term deposits - 5,800
12,886 27 811

Cash at bank earns mterest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates Short term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and
three months depending on the immediate cash reguirements of the Group and earn interest at the respective short term deposit rates The book value of
cash also represents its far value

20 Trade and other payables

2011 2010

£000 £000

Trade payables 25,972 24 593
Taxatien and social securty costs 4,753 3470
Other payables 2,023 578
Contract balances receved on account 5,604 3218
Accruals and deferred income 18,272 15 146
56,624 47,005

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts cutstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs Trade payables and other payables are
non interest bearing and are normally settled on 6o day terms or within six months, respectively Interest payable 15 settled monthly, guarterly or half-yearly
throughout the year depending upon the draw down penieds of the term loans and revolving credit faciltties

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates their fayr value
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21. Borrowings

2011 2010
£000 £000

Non-current
Bank dabt 39,582 B3 471

The Group's current banking facility, which became effective on 31 December zoog and expires on 31 December 2012, comprises term loan and revolving
credit faciliies This facility provides for repayments of £10,000,000 against the term loan facilsty scheduled annually on 31 December, starting from 31
December 2010 In addition to this scheduled £10,000,000 repayment made on 31 December 2010, mandatory prepayments of the term loan totalling
£4,721,000 were made during the year Furthermore the Group cancelled £24,590,000 of the revolving facility during the year As at 31 March 2011 exchange
rates, the total facibity 1s £65,589,000 (2010 £107,486,000) and compnses £40,972,000 (2010 £56,455,000) of term loans (denominated in Sterling and US
dollars) and a revolving credit facility of £24,617,000 {denominated in Sterling and US dollars) (2010 £51,031,000 {denominated in Sterling, US dollars and
Euros))

Provided covenants continue to be met, the draw down under the revolving eredit Facility is at the discretion of the Group and consequently the loan 1s treated
as non-curent

As at 31 March 2011, £nil (zo10 £16,173,000) was drawn down under the revolving credit faciiity and £40,972,000 (2010 £56,455,000) was drawn down as
term foans

As at31 March 2011, unamortised debt 1ssue costs were £1,390,000 (2010 £3,157,000) Duning the year, 1ssue costs of £53,000 (2010 £3,608,000) were
incurred in conjunction with arranging the facility, which are being amortised over the expected life of the debt

The term loan facility can be drawn down for periods of three or six months, at which paint the interest rate 1s set for the draw down penod The revolving
credit facility is repaid and re-drawn at perrodic intervals ranging from one week to six months, with the interest rate set at each draw down date Interest
15 set by reference to LIBOR plus a margin which is determined based on the level of the reported leverage covenant (defined as net borrowings earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation)

At 31 March 2011, the Group had available £24,617,000 (2010 £34,858,000) of un-drawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions
precedent had been met

The bank loans are secured by a floating charge over the net assets of the Group

22. Other financial assets and liabilities

2011 2010
£000 £000
Other financial assets
Current
Forward currency contracts 534 -
Other financial iabilihes
Current
Interest rate swap (192) {708}
Forward currency contracts - 807
{192} {1,5158)
Non-current
Interest rate swap - (131)
{192) {1 648)

Further details of the derivative financial instruments are included in niote 32
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23 Provisions

Onerous Business
project improvement Product

losses Environmental programme warranty Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2010 480 410 20,637 5,035 26,562
Ansing dunng the year 1,353 920 588 2,158 5,019
Released dunng the year {5) (150) - (538) {717)
Utlsed {8) (208) (10,182 (2,138) (12,532)
Exchange adjustment 43 - (443) {52) (452)
At 31 March 2011 1,861 972 10,600 4,447 17,880
Current 2011 1,861 772 8,663 4,447 15,743
Non-current 2011 - 200 1,937 - 2,137
1,861 972 10,600 4,447 17,880

Current 2010 480 212 14,807 5,035 20,534
Nen-current 2010 - 198 5,830 - 6028
480 410 20837 5035 26 562

The effect of the time value of money 15 not matenal and therefore the above provisions are not discounted

Onerous project losses

A provision 1s recognised for expected losses on projects in progress at the balance sheet date It 1s expected that the losses will be ncurred in the next
financial year

Environmental

A prowision 1s recogmised for expected environmental costs relating to UK manufacturing operations It 1s expected that these costs will be incurred within two
years of the balance sheet date

Business improvement programme

With the business improvement programme at Lincoln having been completed during the year, as at 31 March 2011, the restructuring provision relates to
the business improvement programme at the Group's Grenoble faciity The front end fabrication plant at Grenoble will be closing in June 2011, after the
completion of the last ttme tnventory burld programme French termination payments are made for a peniod of up to 12 months after a person leaves the
busimess and as such terminatior payments are expected to be incurred over the period to june 2012 Other payments associated with the programme are
expected to be incurred over the pertod to December 2012

Product warranty

A provision 1s recognised for expected warranty claims on products sold that are within their warranty penod at the end of the year The warranty period
can be date or hours usage based Itis expected that these costs will be incurred in the next financial year Assumptions used to calculate the provision for
warranties were based on relevant sales levels and current information available about warranty claims

24. Deferred tax

The movements on deferred tax Labilities and (assets) during the year are as follows

Total
£000
At 1 Apnl 2010 {1,699)
Credited to mcome statement (1,214)
Charged {0 other comprehensve income 1
Credited direct to equity {605)
Efiect of change in tax rate - Income statement 81
Exchange adjustment (340}
At 31 March 2011 {3,776)
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24. Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred Income tax balances relate to the following

2011 2010
£000 £000

Deferred income tax habilities
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 319 599
Fair value of ntangible assets 6,079 8 500
Fair value of fand and buldings 476 757
Revaluation of financial nsruments a7 -
6,971 9,856

Deferred income tax assets

Employment benefits 1,492} (323
Revaluation of financial instruments - (461)
Share based payment charges {762) @9
Deferred tax allowances on provisions and accruals (8,389) 9,368)
Losses carned forward (104) (1,304)
(16,747) {11 555)
Net deferred income tax (asset} (3,776) [t 699
Deferred tax asset {10,408) {10,197)
Deferred tax hatility 6,632 8,498
(3,776} {1,690)

At 31 March 2011, the UK government had enacted a 1% reduction in the main rate of UK corporation tax and substantively enacted a further 1% reduction
in the man rate of UK corporation tax reducing the rate from 28% to 26% from 1 April 2011 The UK deferred tax balances as at 31 March zo11 have been
caleulated based on the application of the reduced 26% UK corporation tax rate and the effect of the re-measurement has been recorded in the income
statement or statement of other comprehensive income as appropriate

The UK government has also proposed reducing the UK corporation tax rate by a further 1% per annum to 23% by 1 April 2014 These further rate changes
have not been substantially enacted at the balance sheet date and their effects are not therefore tncluded in these finanoial statements We do nat expect the
enactment of these changes will have a matenal effect on the deferred tax balance of the Group

There are no mcome tax consequences for the Company attaching to the payment of dividends to its shareholders

Management have reviewed the situation for those junsdictions where deferred assets anse and have determined, based on current forecasts prepared by
management, that these assets can be recovered through future taxable profits within a reasonable time honzon

As at 3t March 2011, the aggregate amount of undistributed earnings of overseas subsidiaries for which deferred tax labilities have not been recogmised 1s
approximately £71 million (2010 £66 milhon) No hiability has been recognised i respect of these differences because the Group i1s in the position to controt
the timing of the reversal of the temperary differences and it i1s probabte that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future it1s likely that the
majonty of the overseas earnings would qualify for the UK dividend exemption

As at 31 March zo11, the Group has unused and unrecognised tax losses arnising in Switzerland of £7 million (zo10 £8 mullion) available for offset against
future profits They expire between now and 2016
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25. Called up share capital

Ordinary shares 1ssued and fully paid, 5p each No £000
At 1 Apnl 2009 62 569,593 3,128
Shares 1ssued — share placing November 2009 31,428,571 1,571
Shares 1ssued — nghts 1ssue December 2009 120,854 782 6043
Issued for cash on exercise of share options 1110 -
At 31 March 2010 214,854,056 10,742
Issued for cash on exercise of share options 7,855 -
At 31 March 2011 214,861,911 10,742
Held by Company Held by EBT
Own shares No £000 No £000
At 1 Aprl 2009 - - 518,856 5
Rights acquired duning the year - - 268 877 -
At 31 March 2010 - - 787,733 5
Shares acquired dunng the year 2,400,000 2477 - -
At 31 March 2011 2,400,000 2177 787,733 5

The market value of the own shares at 31 March 2011 was £3,682,000 (2010 £311,000) 5ee notes 26 and 28

During the year the Company increased its 1ssued share capital on the exercise of options under share option schemes Total proceeds from shares 15sued
under exercise of share options amounts to £2,400 (2010 £400)

Dunng the prior year, 31,428,571 new ordinary shares of sp each were placed with institutions at a price of 70 pence per share on 22 November 2009 and
120,854,782 new ordinary shares of 5p each were 1ssued under a rights 1ssue with existing shareholders on 6 December zoog The gross proceeds of these
1ssues were £55,839,000 and Issue costs of £3,646,000 were incurred (some of which had been accrued but not paid at 3: March 2010) resulting in net
proceeds of £52,193,000 The firm placing and nghts 1ssue were enacted via the use of a new subsidiary Eberry Capital Linuted, registered m Jersey, in each

transachion RBS Hoare Govett subscnbed for greater than 10% of the ordinary shares and 100% of 3 classes of preference shares in the subsidiary, which was

subsequently exchanged for an ailotment of the newly 15sued ordinary shares in the Company

Under the terms of the Group's various share option schemes (see note 28 far further details), the following options to subscnbe fer ordinary shares are

outstanding

Option price 2011 2010
Date of Grant {pence} Exercise penod No No
Long Term Incentive Plan
18 July 2007 - From 14 July 2010 - 318,997
15 July 2008 - From 15 July 2011 515,615 567,676
16 Apnl 2009 - From 16 Apnl 2012 - 63 296
5 May 2009 - From & Aprll 2012 105,626 106 626
24 June 2009 - From 24 June 2012 591,619 742,423
3 August 2010 - From 3 August 2013 2,235,964 -
3 August 2010 - From 3 August 2014 2,235,987 -
18 November 2010 - From 3 August 2013 106,367 -
18 November 2010 - From 3 August 2014 11,093 -
Executive Share Option Plan
12 January 2007 25058 1 February to 31 December 2010 - 71,168
20 December 2007 160 51 1 January to 31 December 2011 - 287,980
Share Save Scheme
9 February 2007 22212 1 Apnl to 30 September 2010 - B9 255
11 January 2008 14218 1 March to 31 Augusi 2011 983,533 142,458
4 February 2009 14218 1 March to 31 August 2012 22,142 37168
14 August 2009 36 02 1 November 2012 to 30 Apnl 2013 3,786,254 3975687
8 December 2010 8975 1 January 2014 to 30 June 2014 362,235 -

10,066,435 6381,745
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26. Reserves
Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium reserve

Generally, additions to this reserve are made when shares are issued, for ¢ash or otherwise, by the Company for amounts in excess of their nomunal value
This reserve can be utilised to 1ssue fully paid bonus shares, to wnte off any 1ssue costs and to provide for any premium payable on the redemption of any
debentures of the Company

Merger reserve

As discussed in note 25, both the placing and the rights 1ssue undertaken in the prror financial year were affected through a structure which resulted n the
excess of the net proceads over the nominal value of the share capstal being recogmised within a merger reserve, which the Directors’ believe 15 currently
distributable

Own shares reserve

The awn share reserve records movements tn e2v technologies plc's shares held by the EBT erthe Company The movement in the year relates to the shares
purchased by the Company duning the year (note 25)

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve IS used to record reserve transfers required on the redemption of shares This reserve is not distnibutable

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve 15 used to record exchange differences anising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries
It 15 also used to record the net investments hedged in these subsidianies

27 Commitments and contingencies

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee

The Group has entered into commercial leases on certain properties, moter vehicles and items of machinery where 1t 15 not in the best interest of the Group to
purchase these assets Renewals are at the option of the specific entity that holds the [ease There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into
these leases

Future minimum rentals payable under non canceltable operating leases as at 31 March are as follows

2011 2010
£000 £000
No later than one year 1,727 1471
After one year but not more than five years 1,374 2947
3,101 4,418

Capital commitments
At 31 March 2011, the Group has commitments of £1,137,000 (zo10 £727,000) principally relating to the acquisition of new plant and equipment

Contingent habilities

in the ordinary course of business, the Group may 1ssue performance and advance payment guarantees to third parties As at 31 March 2011, guarantees of
£2,603,000 (2010 £3,790,000) were outstanding The Directoss are of the opinion that the nisk to the Group associated with these guarantees 1s not material
and consequently nio provision is recorded
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28. Equity settled share based payments

The Group operates four share based award schemes as follows

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP}

Those awards 1ssued prior to 31 March 2010 vest on the third anniversary of the date of the award subject to performance targets being met Targets relate
to Total Shareholders' Return (TSR) relative to the TSR of a specified hist of peer group companies In addition, no award will vest (irrespective of the Group's
relative TSR performance) unless an adjusted EPS growth “underpin” of Retail Price Index (RPI) plus 2% over the three year performance penod has been
satisfied (unless the Remuneration Committee considers, in exceptional circumstances, that it would be inappropnate to apply this “underpin™) For those
awards made duning the year vesting will eccur in August 2013 and August 2014 and are subject to a target level of TSR being achieved at the vesting date
All awards under this scheme have a nil exercise price and have no end date by which they must be exerised The following table provides details of awards
made ynder this scheme

201 2010

No No

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,798,018 792,725
Granted n the year 5,009,345 647,350
Awards lapsed dunng the year {1,005,092) (341,049)
Adjustment for nghts 1ssue - £08,992
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,802,271 1,798 018

Shares i relation to the LTIP wall inihially be 1ssued from those currently held by the EBT and from those held in treasury by the Company See note 25 for the
number of shares held and for the resulting balance recorded within reserves

There were no options exercisable at the balance sheet date (2010 mil)

Executive Share Qption Plan (ExSOP)

The Group has an ExSOP for the granting of non-transferable options to certain employees Gptions granted under the plan vest on the first day an which they
become exercisable which 1s typically three years after the grant date The overall Life of the aptions 1s under four years The vesting period for the EXSOP ts
finite allowing eligible employees to exercise the option in a fixed period, once conditions are met These options are settled in equity once exercised The
options may not be exercised unless, over the vesting penod, the adjusted EPS has increased by a fixed percentage above the RPI as detailed below

For a period of three years, commencing with the financiat year in which the option 1s granted, the increase in EPS must be more than the increase in RPl as
follows

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3
EPS exceeds RPIl by 15% 20% 40% 100%
EPS exceeds RPI by 20% 50% 100%
EPS exceeds RPI by 25% 100%

The EPS Is adjusted EPS, calculated on a consistent basis over the three year penod, and exciudes amortisation of acquered intangibles, business
improvement programme expenses and other items determmed to be of a non-recurnng nature The percentages in the above table are the percentages of the
option that will vest should the performance criteria be achieved

All options 1ssued under the ExSOP lapsed during the year

The following table Hlustrates the number, weighted average remaining contractual ife and the weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of share options for
the ExSOP

201 2011 2000 2010

WAEP WAEP

No {pence) No {pence)

Quistanding at tha beginning of the year 359,159 178 36 403 500 258 08
Lapsed dunng the year {359,159) 178 36 (180 575) 224 34
Adjustment for nghts 1ssue - - 136,234 na
Owutstanding at the end of the year - - 359,158 178 36
Exercizable at the end of the year - - 79,110 24156
Weighted average remaining contractual life (months) - 19
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28 Equity settled share based payments (continued)

Share Incentive Plan (SIP)
No awards have been made to date under this scheme

Share Save Scheme (SAYE)

The Group operates an HM Revenue and Customs approved SAYE for all UK employees and Executive Directors and managers can apply to join the scheme

The following table (llustrates the number, weighted average remaining contractual Iife and the weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of share options for

the SAYE
2011 2011 2010 2010
WAEP WAEP
No (pence) No {pence)
QOutstanding at the beginning of the year 4,224 568 43 58 691 388 244 16
Exercised dunng the year (7,855) 36 02 (1 110) 3602
Lapsed dunng the year (328,019} 9818 {654,507) 19898
Granted during the year 375,470 B9 75 2 595,296 57 0C
Adjustment for nghts issue - - 1 593,501 na
Outstanding at the end cf the year 4,264,164 43 46 4,224,568 43 58
Exercisable at the end of the year 149,500 103 20 - n/a
Weighted average share pnce on date of exercise of options (pence) 90 80 39 50
Woeighted average remaining contractual life {months) 26 30

The fair value of all share option plans 1s estimated as at the date of grant For LTIP awards during the year and for all awards in the previous year the binomial
model has been utilised The fair value of the SAYE awards durning the year has utilised the Black-Schales mode! The following table gives the assumptions
made No subsequent amendments have been made to assumptions estimated at the date of grant

Dividend Expected Risk free  Expected life Fair value
vield volatiity interest rate of option of option
% % % yoars pence
LTIP

Awards granted 18 Apnl 2009 4 0% 52% 2 08% 3 years 576
Awards granted 5 May 2009 4 0% 58% 198% 3 years 77T
Awards granted 24 June 2009 4 0% 652% 2 06% 3 years 352
Awards granted 3 August 2010 4 4% 68% 119% 3 years 209
Awards granted 3 August 2010 50% 61% 161% 4 years 31.2
Awards granted 18 November 2010 35% 70% 1 20% 271 years 404
Awards granted 18 Novemnber 2010 38% 64% 1 76% 371 years 426

SAYE
Awards granted 14 August 2009 4 0% 60% 223% 325 years 146
Awards granted 8 December 2010 34% 66% 1861% 3 25 years 307

The expected life of the options 1s based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur The expected volatility
reflects the assumplion that the historical valatility 1s indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome No other features of

options granted were incorporated into the measurement of fair value
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29. Pensions, other post-employment and other employment benefits

Pefined contnbution plans

The Group has defined contnibution plans in the UK and North America, covering substantially all of its employees, whech require contributions to be made to
a separately administered fund The Group contributes to state schemes for Continental European actties Such schemes are defined contribution schemes
and there 18 no Group exposure to any scheme habilities Contnbutions of £165,000 (2010 £155,000) were outstanding at the end of the financtal year and

have been included in other crediters

Other post-employment and other employment benefits

In addition to the state pension scheme, e2v semiconductors SAS has unfunded arrangements where there are obligations to provide termination allowances
and "Medailles du Travail’ (long service awards) The bability has been calculated at 31 March 2011 by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method The cost of providing these benefits 1s charged to the income statement in the period in which those benefits have been earned by the employees
Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in fullin the penod in which they anse For the termination allowance the actuanal gains and losses are recorded in
other comprehensive iIncome whereas for the long service award the actuanal gains and losses are recorded In the income statement

The main assumptions used in determining the habibities of the arrangements include the discount rate for discounting scheme habihities, the expected
rate of salary inflation, staff turnover rates and future mortality in service assumptions For each of these assumptions, there 1S a range of passible values

Relatively small changes in some of these vanables can have a significant effect on the level of the total obligatian

As at 31 March 2011, a non current habiity of £2,941,000 (2010 £2,839,000) has been recognised with respect to the termination allowance and long service

award

The table below details the combined present value of the termination allowance and long service awards plan obligations and expenence adjustments

recognised
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of plan s obligations 3,125 2,839 3,527 3206 2792
Past service cost not vet recogrused in the balance sheet {184) - - - -
Liability recorded in the balance sheet 2,941 2,839 3527 3206 2792
Experience (losses)/gams recognised in the year (135) (114) (336) {108) 226

A plan amendment has ansen due to change i rules of the termmation allowance scheme The liability walt be charged to the income statement over the
average rematring service life of the employees in the scheme

£37,000 (2010 credit £819,000) of admimistrative expenses and £118,000 (2010 £189,000) of Interest expense have been recognised in the iIncome

statement
Long service Terminatton
award allowance Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

£000 £000 £000 £000 £0C0 £000
Service cost 52 B2 112 142 164 204
Interest on defined benefit habibties 33 55 85 134 118 189
Actuanal gains and losses 30 142 - - 30 142
Past service cost - - 13 - 13 -
Curtalment {(37) (324) (133) (841) (170) {1185)
Total expense/({income} 78 {85) 77 (565) 155 (630)
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29. Pensions, other post-employment and other employment benefits (continued)

The actuanal gains and losses relating to the long service award are recorded in the 1ncome statement whilst those relating to the termination allowance are
recorded In other comprehensive inceme The actuzanal [oss recogmised for the current and prior year ¢an be analysed as follows

Long service Termination
award allowance Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2014 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Demographic changes 56 51 135 71 191 122
Staff turmover - 12 - 18 - 30
Salary increases - (29) - 87) - (116)
Discount rate (39) 119 (72) 253 {111} 372
Change in retrement age - - (24} - (24} -
Difference between the benefits paid 13 ) (45) [20) (32) 79
Total actuanal gains and losses 30 142 (8) 345 24 487

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses recogrised since 1 August 2006 (date of acquisition of the hiabilitres) in the Consolidated statement of

comprehensive income and expense is £17,000 (2010 £23,000)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are given betow

Long service Termmnahon
award allowance Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Opening defined benefit obligaton 876 1060 1,863 2,467 2,839 3,527
Exchange rate movement 3 (47} 3 {112) (6) (159
Service cost 52 62 112 142 164 204
Interest expense 33 55 85 134 118 189
Benefits paid {34} 72 - (172 (34) 249)
Actuanal lossf{gan) 30 142 &) 345 24 487
Past serice cost - - 190 - 190 -
Effect of business iImprovement programme 37) (324) (133) {841) (170) {1 165}
Closing defined benefit obhigation 917 B76 2,208 1 963 3,125 2,839

The valuation assumptions used to estimate the defined benefit obligation are
2011 2010
Retirement age 64 years 64 years
Discount rate 4 B8% 4 59%
Salary increases — adminustration 254% 2 54%
Salary increases — operators 312% 312%
Salary increases - engineers 319% 319%
Staff turnover rates - adminustration 185% 1 85%
Staff tumover rates - operators 120% 120%
Staff turnover rates - engineers 2 50% 2 50%

The actuanal valuation takes account of estimated mortality rates up to the date of retirement The mortality rates are based on the French mortality tables TF
2000-2002 {(women) and TH zooo 2002 (men) Mo account s taken of post retirement mortality rates as there 1s no liability after the date of retirement
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30 Related party disclosures

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
Key management comprises the Board of Directors Further details of thewr remuneration can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

2011 2010

£000 £000
Short term employee bienefits including social secunty) 1,342 1008
Compensation for loss of office fincluding socal securityl - 186
Defined contribution pension costs 68 553
Share based payments 50 59
Total compensation pawd to key management perscnnel 1,460 1318

No Director had any matenal interest in any contract connected with the Group's business during the year or at the end of the year

31 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal finanaial instruments, other than denvatives, compnise bank loans and cash The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations The Group has vanous other financial instruments such as trade debtors and trade creditors, which arise directly from its
operations

The Group also enters into dervative transacttons, prncipally interest rate swaps and forward currency contracts The purpose IS to manage the interest rate
and currency risks ansing from the Group's operations and its sources of finance

It1s, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group's policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken

The main risks arising from the Group's financral instruments are interest rate risk, iqurdity risk, foreign currency nsk and credit sk The Board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarnsed below The Group also monitors the market price nsk ansing from all financral
instruments The magnitude of thus risk that has ansen over the year 1s discussed in note 32 The Group’s accounting policies in relation to dernivatives are set
out in note 2

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to market nisk far changes in interest rates relates prtmarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and vanable rate debt To manage this mix in a cost efficient manner, the Group enters
into interest rate swaps, in which the Group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and vanable interest amounts calculated
by reference to an agreed upon notional principal amount At 31 March 2011, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 65%
(2010 99%) of the Group's borrowings were at a fixed rate of interest

Based on the borrowings and interest rate swaps cutstanding at the end of the year and assuming constant exchange rates, it 1s estimated that an increase
of 1% n interest rates on the Group's borrowings would increase the annual interest payable by fo 2m (2010 £nil} A 1% increase 1 interest rates on bank
deposits 1s estimated to increase finance income by less than £0 1m {2010 less than £0 1m)

Foreign currency rnsk

The Group has operations in the United States, Europe and Asia As a result the Group’s balance sheet can be affected significantly by movements in the
U5 doliar and Euro exchange rates The Group does not currently hedge this exposure, other than by using foreign currency borrowings, in part, to finance
overseas investments

The Group also has transactional currency exposures Such exposure anises from sales by an operating umit in currencies other than the unit's functional
currency Approximately 82% (2010 79%) of the Group’s sales are outside of the UK and a significant proportion of these sales are not Steeling and therefore
subject to foreign exchange The Group also incurs operational costs in both US dollars and Euros The Group manages its transactional currency exposures
centrally by using forward ¢urrency contracts to minimise the net currency exposures It 1s the Group's policy to enter into forward exchange contracts to
cover specific foreign currency receipts and payments within the next 12 months on a reducing proportion basis
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31 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

The following table demonstrates the Group's sensitivity to a reasonably possible strengthening m the U5 dollar and a weakening of the Euro exchange rates
in refation to Sterling with all other vaniables held constant The obverse movements would be of the same magmtude The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items at the balance sheet date The sensitivity excludes external loans as exchange gains and losses
on retranstation are not reported within profit before taxation

Change in USS/Euro rate Eftect on profit before tax

£000

2011 - US$ 20% strengthening in USS 1,290
2011 - Euro 20% weakening i Euro (943)
2010 - US$ 20% strengthening in US$ (2,890
2010 - Euro 20% weakening in Euro {2,580)

The increase {2010 reduction) in profit before tax in respect of US dollar sensitivity encludes a loss of £2,803,000 (2010 £4,472,000) 1n relation ta the
estimated effect on the valuation of forward foreign currency exchange contracts The reduction in profit before tax in respect of the Euro sensitivity includes a
loss of £919,000 (2010 £949,000) in relation to the estimated effect on the valuation of forward foreign currency exchange contracts

The effect of translating the net assets of foreign operations into Sterling is excluded from the sensitivity analysis The Group has no foreign currency
exposure with regard to transactions accounted for directly wathin equity

The Group's net borrowings are subject to currency nisk due to cash and bank borrowings held in foreign currencies The analysis of net borrowings by
currency 1$ shown in the table below

Year end 201

exchange rate £000

Denominated in Euro € 3,740,000 113 3,305
Denominated in US dollar $ 6,738,000 161 4,191
Denominated in Sterling £ (36,046,000) 100 (36,046)
Other currencies 464
{28,086)

Year end 2010

exchange rate £000

Denominated in Eurc € 5674,000 112 5049
Denominated in US dollar $ (47,055 000} 152 (31,083
Denominated in Sterking £ (18,965 000) 100 (18,965)
Qther currenc.es 162
(44,817)

Credit nsk

The Group trades only with bustnesses it considers creditworthy third parties Itis the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit venfication procedures In addition, receivable balances are monitared on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad
debts 1s not significant Trade receivabtes consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industnes and geographical areas

With respect to credit nsk ansing from financial assets of the Group, which compnise trade and other recetvables and cash, the Group’s exposure to credit risk
anses from default of the counter party, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments There are no significant concentrations
of eredit nsk within the Group

Liguidity nisk

Liguidity nsk 1s the nisk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The Group’s objective 15 to mantain a balance
between continuity of funding and Aexibility through the use of bank loans and finance lease contracts The Group’s policy 1s to use funds in excess of the
ongoing operating requirements to make early repayments against the bank borrowings

The Group's objective 15 to maintain a positive cash balance at a tevel adequate for daily operations while retaining the option to use revohang credit faciiities
for short term flexibility as necessary
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31 Finanaal nsk management objectives and policies (continued)

The table below summarises the maturnity profile of the Group’s non derwvative financ¢ial habiliies at 31 March 2011 2nd 2010 based on contractual
undiscounted payments

Carryting Contractual

amount cash flows Wrthin 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

31 March 2011
Interest-beanng loans and borowings (note 21} 39,582 40,972 10,000 30,972 -
Interest payable on loans and borrowings 130 3,059 1,755 1,304 -
Trade and other payables 47,061 47,061 47,061 - -
Onerous project losses 1,861 1,851 1,861 - -
88,634 92,953 60,677 32,276 -

31 March 2010
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 59 471 72628 11,525 10 C00 51 103
Interest payable on leans and borrowings 1 265 8413 4516 2338 1 561
Trade and other payables 49 468 40 468 40,468 - -
Onerous project losses 480 480 480 - -
111684 121 988 56,989 12336 52,664

The carrying value of interest bearing leans and borrowings s after a deduction for unamortised debt issue costs of £1,390,000 (2010 £3,157,000) Interest
payable on loans and borrowings is calculated on an undiscounted basis at berrowing rates applicable at the end of the year and only takes into account
scheduled repayments on the term loan

The matunty analysis for denvative finanaiat habilitres 1s detailed in note 32

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern whilst maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance The Group's capital comprises sharehotders’ funds as detailed in notes 25 and 26 and net
borrowings as detailed above and in note 21 The Group manages its capital structure through maintaining close relabionships with its bankers who provide
the majority of funds used for operational requirements

During the year, as detailed in note 25, the Group has purchased 2,400,000 shares in the Company These shares are being held as treasury shares and are
seen as a hedge against those shares which may be required to be transferred to satisfy options under the LTIP scheme as they vest

The Group 15 required to mamtatn covenant ratios in respect of leverage {defined as net debt to earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation),
interest cover (defined as net interast ¢osts to earnings before interest, tax and amortisation) and, if leverage Is greaterthan 1 25 1, cash cover (defined as
operating cash flow to debt servicang costs) The Group has met its covenant ratios for the year ended 31 March 2011

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidianies are subject to externally imposed capital requirements

As a result of the significant improvement in profits the Company has restored its progressive dividend programme with an interim dividend of 1 2p per share
and a proposed final dividend of 2 4p per share
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32. Financial instruments

Fair values

Set out below 15 a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments that are carnred in the financial
statements

Carrying amount Farir value
2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Leans and recevables
Cash 12,886 27 811 12,886 27,811
Forward currency contracts ° 534 - 534 -
Financtal iabilities
Interest-bearing leans and borrowings
Floating rate barrowings {39,582) {69 471) (40,972) (72 628}
Held for trading at fair value through profit or loss
Forward curency coniracts - [(3]e4] - {807}
Interest rate swaps (192} (839) {192) (839)

The carrying value of interest bearing loans and borrowtngs is after a deduction for debt 1ssue costs of £1,390,000 (2010 £3,157,000)

Fair value hierarchy

In accordance with [FRS 7, “Financial Instruments Disclosures”, the Group classifies farr value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of inputs used in making measurements of fair value The fair value hierarchy has the following levels

Level1  quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identifiable assets or habilities,

Level2  inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (1 € prices) or indirectly (| e
denved from prices), and

Level3  Inputs for the asset or lrability that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs)

The fair value of interest rate swap contracts and forward currency contracts are calculated by management based on external valuations received from the
Group’s bankers and are based on future interest yields and forward exchange rates, respectively The fair value measurement basis of the instruments 1s
categonsed within Level 2 The carrying amount of the other financial instruments of the Group, 1 e short term trade recewables, payables and provisions
that are not included in the above table, 1s a reasonable approximation of fair value

Currency — forward exchange contracts

The Group holds several forward exchange contracts designated to reduce the transactional exchange rnisk of US dollar denonminated sales to customers The
terms of these contracts are as foltows

Matunng within 1 year
Total currency value of contracts Average exchange rate £000

31 March 2011
US$9,100,000 USS £1 5613 5,829
US$8,200,000 uUss €13135 5,517

31 March 2010
US$17,850,000 Uss €1 6227 11,000
US$8,600,000 USS €1 3641 5,610
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32 Financial instruments {continued)

Interest rate swaps

The Group has interest rate swap agreements in place i relation to its term loan whereby it pays a fixed or secured rate of interest and receives a vanable
rate equal to the notional amount

Notional amount Maturity Secured rate Vanable rate

31 March 2011

£26,250,000 31 December 2011 2018% 3 month GEP LIBOR
31 March 2010

£26,250 000 31 Cecember 2011 1 955% 3 month GBP LIBOR
US%$24 400,000 31 Cecember 20113 138% 3 month USD LIBOR
€24 710,063 12 July 2011 331% - 500% 6 month EUR Eunbor

Based on exchange rates and interest rates on the balance sheet date the Group’s hability under the interest rate swap arrangements on an undiscounted
basis 1s a payment of £79,000 on a quarterly basis through to 31 December 2011 The Group’s equivalent liability at 31 March 2010 was quarterly payments of
£130,000 through to 31 December 2010 and quarterly payments of £105,000 through to December 2011
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of e2v technologies plc

We have audited the consohdated financial statements of ezv technologies
plc For the year ended 31 March 2011 which comprise the Consclidated
Intome statement, the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the Consolidated statement of financial position, the Consolidated statement
of cash flows, the Consolidated staternent of changes in equity and the
related notes 1to 32 The financaial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our

audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and
auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ statement of responsibilibias setout
in the Directors’ Report, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements and for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view Qur responstbility 15 1o audd and express an opimion

an the consolidated financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law
and Internatienal Standards on Auditing (UK and treland) Those standards
reguire us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards
for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

An audit involves cbtaining evidence about the amounts ard disclosures

in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that

the financ:a! statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness

of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addstion, we read all the financial
and non-financial information 10 the Annual Report and Financial Statements
to identify matenial inconsistencies with the audited financial statements I
we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or Inconsistencies
we consider the implications For our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the consolidated financial statements

-+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31
March 2011 and of 1ts profit for the year then ended,

»  have been properly prepared i accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, and

—  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Companies
Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinten

—  thenformation gven in the Directors’ Report for the financial year

for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the
financial statements, and

-»  the information given in the Corporate Governance Report with respect
to internal control and nisk management systems in relation to financial
reporting processes and about share capital structures 1s consistent
with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception
We have nothing ta report in respect of the following

Underthe Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our
opinion

-+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not
made, or

- we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require
fer our audit, or

-+ aCorporate Governance Report has not been prepared by the Company
tinder the Listing Rules we are required to review
»  the Directors’ Report in relation to going concern,

~+  the part of the Corporate Governance Report relating to the Company's
compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008 Combined Code
specified for our review, and

—  certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on
Directors' remuneration

Other matter .

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of
ez2v technologies pic for the year ended 31 March 2011 and on the Directors’
Remuneration Report that 1s described as having been audited

cte Ce

Robert Forsyth (Senior statutory #iditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

Cambndge

3 June 2011

Notes

1 The maintenance and integrity of the e2v website is the responsibtlity of the
Directors, the work carned out by the auditor does not involve consideration
of these matters and accordingly, the auditor accepts no responsibility for
any changes that may have accurred to the financial statements since they
were initially presented on the websste

2 Legislation in the Umited Kingdom govermng the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation n ether
junsdictions
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Company balance sheet

As at 31 March zo1n1

2011 2010
Notes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2 - -
Invesiments 3 120,462 120 281
120,462 120 281
Current assets
Debtors
— due within one year a 26,197 18 821
- due after one year 4 22,797 179
Cash at bank and in hand 7 500
48,995 19 800
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 5 {9,212) (3,573
MNet current assets 39,783 16,027
Total assets less current kabidrties 160,245 136 308
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 6 (39,582) (31 974)
Net assets 120,663 104 334
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 8 10,742 10,742
Share premium account 9 41,783 41,780
Merger reserve 9 44,557 44 579
Capital redemption reserve g 274 274
Own shares reserve 9 {2,182) 5
Retaned earmings g 25,489 6 964
Equity sharsholders’ funds 10 120,663 104 334

Approved by the Board of Directors on 3 June 2011

e

K Attwood C Hindson
Chilef Executive Group Finance Director
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Notes to the financial statement

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of ezv technologies plc (Company) are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 (Act) and were approved for 1ssue
by the Board of Directors on 3 june 2011 They have been prepared on the historical cost basis, with the exception of financial instruments as descnbed
below, and n accordance with applicable United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAF)

As permitted under section 408 of the Act the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for the year The profit deait with in the
financial statements of the parent company 1s disclosed in note 9

The Company has taken exemption from the requirement to prepare a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS 1 (revised), “Cash Flow Statements”

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in paragraph 2D of FRS 29, “Financial Instruments Disclosures™, and has not disclosed information
required by the Standard as the consolidated financial statements, in which the Company 1s included, provide equivatent disclosures for the Group under
IFRS 7, *Financial Instruments Disclosures™

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 8, “Related Party Disclosures”, and not disclosed related panty transactions with
wholly owned subsidiary undertakings

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below and have been apphed consistently in the current and pnor financial year

Going concern

The Directors, having considered all of the relevant information, have a reasanable expectatron that the Company has adequate resources to continue in |
operational existence for the foreseeable future and as such believe that it1s appropnate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, as !
detailed in the Directors’ Report  These financial statements have therefare been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Company wilt be

able to meet its Liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future [

Foreign currencies

The presentation and functional currency of the Company 15 Sterling  Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange
ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of
exchange prevailing at that date Currency translation differences are recognised in the profit and loss account

Tangible assets

Moter vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment invalue Depreciation is provided se as to wnte off the cost of the asset
on a straight-hine basis over the estimated useful iife of three years The carrying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
1 circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

Investments

Investments in subsidianes are held at histarical cost less proviston for impairment  The carrying values of investments are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes In circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

Taxation

Current tax 1s provided at ameunts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rate and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date Deferred tax 15 recogrused in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed atthe balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result in an abligation to pay more tax tn the future er a nght to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date
Timing differences are differences between the Company's taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial statements that anse from the inclusion of
gains and losses in tax assessments in penods different from those in which they are recognised i the financial statements

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the retained earnings of overseas subsidianes only to the extent that, at the balance sheet date, dividends have been
accrued as recervable or a binding agreement to distribute past earmings m future has been entered into by the subsidiary

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only to the extent that on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded
as maore likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the Future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted

Defarred tax 15 measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the penods in which ttming differences reverse, based on tax
rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Pensions

The Company contnibutes to personal pension arrangements for its employees  The penston cost 1s the amount of contributions payable in the year
Differences between contributions payable in the year and contnbutions paid are shown either as accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Share based payments

Employees (including Directors) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share based transactions, whereby employees render services in
exchange for shares or nghts over shares {equity settled transactions) The cost of equity settled transactions with employees 15 measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted The fair value i5 determuned using a binomial medel, further details of which are given in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements In valuing equity settled transactions, no account 1s taken of any vesting conditions, other than conditions inked to the
price of the shares of the Company (market conditions)

The cost of equity settled transactions 15 recogmsed, together with a corresponding increase tn equity, over the pertod in which the performance conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award {(vesting date) The cumulative expense recagnised for
equity settled transactions at each reporting date reflects the extent to which the vesting pertod has expired and management’s best estimate of the number
of awards that will ultimately vest

The financial effect of awards by the Company of options over its equity shares to employees of subsidiary undertakings are recognised by the Company in its
individual financial statements with the Company recording an imcrease in its investment in subsidianes and a cred:t to equity

No expense 1s recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting 1s conditional upon a market conditien, which are treated as
vesting irespective of whether or not the market condttion 1s satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied

Where the terms of an equity settled award are modified, as a mimimum an expense 15 recognised as if the terms had not been modified In addition, an
expense 1s recognised for any increase in the value of the transaction as a result of the modification, as measured at the date of modification

Where an equity settled award 1s cancelled, it 1s treated as If it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense nat yet recogmsed for the award 1s
recognised immediately If a new award 15 substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that 1t:s granted, the
cancelled and new shares are treated as if they were a modification of the ornginal award

Dividend income

Dividend income from subsidiary undertakings 1s recagnised at the point the dividend has been declared (hvidends declared after the balance sheet date
are not recogmsed in the profit and loss account

Financial liabiities and equity

Financial habilities and equity mstruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into  An equity instrument ts
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its hiabilities

Bank borrowings

interest bearing bank loans are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs  After initial recognition, anterest bearing bank loans are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

A financial hability 1s generally derecogmised when the contract that gives nise to it 1s settled, sold, cancelled or expires Where an existing financial bability
15 replaced by another from the same lender on substantally different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification 1s treated as a derecognition of the orniginal Liability and the recognition of a new liability

Derivative financial instruments

The Campany uses dervative financial Instruments to reduce exposute to interest rate movements The Company does not hold or issue denvative financial
instruments for speculative purposes Derivative financial mnstruments have been recogmsed as assets and Yiabilities measured at their fair values at the
balance sheet date Changes in the fair values have been recognised in the profit and loss account as they de not qualify for hedge accounting

Equity instruments
Equity instruments 1ssied by the Company are recorded at the proceeds recetved, net of direct 1ssue costs

Own shares

Shares in e2v technologies plc held by the Company or the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) are stated at cost and are presented in the balance sheetas a
deduction from equity
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2 Tangible assets

Motor vehicles £000
Cost

At 1 Apnl 2010 and 31 March 2011 12
Accumulated depreciation

At 1 Apnl 2010 and 31 March 2011 12
Met book value

Al 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2011 -
3. Investments

Equity interests in subsidiary undertakings £000
Cost

At 1 Apnl 2010 132,179
Addiions — shara option awards to employees of subsidiary undertakings 181
At 31 March 2011 132,360
Impairment

At 1 Apnl 2010 and 31 March 2011 11,898
Net book value

At 31 March 2010 120,281
At 31 March 2011 120,462

Interests in Group undertakings

The Company has investments n the foltowing subsidiary undertakings that pnincipally affect the profits or net assets of the Group Shares are held
directly by the Company, except where noted below The Company has control over 100% of the ordinary share capital in respect of each of its subsidiary
undertakings To avoid a statement of excessive length, details of investments which are not significant have been omitted

Country of
Name of undertaking incerperation Pnnapal activity
a2v technologies (UK) bimited England & Wales Electronic compoenent manutacturer
e2v technologies GmpH" Germany Sales & distnbution
e2v Lmited England & Wales Sales & distnbution
e2v scientific instruments bimsted England & Wales Electronic component manufaciurer
e2v technologies SAS France Holding company
e2v semiconductors SAS? France Electronic component mantufacturer
e2v SAS®? France Sales & distnbution
e2v Holdings Inc USA Holding company
e2ving® usa Sales & distribution
e2v aerospace and defensa Inc {formery QP Semicanductor tnc )@ USA Electronic component manufacturer
e2v technologies overseas (holdings) Limited England & Wales Holding company, sales & distnbution
a2v Asia Pacific Limited® Hong Kong Sales & distnbution
MICS Microchernical Systems SA® Switzerand Electronic component manufacturer
£2v microsensors SAW Switzerand Electronic companent manufacturer

(1) held through e2v technologies (UK) Limited

(2) held through e2v technotogies SAS

(3} held through ezv Holdings Inc

(4) held through e2v technologres overseas (holdings) Limited
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4 Debtors
2011 2010
£000 £000
Amounts due within one year
Armounts receivable from subsichary undertakings 26,041 18 643
Other debtors 31 91
Prepayments and accrued income 125 ar
26,197 18,821
Amounts due after more than cne year
Amounts recevable from subsidiary undertakings 22,673 -
Ceferred tax asset {note 7) 118 179
22,73 179
48,988 19,000
5. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2011 2010
£000 £000
Trade creditors 201 1574
Amcunts payable to subsidiary undertalangs 6,819 87
Other taxation and social secunty costs 409 156
Other creditors — pension contnbuticns 13 15
Accruals and deferred iIncome 1,578 1,605
Interest rate swaps 192 156
9,212 3,573
6 Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
201 2010
£000 £000
Bank loans 39,582 31843
Interest rate swaps - 131
39,582 31,974

Details of banking facilities available and the matuny of the debt are provided in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements The bank loans are

secured by a floating charge over the net assets of the Group

Interest rate swaps
Interest rate swaps are recorded m the balance sheet at fair value and mature as follows

2011 2010

£000 £000

Due within one year 192 156
After more than one year and less than two years - 131
192 287
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7. Deferred tax asset

£000

At 1 Apnl 2010 179

Charged to profit and loss account (61)

At 31 March 2011 118
Deferred tax s comprised as follows

2011 2010

£000 £000

Other tiring differences 118 179

The Company s part of a UK tax group and management has determined that based on the current forecast prepared the deferred tax assets are recoverable

against future taxable profits of that Group and a valuation atlowance is not required

8. Called up share capital

Ordinary shares 1ssued and fully paid No £000
At 1 Apnl 2010 214,854,056 10,742
Employee share option schemes - options exercised 7,855 -
At 31 March 2011 214,861,911 10,742

Details of mavements in shares held by the Company and by the EBT are also given in note 25 to the consolbidated financial statements

The information as disclosed in the Group's consolidated financial statements under IFRS 2, “Share Based Payment™, 1s comparable with the UK GAAP
disclosure requirements under FRS 20, “Share Based Payment”, therefore please refer to note 28 to the consolidated financial statements for further
mformation regarding the Company’s equity settled share based payment arrangements The following Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), Share Save Scheme

(SAYE) and Executrve Share Option Plan (ExSOP) awards, number and weighted average exercise price {WAEP) relate to employees of the Company

2011 2010
Lme No No
QOuistanding at the beginning of the year 1,798,018 792725
Lapsed dunng the year (928,726) (341,049)
Granteg during the year 2,813,385 647,350
Adjustment for nghts 1ssus - 698,992
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,682,677 1,798,018
Exercisable at the end of the year - - !
2011 2010 '
2011 WAEP 2010 WAEP
SAYE No (pence) No (pence}
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 146,764 4013 24 663 22500
Employee transter - - 2,048 22500 ‘
Lapsed dunng the year {30,877) 5556 (25 995) 189 48
Granted during the year - M 89157 57 00
Adjustment for nghts issue - - 56,891 n/a
Qutstanding at the end of the year 115,887 36 02 146 764 4013
Exercisable at the end of the year - n/a - nfa
Weighted average remaining contractuat life {months) 19 30

80




e2v technologies plc | Annual Report and Financial Statements 2011

8 Called up share capital (continued)

201 2010
2011 WAEP 2030 WAEP
ExSOP No (pence) No {pence)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 11,076 19910 - -
Employee transfer - - 12,000 27358
Lapsed dunng the year (11,076) 199 10 {5.000) 215 50
Adiustmant for nghts 1ssue - - 4,076 n/a
Qutstanding at the end of the year - - 11,076 199 10
Exeraisable at the end of the year - n/a - n/a
Weighted average remaining contractual Iife (months) - 9
9. Reserves
Share Merger Capital Cwn Reta:ned
premium raserve redemption shares earnngs Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 Apnl 2010 41,780 44,579 274 (5 6,964 93,592
Prafil for the year - - - - 18,517 18,517
Shares 1ssued (net of 1ssue costs) 3 22} - - - (19}
Treasury shares purchased dunng the year - - - {2,177) - 2,177
Share based payments - - - - (173) (173)
Share options 1ssued 1o employees of
subsidiary undertakings - - - - 181 181
At 31 March 2011 41,783 44,557 274 {2,182) 25,489 109,921

The Directors believe that the merger reserve i1s distnbutable The reserve far own shares anses in connection with the e2v technologies ple shares held by
the Company and by the Company's EBT, a discretionary trust established to facilitate the operation of the Company’s LTIP for senlor management See notes

25 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements for further details

10. Reconciliztion of movements in shareholders’ funds

201 2010

£000 £000
Profit/(loss) for the year 18,517 (1.973)
Shares issued (net of issue costs) (19) 52,193
Treasury shares purchased (2,177) -
Share based payments {173) 137
Share options 1ssued to employees of subsidiary undertalongs 181 308
Net increase in shareholders’ funds 16,329 50,663
Opening shareholders' funds 104,334 53,871
Closing sharehelders’ funds 120,663 104,334

For details on dividends paid and proposed since the year end refer Lo note 12 to the consolidated financial statements
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11. Commitments and contingent liabilities
The Company has no contracts for future expenditure which have not been provided for {2010 £nil)

The Company acts as a guarantor on the Group's borrowang facilities  Loans of £n11 (zo1o £37,628,000) were drawn by substdiary undertakings at the
balance sheet date

12, Directors’ remuneration
Details of Directors’ remuneration, pensron benefits and share gption awards are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Reparn

13, Auditor’s remuneration

The auditer’s remuneration for the audit of the Company 1s disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements Fees paid to the avditors for
non audit services to the Company are not required to be disclosed in the Company’s financial statements because consolidated financial statements are
prepared which disclose such fees on a consolidated basis
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of e2v technologies plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of e2v
technologies plc for the year ended 31 March zo11 which compnse the
parent company Balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 13  The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practices)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, i
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Qur

audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them n an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose To the frllest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume respensibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and
auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ statement of responsibilities set
out in the Directors’ Report, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the parent company financal statements and for being satisfied that

they give a true and fair view Gur respensibility 15 to audit and express

an opinion on the parent company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves sbtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
polictes are appropriate to the parent company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reascnableness
of sigmficant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the
financial and non financial information in the Annual Report and Financial
Statements to identify matenial inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
Inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the parent company financial statements

-+ give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at
31 March zo11,

-+ have been properly prepared 1n accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounteng Practice, and

-+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Compantes Act 2006

Opinicn on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opirion

—»

the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

the informatian gwven i the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared Is consistent with the
parent company financiz! statements

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion

-

-

-»

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not vtsited by us, or

the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

certain disclosures of Derectors’ remuneration specified by law are not
made, ar

we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require
for our audit .

Other matter

We have reported separately on the consolidated financial statements of ezv
technologies plc for the year ended 31 March 2011

A X

C R

Robert Forsyth (Senior statutory audito
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

Cambridge

3 lune 2011

Netes

1

The maintenance and integnty of the e2v website 1s the responsibility of the
Directors, the work carned out by the auditor does not involve consideration
of these matters and, accordingly, the auditor accepts no responsibility for
any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they
were initially presenied on the website

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemunation of financial statements may differ fram legislation in other
junisdictions
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (AGM)

THIS DOCUMENT IS5 IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are 1in any doubt as to what action to take, you should consult your stockbroker, solicitar, accountant or other appropriate independent professional
adviser authornsed under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 if you have sold or otherwise transferred all your shares n ezv technologies ple,
please forward this document and the accompanying Form of Proxy to the person through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for transmission to the
purchaser or transferee

Notice of an Annual Genera! Meeuing of ezv technologies plc to be held at 3 p m on Wednesday 27 July 2011 at Investec Investment Banking, 2 Gresham
Street, London, EC2V 7QP I1s set out 1n this document

A Form of Proxy for use in connection with the Annual General Meeting 1s enclosed To be valid, the Form of Proxy should be completed and returned to
Equimti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN9g 6ZX  Alternatively, if you are a CREST member, you can appoint a proxy through the CREST
electronic proxy appointment service in accordance with the procedures set out in the CREST Manual, further details of which are given in the notes to this
document

The Form of Proxy must be receved by 3 p m on Monday 25 July 2011 Completion and return of the Form of Proxy or a CREST Proxy Instruction will not prevent
you from attending and voting at the Annual General Meeling in person, should you so wish

Notice 15 hereby given that the next Annual Generat Meeting of e2v technologies plc (the Company) will be held at Investec Investment Banking, 2 Gresham
Street, London, EC2V 7QP at 3 p m on Wednesday 27th July 2o1s, for the following purposes

Ordinary bustness
1 To recerve and adopt the financial statements and the reports of the Directors and auditor far the year ended 31 March 2011 (resolution 1)

2 Todeclare a fina! dvidend of 2 4 pence per Ordinary Share for the year ended 31 March 2011 (resolution 2)

3 Toelect Knshnamurthy Rajagopal as a Director {resolution 3)

4  Toelect Kevin Dangerfield as a Director (resolution 4)

5 Tare-elect Keith Attwood (who was due to retire by rotation) as a Director (resolution 5)

6  Tore-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s auditor (resolution 6]

7 To authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of Ernst & Young LLP (resolution 7)

8  Toapprove the Directors’ Remuneratton Report as set out in the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2011 {resolution 8)

9  Togenerally and unconditionally authonse the Directors pursuant to section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act) to exercise all the powers of the

Company

91 toallot sharesn the Company and to grant nights to subscnbe for, or to convert any secunty into, shares in the Company “Relevant Secunties”, up
to a maxymum aggregate nommal amount of £3,541,088, and further

g 2 toallot Relevant Secunties compnising equity secunties (within the meaning of section 560 of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£3,541,088 1in connection with an offer by way of a nghtsssue in favour of holders of ordinary shares of 5 pence each in the capital of the Company
(Ordinary Shares) in propartion (as nearly as may be practicable) to their existing holdings of Ordinary Shares but subject to such exclusions
or other arrangements as the Directors deem necessary or expedient n relation to fractional entitlements or any legal, regulatory or practical
problems under the laws of any territory, or the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange,

for a peniod expinng (unless previously revoked, varied of renewed) on 27 October 2012 or, If sooner, the end of the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company, but the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or agreement which would or nght require Relevant Securities to be
allotted after this authority expires and the Directors may allot Relevant Secunties in pursuance of such offer or agreement as of this authenity had
not expired (resolution 9)

All previous unutilised authorities given to the Directors pursuant to section 86 Campanies Act 1985 or section 551 of the Act shalt cease to have effect at
the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting, save to the extent that those authonties are exeraisable pursuant to section 551(7) of the Act by reason of
any offer or agreement made prior to the date of this resolution which would or might require shares to be allotted or nghts to be granted on or after that
date

10 Toresolve as a special resolution that subject to the passing of resolution 9 above, the Directors be generally empowered pursuant to section 570 and
section 573 of the Act to allot equity secunties (within the meaning of section 560 of the Act) for cash, pursuant to the authonty conferred by resolution 9
as if section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to such alloiment, provided that this power shall expire on 27 October 2012 or, if sooner, the end of the next
Anneal General Meeting of the Company This power shall be lmited to the allotment of equity secunties

10 1 «n connection with an offer of equity securities {including, without imstation, under a nghts 1ssue, open offer or similar arrangement save that
in the case of an allotment pursuant to the authonty conferred by paragraph 9 2 of resolution 9, such offer shall be by way of nghts 1ssue only)
in favour of holders of Qrdinary Shares in the capital of the Company in proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to their existing holdings
of Ordinary Shares but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or any legal, regulatory or practical problems under the laws of any terntory, or the requirements of any regulatory body or stock
exchange, and
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Ordinary business (continued)

10 2 otherwise than pursuant to paragraph 10 1 up to an aggregate nominal amount of £531,163,

but the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or agreement which would or might require equnty securities to be allotted after this
power expires and the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if this power had not expired {resolution 10)

The power apphes in relation 1o a sale of shares which 15 an allotment of equity securities by wirtue of section 560(2)(b) of the Act as if in the first
paragraph of this resolution the words “pursuant to the authonty ¢conferred by resolution ¢™ were omitted

All previous unutilised powers given 1o the Directors pursuant to section 95 Companies Act 1985 or section 570 of the Act shall cease to have effect

at the concluston of this Annual General Meeting

11 Toresolve as a special resolution that the Company be generally authonised pursuant to section 701 of the Act to make market purchases (within the
meaning of section 93{4) of the Act) of its Ordinary Shares on such terms and in such manner as the Directors shall determine, provided that

111 the maximum number of Ordinary Shares hereby authorised to be purchased 15 21,246,530,

112 the maximum price which may be paid for each Ordinary Share shail be the higher of (1) 5 per cent above the average of the middle market
quaotations for an Ordinary Share (as derived from The Stock Exchange Darly Officsal List) for the five business days immed ately before the day on
which the purchase 1s made and (17) the higher of the price of the last independent trade and the highest current independent bid on the trading
venue where the purchase 15 carned out or otherwise as stiputated by Article 5(1) of the Buy-back and Stabilisation Regutation (2273/2003/EC) (in

each case exclusive of expenses),

t1 3 the minimum pnice which may be paid for each Ordinary Share shall be 5 pence, and

114 this authonty (unless previously revoked, varied or renewed) shall expire on 27 October zo12 or, if sooner, the end of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company except in relation to the purchase of Ordinary Shares the contract for which was concluded before such date and which

will or may be executed wholly or partly after such date (resolution 11)

Special business

12 Toconsider and, if thought fit, pass a resolution as a special resolution that general meetings (other than any Annual General Meeting) of the Company

may be called on not less than 14 clear days notice (resalution 12)

By order of the Board

COS i

Charlotte Parmenter
Company Secretary

6lune zo11

ez2vtechnologres plc
Company No 4439718

Registered office

106 Waterhouse Lane
Chelmsford

Essex Cv1 2QU

Registered number
4439718
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Notes
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A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting 15 entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and to speak and vote instead of him/her A proxy need notbe a
member of the Company A member may appoint more than one proxy in relation to a meeting provided that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the rights attached
to a different share or shares held by that member

A proxy form which may be used to make such appantment and give proxy directions accompanues this notice 1f you do not recewve a proxy form and believe that
you should have one, or if you require additional prexy farms in order to 2ppomnt more than one proxy, please contact Equiniti on the telephone number(s) given in
note 16 below

To be valid a form of proxy and, if applicable, any power of attorney or other authonty under which 1t1s signed, or a notanally certified copy of such power of
autharity should be sent so as to reach Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BNgg 62X not ess than 48 hours before the start of the
meegting

Members returning a form of proxy will also be able to attend the meeting and vote in person should they wish to do so

Any person to whom this notice 1s sent who 15 a person nominated under section 156 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy informatron nghts {a Nominated
Person) may, under an agreement between him or her and the member by wham he or she was nominated, have a nght to be appointed (or to have someone else
appomted) as a proxy for the Annual Generat Meeting If a Nominated Person has no such proxy appointment right or does not wish to exercise it, he or she may,
under any such agreement have a right to give instructions to the member as to the exercise of voting nghts

The statement of the rights of members in relation to the appointment of proxies in notes 1, 2 and 3 above does not apply to Nominated Persons The nights
described in those notes can only be exercised by members of the Company

For the purposes of determuning who 15 entitled to attend and vote (whether an a poll or atherwise) at the meeting, a person must be entered on the register of
members by 6 oo p m on 25 fuly 2011 {or, in the event of any adjournment, by 6 oo p m on the date which is two days before the date of the adjourned meeting)
and shall be able 1o vote only on those Ordinary Shares registered i that person’s name at that ime Any changes to entrles made after the relevant deadline shall
be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting

As at 3 June 2011 the Company $ 1ssued share capital compnsed 212,465,300 Ordinary Shares (excluding treasury shares) Each Ordinary Share carnes the night
to vote on a poll at a general meeting of the Company and, therefore, the total voting nghts in the Company as at that date are 212,465,300 As at 3 June z01t, the
Company held 2,400,000 Ordinary Shares as treasury shares

Any corporation which s a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers as a member provided that
they do not do so in relation to the same shares

Under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, members meeting the threshold sequirements set out in that section have the right to require the Company to
publish on a website a statement setting out any matter relating to (1) the audit of the Company's accounts (including the auditor’s report and the cenduct of the
audit) that are to be laid before the Annual General Meeting, or (i1} any circumsiance connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the
previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports were laid in accordance with section 437 of the Companies Act 2006 The Company may not require the
members requesting any such website publication to pay its expenses in complying with sections 527 or 528 Companies Act 2006 Where the Company 15 required
to place a statement on a website under section 527 Companies Act 2006 1t must forward the statement to the Company’s auditor no later than the time when it
makes the statement available on the wehsite The business which may be dealt with at the Annual General Meeting includes any statement that the Company has
been required under section 527 Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website

A copy of this notice, and other information required by section 31tA Compantes Act 2006, can be found on the website at www e2v com

Any member attending the meeting has the nght to ask questions The Company must cause to be answered any such question relating to the business being
dealt with at the meeting but no such answer need be given If (3) to do so would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the disclosure of
confidential information, () the answer has already been given on a website 1n the form of an answer to a question, or (¢} 1t 1s undesirable in the interests of the
Company or the good order of the meeting that the quesiion be answered

There will be available for inspection at Macfarlanes LLP, 20 Cursitor Street, London EC4A 11T during normal business hours on any weekday (excluding Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays} and at Investec Investment Banking, 2 Gresham Street, London, EC2V 7QP for at least 15 minutes prior to and durnng the Annual
General Meeting, the letter of appointment of each non-executive Director

You may not use any electronic address provided in this netice of Annual General Meeting for communicating with the Company for any purposes other than those
expressly stated

CREST members who wish to appomt a proxy or proxies through the CREST electromic proxy appomniment senice may do so by using the procedures descnbed
m the CREST Manual CREST persenal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider(s)
should refer to their CREST sponsor ot voting seriice provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action oh their behalf

In order for a CREST proay appointment orinstruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a CREST Proxy Instruction)
must be properly authenticated in compliance with Euroclear UK & treland Limited s specifications and must contain the necessary information, as described in
the CREST Manual (avarlable via www euroclear com/CREST) The message, regardless of whether it constitutes the appontment of a proxy or 15 an amendment
to the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must 1n order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received by Equiniti (D RA19} no later than 3p m
on Monday 25 July 2011 For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (3as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by CREST
Applications Host) from which Equiniti1s able to retrreve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner required by CREST After that time any change of
instructions to proxies appotnted through CREST should be communicated to the appaintee through other means

CREST members and, where applicable their CREST sponsors, or voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK & Ireland Limuted does not make available
special procedures in CREST for any particutar messages Normal system timings and limitations will therefore appty i1n relation to the input of CREST Proxy
Instructions 1t 1s the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take {or 1f the CREST member 1s a CREST personal member or sponsored member or has
appointed a voting service provader(s), 1o procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take{s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a
message 1S transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular ume In this cannection, CREST members and, where apphcable, thewr CREST sponsors or
vaoting service providers are referred, in particular, to those secttons of the CREST Manual concerning practical kmitations of the CREST system and timings

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out 1n Regulation 35(5)(a) Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001

If you have any questions relating to this nottce of Annual General Meeting or the completion and return of the form of proxy, you can contact Equiniti’s helpline
on 0871 384 2689 Calls to this number cost 8p per menute from a BT landline Other providers costs mayvary Lines are open 8 3oa m tos5 30 p m, Monday to
friday Callers from outside the UK should dial +44 (0) 121 415 7047
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Explanation of AGM Business

These notes are intended to help you understand the effect and purpose of the resolutions proposed

Resolufion 1 — To receive and adopt the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's consolidated financial statements and the reports of its Directors and Auditor in respect of the year ended 31 March zo11 (the Arnual Report
and Consolidated Financial Statements) are being sent to shareholders with the Notice of Annual General Meeting The Directors recommend that the
Company adopt the Annual Report and Consolbidated Financial Statements

Resolution 2 ~ Declaration of dividend

Following the Company's Interim Management Statement in January 201 and the Year End Trading Update in April 2011 the Board announced its intention
1o return to a progressive dividend policy For the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Board intends to pay dividends totalling 3 & pence per ordinary
share Of this, 1 2 pence per share has been paid as an intenm dividend on 27 May 2011 to e2v shareholders on the register as at 3 May 2011 and,

subject to approval by shareholders, 2 4 pence per share wilt be paid on 3 August 2011 to e2v shareholders on the register as at 8 July 2011 as a final
dividend Resolution 2 asks shareholders to approve this final dividend

Knshnamurthy Rajagopal was appointed as a new Non Executive Director of the Company on 1 November 2010 Information on Knshnamurthy Rajagopal may

Resolution 3 - To elect Knshnamurthy Rajagopal as a Divector
be found in the section of the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements on the Board of Directors
|

The Company’s articles of association state that when the Board appomnts a new Director, that Director must retire and 15 eligible for re electton at the next
Annual General Meeting Knishnamurthy Rajagopal will therefore retire and stand for re election at this year's Annual General Meeting

Krishnamurthy Rajagopal's letter of appointment may be terminated by the Company on notice A copy of his letter of appointment 1s available for inspection
atthe registered office of the Company and will be avaitable for inspecuion at the Annual General Meeting

Resolution 4 — To elect Kevin Dangerfield as a Director

Kevin Dangerfield was appointed as a new Non Executive Director of the Company on 28 January 2011 Information on Kevin Dangerfield may be found in the
section of the Annual Repont and Consohidated Financial Statements an the Board of Directors

The Company’s articles of associatron state that when the Board appoints a new Durector, that Director must retire and 1s eligible for re election at the next
Annual General Meeting Kevin Dangerfield will therefore retire and stand for re-election at this year's Annual Genera!l Meeting

Kevin Dangerfield's letter of appointment may be terminated by the Company on notice A copy of his letter of appointment 1s available for inspection at the
registered office of the Company and will be available for inspectron at the Annual General Meeting

Resolution 5 — To re-elect Keith Attwood as a Director

The Company's articles of association state that each Director shall retire at the Annual General Meeting held in the third catendar year foltowing the year In
which he was elected or last re elected but such Director(s) shall be eligible for re election In accordance with these provisions of the Company’s articles,
Keith Attwood I1s due to retire at this year's Annual General Meeting and will stand for re election

information on Kesth Attwood 15 10 the section of the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements on the Board of Directors The Chairman confirms

that, following formal performance evaluation, the Directors’ performance continues to be effective and demonstrates commitment to their respective roles, I
including time commitments for Board and committee meetings Keith Attwood 15 also the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and has extenswve relevant 1
experience which allows him te contnbute to the Group's development

The Beard 1s therefore of the opinion that Keith Attwood should be re-elected to the Board

Resolutions 6 and 7 — To re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditor and to authonse the Directors to determine therr
remuneration

These resolutions propose that Ermnst & Young LLP should be re appointed as the Company’s auditor and that the Directors be authonsed to determine thewr
remuneration

Resolution 8 ~ To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Companies Act 2006 requires listed companies to put a resolution to shareholders at each Annual General Meeting to approve the Directors’
Remuneration Report, which forms part of the Annual Report The vote 1s adwisory in nature

Resolution 8 1n the Notice of Annual General Meeting, which will be proposed as an ordinary resclution, asks shareholders to approve the Directors’
Remuneration Repost, which can be found in the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements

Resolution g — Authority {o ailot shares

The Companies Act 2006 prevents Direstors from allotting unissued shares, other than pursuant to an employee share scheme, without the authonty of
shareholders in general meeting In certain circumstances this could be unduly restrictive The Directors’ existing authonty to allot shares, which was granted
at the Annual General Meeting held on 29 July 2010, will expire at the end of this year's Annual General Meeting

Resolution 9 1n the Notice of Annual General Meeting will be proposed, as an ordinary resolution, to authonise the Directors to allot ordinary shares of 5 pence
each in the capital of the Company up to a maximum nominal amount of £3,541,088 representing approximately 33 3 percent of the nominal value of the
ordinary shares in 1ssue on 3 Junie 2011, excluding treasury shares, and up to a further maximum nominal amount of £3,541,088 {representing approximately
a further 33 3 percent of the nominal value of the ordinary shares in 1s5ue on 3 June 2011) where the allotment 15 1in connection with an offer by way of nghts
1ssue As at 3 June zo11, the Company held 2,400,000 ordinary shares as treasury shares This authonty complies with institutional investor guidelines
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Explanation of AGM business

The authoenty conferred by the resolution will expire on 27 October 2012 or, if sooner, at the end of next year's Annual General Meeting (unless previously
revoked, vaned or renewed)

The Directors have no present plans to allot unissued shares other than on the exercise of share options under the Company's employee share option
schemes Howaever, the Directors believe it to be in the best interests of the Company that they should continue to have this authonty so that such allotments
can take place to finance appropriate business opportunities that may arise

Resolution 10 — To disapply pre-emption nghts

Unless they are given an appropnate authonty by shareholders, If the Directors wish to allot any of the umissued shares for cash or grant nghts aver shares or
sell treasury shares for cash (other than pursuant to an employee share scheme) they must first offer them to existing shareholders 1n propertion to existing
holdings These are known as pre-emption rights

The extsting disapplication of these statutory pre-emption nights, which was granted at the Annual General Meeting held on 29 July 2010 will expire at the end
of this year’s Annual General Meeting Accordingly resolution 10 1n the notice of Annual General Meeting will be proposed, as a special resolution, to give the
Directors power to allot shares without the application of these statutory pre-emption nghts first, in relation to offers of equity securities by way of nghts
issue, open offer or similar arrangements (save that in the case of an allotment pursuant to the authonty conferred by paragraph g 2 of resolutien 9, such
offer shall be by way of nights 1ssue onty), and second, 11 relation to the allotment of equity secunties for cash up to a maximum aggregate nominal amount of
£531,163 (representing approximately 5 percent of the nominal value of the ordinary shares in 1ssue on 3 June 2011 exeluding treasury shares)

The powers conferred by this resolution will expire on 27 October 2012 or, If sooner, at the end of next year's Annual General Meeting However, the Company
may make an offer or agreement prior to the expiry of this power which would or might require equity securities to be allocated after the expiry of this power
as If statutory pre emption rnights did not apply to such allotments In this case, Directors will be permitted to allot such secunties pursuant to such offer or
agreement as if this power had not expired

In accordance with the guidelines 1ssued by the Pre Emption Group, the Directors confirm thesr intention that no more than 7 5 percent of the 1ssued share
capual will be 1ssued for cash on a non pre emptive basis during any three year penod

Resolution 11 — Company’s authority to purchase its own shares

At the Annua! General Meeting of the Company held on 29 luly 2010, the Company was authonsed to make market purchases of up to 21,485,406 of its own
ordinary shares The Company has made purchases under this authonty of 2,400,000 shares leaving a balance of 19,085,406

Resolution 11 1n the notice of Annual General Meeting, which will be proposed as a special resolution, will authorise the Company to make market purchases
of up to 21,246,530 ordinary shares This equals 10 percent of the Company’s ordinary shares in 1s5ue on 3 June 2011 The maximum price that may be paid
shall be the higher of (i) 5 percent above the average of the middte market quotations for an ordinary share for the five business days immediately before the
day on which the purchase 1s made and (i) the higher of the price of the last independent trade and the highest current independent bid on the trading venue
whera the purchase 15 carried out or otherwise in accordance with Article 5(1) of the Buy-back and Stabilisatron Regulation (2273/2003/€C) (in each case
exclusive of expenses) The minimum price which may be paid for each ordinary share shall be 5 pence

The authonty conferred by this resolution will expire on 27 October 2012 or, if sooner, at the end of next year's Annual General Meeting

Your Diractors are committed to managing the Company’s capital effectively and buying back the Company’s ordinary shares is one of the options they keep
under review Purchases would only be made after considering the effect on earnings per share, and the benefits for shareholders generally

The Company may hold in treasury any of its own shares that it purchases n accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and the authority conferred by this
resolution This would give the Company the ability to re 15sue treasury shares quickly and cost effactively and would provide the Company with greater
flexibility in the management of its capital base

As at 3 June 2011, there were options outstanding over 10,018,108 ordinary shares which, if exercised at that date, would have represented 4 7 percent
of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital If the authority given by resolution 11 were to be fully used, these would then represent 5 1 percent of the
Company’s issued ordinary share capital

Resolution 12 - Notice of general meetings

Changes made to the Companies Act 2006 by the Shareholder Rights' Regulations increase the notice period required for general meetings of the Company to
21 days unless shareholders approve a shorter notice period, which cannot be less than 14 clear days Annual General Meetings will continue to be held on at
least z1clear days' notice

Before the coming into force of the Shareholder Rights’ Regulations on 3 August 2009, the Company was able to call general meetings (other than an Annual
General Meeting) on 14 clear days’ notice without obtaining such shareholder approval

The shorter notice peniod would not be used as a matter of routine for such meetings, but only where the flexibilbity 1s merited by the business of the meeting
and ts thought to be to the advantage of shareholders as a whole

The approval will be effective untit the Company’s next Annual General Meeting, when 1t 1s intended that a similar resolution will be proposed

Note that the changes to the Compantes Act 2006 mean that, In order to be able to call a general meeting on less than 21 clear days’ notice, the Company
must make a means of electromic voting available to all shareholders for that meeting

Voting recommendation

The Directors believe that the resotutions which are to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting are in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole and recommend all shareholders to vote in favour of them, as each of the Birectors intend to do 1n respect of his own beneficial
holding
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